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Corporate Profile

Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Hengdeli” and its
subsidiaries, collectively as the “Group”) is the world’s largest
retailer of internationally renowned watch brands. Its shareholders
include the Zhang family, SWATCH Group Limited, the world’s
largest watch manufacturer and distributor, and LVMH Group, the
world’s largest luxury goods conglomerate.

With internationally renowned watches serving as a core focus,
the retail of a portfolio comprising middle-to-high-end products,
such as jewellery, and the development of all-round relevant
supporting industries remain the strategic direction of the Group.

The Group owns an extensive retail network comprising: Elegant
(top-end internationally renowned watch brands), Prime Time/
Hengdeli (middle and middle-to-high-end internationally renowned
watch brands) and single-brand boutiques. As at 31 December
20183, the Group had 470 retails outlets, selling watches from
more than 50 internationally renowned brands as well as middle-
to-high-end jewellery and accessories in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Taiwan.

The Group provides the most excellent integrated customer
service and after-sales warranty maintenance for internationally
renowned brand watches within the Greater China region and
has successfully developed the business of manufacturing related
packaging and display products within the industry.

The Group has maintained sound business relationships with the
suppliers of the world’s truly premier brands such as SWATCH
Group, LVMH Group, RICHEMONT Group, ROLEX Group
and KERING Group. The Group is engaged in the distribution
of numerous internationally renowned watch brands on both
exclusive and non-exclusive basis. The Group has about 400
wholesale customers in over 100 major cities.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange since 2005 with the stock code 3389. The
stock name abbreviation is Hengdeli.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year” or the “Year under
review”), for your review.

Not all of our expectations for 2013 were achieved. In the context
of a slow global economic recovery, China’s economy showed
smooth and positive signs through structural adjustments. Well
positioned for every market opportunity, the Group gave full play
to its strengths to align its professional operations with market
dynamics in a customer-oriented approach, seeking to provide
consumers a thoughtful and personalized service experience with
an aim at new opportunities. As a result, the Group achieved
stable performance despite the challenging market environment,
effectively safeguarding the interests of its shareholders.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group recorded turnover of
RMB13,375,443,000, representing an increase of 10.4% over
the corresponding period last year. Retail sales amounted to
RMB9,978,633,000, an increase of 11.4% over the corresponding
period last year, and accounted for 74.6% of total sales, a
result that was in line with the Group’s strategic direction.
Excluding the non-core businesses, the Group recorded net
profit of RMB582,517,000, a year-on-year drop of 33.6% due
to the impact from external business environment. The Group’s
comprehensive net profit for the year was RMB468,872,000,
representing a decrease of 50.4% as compared to the same
period last year. Apart from a decrease in gross profit margin of
sales of high-end watches and an increase in expenses arising
from higher labor cost and rental expenses, the decrease in net
profit was also attributable to the impairment provision for shares
of Ming Fung Jewellery Group Limited (“Ming Fung Group”) made
according to accounting standards after the share price of Ming
Fung Group plunged from the beginning of the year, and the
relatively substantial impact on the non-recurring gain from the
disposal of OMAS in 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement
s

In 2013, the retail watch market saw relatively mild improvement.
The Group’s key efforts were focused on completing its
structural adjustments and refining its management operations.
In Mainland China, the Group continued to allocate resources
in an effort to target the middle-end watch market, and steadily
expanded the retail network for its middle-end watches with
the aim of penetrating second, third and fourth-tier cities with
potential. At the same time, the Group endeavoured to adjust and
rationalise the structure of its high-end brands. As for refining its
management operations, the Group approached this by exercising
stricter controls over site selection for new stores, a move
that enhanced the quality of both new openings and individual
stores. In addition, the Group worked with brand manufacturers
to optimise its inventory profile to meet market demand, and to
propel the long-term development of the Group. In Hong Kong,
the Group worked to stabilise its high-end retail segment. At
the same time, it planned to develop a multi-faceted marketing
system, set up a middle- to high-end retail platform, and look for
new ways to expand its market share and achieve steady growth
in profitability. After carrying out adjustments and optimisation
work and undertaking effective expansion, the number of the
Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2013 had increased
to 470 from 452 at the end of 2012. Meanwhile, sales of the
Group’s middle-end watches in 2013 continued to increase, at
a rate of 8.9% as the demand for middle-end brand watches is
growing.

The Group has acquired a solid reputation for its comprehensive,
multi-level customer services in the Greater China region. It
has also maintained a closer relationships with brand suppliers
throughout the pre-sale, in-sale and after-sale process, and
gained strong trust from consumers, both of which have provided
essential support to its principal retail operations. The Group’s
brand distribution business has grown steadily. The Group applied
its new strategy during the year, one that involved restructuring its
ancillary operations and introducing innovations in its watch case
manufacturing and retail channels. In these ways it is developing a
sound industry platform for its watch-related business, from which
it will look for new breakthroughs as part of its plans for long-term
development.

As mobile internet commerce begins to dominate traditional
business models in this era of networking, a strong e-commerce
platform is becoming a vital component of all modern enterprises.
After gaining authorisation from its brand suppliers, during the
year, the Group began to work with some of them to set up an
online retail platform, and rolled out its first online flagship brand
store. The Group believes that having an interactive online to
offline (“O20”) sales platform will generate new opportunities for
development in this era of economic growth.
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The Group’s core values of “respect, cooperation, innovation
and undertaking” have built for it a solid foundation from which
it can fulfil its corporate governance and social responsibilities.
The Group is endeavouring to improve its participation
mechanisms of interested parties. The Group uses various forms
of communication exchange and joint action to listen to their
expectations and demands, so as to increase the understanding
between each other and to reach a consensus.

Looking forward into 2014, our expectations remain unchanged.
With uncertainties hanging over the global economic landscape,
enterprises are facing challenges. However, we believe
opportunities are present in this new era alongside the challenges.
The central government’s efforts to promote and maintain steady
economic growth and to enhance its quality and effectiveness
will definitely go some way towards creating an innovative and
solid economic environment, one that should generate new
opportunities for the Group and provide favourable conditions for
its long-term development.

Looking forward, the Group will adhere to its market-oriented,
customer-based and service-driven approach, as part of its
commitment to maintain sound stable operations while seeking
gradual change and steady growth. To ensure the latter, the
Group will continue to allocate resources to strengthen its middle-
end brand operations, refine its management structure, increase
the quality of its retail stores, and enhance its retail brand image.
At the same time, and in line with its new strategy developed in
response to changing market conditions, the Group will accelerate
the development of its e-commerce platform, build and improve
its watch-related ancillary industry platform, and further extend
the comprehensiveness of its customer services. In these ways
it will better serve the retail segment and generate new, higher
and more comprehensive profit growth. The Group will take
a pragmatic approach as it forges ahead to ensure its steady
and sustainable development, while creating value for both its
shareholders and for society at large.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, suppliers, customers and other
business partners for their ongoing trust and support, as well as
to all our staff for their dedicated endeavours and contributions
during the past year.

By Order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Not all of our expectations for 2013 were achieved. In the context
of a slow global economic recovery, China’s economy showed
smooth and positive signs through structural adjustments. Well
positioned for every market opportunity, the Group gave full play
to its strengths to align its professional operations with market
dynamics in a customer-oriented approach, seeking to provide
consumers a thoughtful and personalized service experience with
an aim at new opportunities. As a result, the Group achieved
stable performance despite the challenging market environment,
effectively safeguarding the interests of its shareholders.

. Financial Review

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded
turnover of RMB13,375,443,000, representing an increase of
10.4% over the corresponding period last year. Retail sales
amounted to RMB9,978,633,000, representing an increase
of 11.4% over the corresponding period last year, of which,
domestic retail sales decreased by 0.5% year-on-year to
RMB5,598,929,000, and Hong Kong retail sales increased by
1.2% year-on-year to RMB3,151,948,000. The total retail sales
accounted for 74.6% of the total sales.

In general, the growth of the Group’s retail business continued to
slow year-on-year, still mainly due to the subdued sales of high-
end watches amid the global economic instabilities turmoil, when
the growth rate of Chinese economy slowed and the economic
structural adjustments carried on, which hindered the growth of
the Group’s overall sales.

Nevertheless, the Group maintained a stable growth of 8.9%
year-on-year for sales of middle-end brands in Mainland China,
thanks to the efficient execution of sales strategy catering to the
advancement of China’s policies concerning people’s livelihood
along with the urbanization paces of smaller towns. The growth
not only mirrored a success of the Group’s sales strategy, but
also justified its approach to Mainland China for the coming years.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Sales breakdown: (for the year ended 31 December 2013) HEHEIH  (BE-E—=F+-A=1+—HLFE)

2013 2012
—=E—= —ET——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000 %

ARE AR
(Fx) (F7T) %

Retail Business TEEW

Mainland China R A b, 5,598,929 5,627,893 46.4
Hong Kong BB 3,151,948 3,113,940 25.7
Taiwan =) 206,454 . 214,612 1.8
Harvest Max s 1,021,302 . - -
Wholesale Business HEE TS 3,118,244 2,924,747 241
Customer Services and Others B AR R Efh 278,566 . 239,256 2.0
Total st 13,375,443 12,120,448 100

Mainland China Hong Kong
R i &8
41.9% 23.6%

Taiwan

It
H/=

1.5%

Customer Services and Others _ Harvest Max
EEREREM (N | O E
21% | . 4 7.6%

Wholesale Business
LR TS
23.3%

Gross profit and gross profit margin EFIREFIFE

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s gross profit increased #Z_Z—=F+_A=+—B1 AEEZEFNA
by 15.5% year-on-year to approximately RMB3,643,635,000. AR #3,643,635,0007T * 8 AF R A EFH15.5% : EF
Gross profit margin was approximately 27.2%, representing an X #927.2% * \EAFRH EF 7120 bps © 5IHREE A
increase of 120 bps from the corresponding period last year. AIBVERL - EFEBME NE - EFZREER : £M%5
If excluding the contribution from Harvest Max, it represents a  #BEF A EEAN T HRRORFEFINKT SEF&KiH
slight decrease. It was mainly due to more flexibility in discount — &HTFIEEEME -

offering in sales of high-end brands amid intensified market

competition and subdued economic environment.
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Profit for the year

Excluding the non-core businesses, the Group recorded net
profit of RMB582,517,000, a year-on-year drop of 33.6% due to
the impact from the external business environment. The Group’s
comprehensive net profit for the year was RMB468,872,000,
representing a decrease of 50.4% as compared to the same
period last year. Apart from a decrease in gross profit margin of
sales of high-end watches and an increase in expenses arising
from higher labor cost and rental expenses, the decrease in net
profit was also attributable to the impairment provision for shares
of Ming Fung Jewellery Group Limited (“Ming Fung Group”) made
according to accounting standards after the share price of Ming
Fung Group plunged from the beginning of the year, and the
relatively substantial impact on the non-recurring gain from the
disposal of OMAS in 2012.

Financial status and net debt to equity ratio

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial position.

During the year under review, the Company issued senior notes in
principal amount of USD350 million which are due in 2018 and to
be settled in USD (“senior notes”).

During the year under review, the Company repurchased certain
convertible bonds which were listed on Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited on 22 October 2010 (“bonds”) by
way of market acquisition on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The repurchased bonds have been cancelled in
accordance with the terms of the convertible bonds.

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate principal amount of
the HKD settled convertible bonds due in 2015 issued by the
Company on 20 October 2010 was HKD95,000,000. Taking
into account of the net amount of such convertible bonds and
the senior notes of USD350 million, together with bank loans,
the Group’s total debt amounted to RMB4,050,886,000. As at
31 December 2013, the net debt to equity ratio of the Group,
including the bonds and the senior notes, was approximately
30.2%; including principal-guaranteed financial products and fixed
deposits, it was 28.5%. The directors of the Company believe
that such net debt to equity ratio is within a reasonable range.

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in financial and cash
management, managing bank credit availability and monitoring
risks of credit cost centrally in various ways. The Group
maintains a good partnership with a number of banks which
provide facilities, and reviews their funding liquidity and financing
requirements regularly.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Operating cash flow

During the year under review, based on its prudent and proactive
business objective and a market-oriented approach, the Group
continuously improved the inventory structure and enhanced
financial management while putting great efforts in developing its
businesses, so as to ensure a steady and healthy operating cash
flow, which has laid a sound foundation for the Company’s further
business development.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, HKD
and USD. During the year under review, the foreign exchange
movements of such currencies were managed properly.
Accordingly, the Group was not exposed to significant risks
associated with foreign exchange fluctuations.

The Group has been actively monitoring its foreign exchange risk.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had land and buildings and
investment properties of RMB434,591,000 pledged as security for
mortgage.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Current assets

During the year under review, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB9,981,439,000, comprising
inventories of approximately RMB6,328,722,000, trade and other
receivables of approximately RMB1,366,795,000, cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB2,185,922,000, and deposits
with banks of RMB100,000,000.

Current liabilities

During the year under review, the current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3,732,020,000, comprising
bank loans of approximately RMB1,354,737,000, trade and other
payables of approximately RMB2,358,545,000, and current tax
payable of approximately RMB18,738,000.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Capital structure

The Company’s capital structure is composed of issued share
capital, convertible bonds, reserves and accumulated profits. As
at 31 December 2013, the issued share capital of the Company
was 4,802,906,959 shares and the principal amount of the
convertible bonds due in 2015 was HKD95,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB76,104,000).

Material investment, acquisition and disposal

Save as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, there
was no other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and associated companies, nor was there any other significant
investment held by the Company during the year under review.

Final dividend

The Company recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB2.5 cents per share for the financial year ended 31 December
2013 in return for shareholders’ support, subject to approval by
shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on Friday,
16 May 2014. The proposed cash dividend will be paid on or
before Friday, 6 June 2014 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 21
May 2014.
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Il. Business Review

During the year under review, the Group’s business primarily
focused on the retail business development for internationally
renowned branded watches in Greater China with a core
presence in Mainland China and Hong Kong, supplemented
comprehensively by related customer services, packaging and
display products, brand distribution and e-commerce.

Retail network

Given no significant changes in retail market for watches
compared with last year, the Group continued to give priorities
to business restructuring and refined management to foster new
growth sources in 2013. Upholding the principle of “safeness”
and “seeking progress amidst stability”, the Group promptly
responded to market changes and actively adjusted the pace and
method in developing the retail network against the backdrop of
economic slowdown domestically and globally. Leveraging on
market adjustment, the Group also made great efforts to establish
more model outlets with high productivity by continuously
strengthening internal management, optimizing the management
mechanism of outlets, improving the performance of retail outlets
and reinforcing staff training. The Group also invested more
human and monetary resources in customer services by working
closely with brand suppliers to extend the coverage of its multi-
level comprehensive after-sale service network in Greater China
to pre-sale and in-sale aspects to provide consumer with greater
confidence and protection with an integrated pre-sale, in-sale
and after-sale service system. With all these strategies, the Group
managed to maintain satisfactory performance in total retail sales
which increased by 11.4% year-on-year to RMB9,978,633,000,
despite the uncertain market environment. Albeit with a milder
growth in average same store sales, the Group’s sales of middle-
end watches continued to expand in 2013 with a growth at 8.9%
as driven by the booming demands.
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Over the years, the Group has maintained sound business
relationships with many world-renowned watch brand suppliers,
including SWATCH Group, LVMH Group, RICHEMONT Group,
ROLEX Group, and KERING Group. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group was engaged in the distribution of over 50 international
brands from the above five major brand suppliers and other
independent watchmakers, including Breguet, Bulgari, Cartier,
Gucci, IWC, Jaeger-LeCoultre, Longines, Mido, Omega, Rolex,
Scatola del Tempo, TAG Heuer, Tissot, Vacheron-Constantin, Van
Cleef & Arpels and Zenith. During the year, the Group continued
to step up its efforts in bringing in and aligning middle-end,
middle-to-high-end and high-end brands in both Mainland China
and Hong Kong to optimize its brand portfolio, paving the way for
long-term business development and ongoing enhancement of

overall sales performance.

Our retail network spans across the Greater China region where
retail stores mainly include “Elegant”, “Prime Time”/“Hengdeli”
and certain single-brand boutiques. “Elegant” focuses on top-end
internationally renowned brands, while “Prime Time”/“Hengdeli”
mainly sells middle-end and middle-to-high-end international
brands. After effective expansion, adjustment and integration,
as at 31 December 2013, the Group operated a total of 470
retail outlets in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan,
representing an increase of 18 outlets year-on-year. Of these
outlets, 23 were “Elegant” outlets (5 in Hong Kong, 17 in
Mainland China and 1 in Taiwan), 381 were “Prime Time” and
“Hengdeli” outlets (338 in Mainland China, 7 in Hong Kong and 36
in Taiwan), and 66 were single-brand boutiques (29 in Mainland

China, 16 in Hong Kong, 1 in Macau and 20 in Taiwan).

Mainland China

The Group had developed a comprehensive and fully-fledged
network of retail outlets in Mainland China, with a heavy presence
in key regions including Beijing, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Jiangsu,
Henan, Shanxi, Hubei and Northeastern China where the
consolidation of its market share has been completed. Meanwhile,
the Group is expanding its shares in Southwest, Central and
South China as well as other regions to bolster its market

position.
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In order to cater for the actual demand of Mainland consumers
and complement the Group’s high-end watch business strategy
in Hong Kong, the Group deploys most of its retail resources
in Mainland China to “Prime Time” shops, which are positioned
to sell middle-end and middle-to-high-end watches. As at 31
December 2013, the Group had 384 retail outlets in Mainland
China, including 338 “Prime Time” shops. The Group’s “Elegant”
shops, which mainly sell high-end watches, have a relatively small
coverage in Mainland China, and no new shop was added in the
year. As at 31 December 2013, there were 17 “Elegant” shops
in Mainland China, most of which are located in the first tier
developed cities, such as Shanghai, Beijing, Hangzhou, Nanjing,
Shenyang, Chengdu.

During the year under review, demand for middle-end watches
was more obvious than that of high-end watches, steering
the Group toward a middle-end concentrated approach to re-
position and adjust the middle-end outlets with a view to further
expand and strengthen the retail network of middle-end watches
in Mainland China. New outlets have been set up in the regions
with the highest sales records, such as third and fourth tier cities
in Eastern and Northern China as well as emerging second and
third tier cities in Sichuan, Hubei and other regions, to seize
and secure the market shares. Meanwhile, highlighting the
solidification and improvement of revenue contribution from single
outlets, the Group intensified its efforts in streamlining outlets
in the first tier market and high-end watch retail market. As a
result of adjustment and consolidation, the Group recorded an
increase of 22 “Prime Time” outlets in Mainland China during the
year. Such initiatives helped to stabilize and increase the Group’s
market share in various regions in Mainland China. In response
to the changes in the Mainland market, the Group has completed
almost all targeted and phased consolidation, transformation
and adjustment of “Prime Time” shops and “With Time” shops,
allowing the Group to consolidate resources to secure and
explore the market for middle-end watches.
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During the year under review, the Group’s retail sales in Mainland
China recorded a slight decline of 0.5% from last year, mainly
attributable to the decrease in sales from high-end watches,
which was partially offset by an obviously higher sales from
middle-end watches with a growth at 8.9% year-on-year. The
accelerated urbanization process, rapid growth of second and
third tier cities and burgeoning middle class in Mainland China
have provided a favorable precondition for a sound growth
momentum of the Group’s middle-end brands. As a result, the
sales strategy of targeting at middle-end watches will still be the
developing direction of the Group in Mainland China within the
next few years.

Hong Kong and Macau

Sales of Elegant Hong Kong remained positively stable during the
year under review, which was attributable to advantages such as
the Group’s extensive, solid and loyal client base in Hong Kong,
the interaction between retail outlets in Mainland China and Hong
Kong, the favorable partnership with brand suppliers as well as
the comprehensive after-sale service network across the Greater
China region, ensuring after-sale guarantees for Mainland tourists
shopping in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded an increase of 1.2% in sales in Elegant Hong Kong, an
increase of 2.8% if excluding the impact of foreign exchange gains
and losses as compared to the same period last year, whereas
gross profit margin decreased because the Group allowed more
flexibility in discount offering in sales of high-end watches amid
subdued economic environment.

During the year under review, the Group opened a new multi-
brand “Elegant” shop in New Town Plaza in Shatin, one of the
top three shopping malls in Hong Kong conveniently located in
the center of the New Territories. Occupying a floor area of 2,139
square feet, the new multi-brand shop focuses on starter high-
end brands and certain middle-end brands, including Baume &
Mercier, Bell & Ross, Breitling, Bulgari, Chopard, Gucci, Hamilton,
IWC, Jaeger-LeCoultre, Montblanc, Piaget, Rado, TAG Heuer
and Zenith as well as Reuge and Scatola del Tempo, to cater for
the specific needs of the customers. The brand new positioning

boosted the sales of “Elegant” shops.
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To adapt to market needs, the Group repositioned its Elegant
shops in Hong Kong during the year by opening three single-
brand boutiques respectively for Jaeger-LeCoultre, Panerai and
TAG Heuer at the 8th floor in Times Square shopping mall. While
providing a larger shopping space, the new boutiques have a
close proximity to other multi-brand shops and single-brand
boutiques of the Group, allowing them to achieve synergism, to
form regionalization, and hence to create more sales value.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group operated a total of 21 retail
outlets in Hong Kong under “Elegant”s name, of which 5 were
“Elegant” shops that sell various brands and 16 were single-brand
boutiques or image shops. Currently, the shops operated by the
Group in Hong Kong are mainly located in prime districts such as
Tsim Sha Tsui, Central, Causeway Bay and Shatin.

The Group’s retail business in Elegant Hong Kong mainly focuses
on high-end brands, including Blancpain, Breguet, Cartier,
Chopard, Dewitt, Franck Muller, IWC, Jaeger-LeCoultre, Omega,
Panerai, Piaget, Vacheron-Constantin and Zenith as well as
independent watchmakers namely Christophe Claret, Heuge,
Scatola del Tempo. During the year, certain new brands such as
Richard Mille were introduced. The sales of such high-end brands
fully complemented our retail business in Mainland China and
Taiwan, thus creating tremendous synergy.

To adapt to the change in the mix of mainland visitors, the Group
also deployed multi-layer brand positionings in Hong Kong,
introducing certain middle-end brands in order to expand market
share and maintain its leading position in Hong Kong.

Benefiting from the increasing number of tourists and the
continuous improvement in management, the Omega boutique
in Macau achieved positive sales over the year under review.
Customers and sales increased as the shop image escalated after
renovation last year. The business in Macau is recuperating in
order to go full steam ahead. Along with the changing economic
conditions and improving economic status of Macau, the Group’s
businesses in Hong Kong and Macau will definitely achieve
synergism, further consolidating the Group’s leading position in
the region.
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Taiwan

The Group’s retail business in Taiwan is currently in the process
of network building and nurturing. Clinging to a similar sales
strategy as in Mainland China, the Group focuses on the sales
of middle-end and middle-to-high-end watches in Taiwan. The
Group operated a total of 57 retail outlets in Taiwan as at 31
December 2013, mainly located in prime districts including Taipei,
Taichung, Kaohsiung, Hsinchu and Chiayi. Except for one “Elegant”
shop which sells top-end watches and certain single-brand
boutiques, all other retail outlets are “Hengdeli” shops which sell
middle-end and middle-to-high-end watch brands like Certina,
Hamilton, Longines, Rado, TAG Heuer and Tissot.

During the year under review, the sales in Taiwan remained steady
and held the line of last year. Currently, the target consumers
in Taiwan are mainly local customers. However, as the cross-
strait business relations and the economic ties among Mainland
China, Taiwan and Hong Kong become closer, it is expected that
an increasing number of Mainland tourists will travel to Taiwan,
creating new opportunities for Taiwan’s retail industry.

E-commerce

As mobile Internet is increasingly penetrating into traditional
business models, e-commerce platform is bound to become
an integral part of a modern enterprise in the Internet age. As
authorized by the brand supplier, the Group began to set foot in
online retails in cooperation with certain brands, and opened the
first single-brand flagship store during the year. During the “11
November” event in the year, the store was added to favorites
over 14,000 times and the sales amount also turned out very
good. The established O20 interactive sales platform is believed
to become a new driver to the Group’s development in a new
economic era.
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Customer services and maintenance

The provision of “advanced technology, online warranty, efficient
management and considerate services” is one of the assurances
delivered by the Group to our customers and brand suppliers.
The Group has been delivering all-round services to customers
through an interactive customer service network consisting of
“repair and maintenance service centers”, “repair service stations”
and “repair service points” and provides the most convenient
and tailor-made services to customers by way of warranty in the
Greater China region including Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Taiwan. The service hotline 4008 acts as the Group’s centralized
service channel for the general public, offering timely advice and
providing customers with assurance and confidence.

T

As the number of brand suppliers increases and given
the unfavorable retail condition in global markets, brand
suppliers have put more emphasis on the integration and
comprehensiveness of their brands’ global services. Aside from
the existing after-sale services, the Group capitalized on its sound
services and expertise to broaden and deepen the cooperation
with these brands during the pre-sale and in-sale stages. During
the year under review, in respect of customer services, the Group
successively signed watch maintenance agent agreements with
International Luxury Group and Eterna Group. As of now, the
Group has become the maintenance agent for 65 internationally
brands, of which 48 brands have engaged the Group as their
exclusive maintenance agent. During the year under review, the
Group worked closely with SWATCH Group to provide pre-sale
services for Tissot and other watch brands distributed by the
Group. Such cooperation is expected to expand further.

High-calibre maintenance technicians have been the foundation
of the Group’s customer services. During the year under review,
the Group dispatched selected maintenance technicians to attend
overseas training courses on a regular basis, and maintained
good partnerships with brand suppliers in Switzerland and watch
maintenance technical schools in foreign countries like Sweden
and Japan, so as to secure consistent supply of high-calibre
maintenance technicians. Also, to support the Group’s retail
expansion in second and third tier cities, the Group organized
maintenance technical training courses in and around these cities,
with overseas senior technicians in charge of course planning
and teaching, so as to provide strict training for the front-line
maintenance technicians in a timely and phased manner. As a
result, the Group’s high-level customer services on par with the
international standards are guaranteed.
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Furthermore, the Group established the “Tang’s Studio” operated
by Mr. Tang, a National Model Worker in the service center at
Wangfujing, Beijing during the year. It is designed to provide a
close access to high level services and better interaction with
service staff, and hence a strong assurance for consumers.

Packaging and display products

During the year under review, the slumping global economy and
the fluctuation of RMB to Euro exchange rate dented the sales
of the Group’s packaging and display segment. However, the
overall business operation was in a robust momentum. During the
year, the number of brands and models available for sale were on
the rise constantly. New brands such as Fendi and Eterna joined
partnership with the Group, adding nearly 50 new models to our
product list. At the same time, the Group continued to strive
proactively for a more reasonable pricing system to guarantee the
overall interest of the packaging and display segment.

The packaging and display segment is seen as one of the profit
generators for the Group in the long run. As such, the Group
developed a new strategic goal during the year, under which the
Group repositioned and consolidated the segment by introducing
high-calibre industry players to jointly establish companies for
manufacturing watchcase, display and packaging supplies. This
move aims to build up a comprehensive and complete platform
to support the Group’s watch business and forge a new growth
base in the long run.

Brand distribution

In the brand distribution business, the Group has always sought
cooperation with brand suppliers in exploring the market,
leveraging on each other’s strengths to strive for a coordinated
division of labor in the integration of sale and supply. During the
year, the Group worked closely with brand suppliers to respond
to the changing market by streamlining and improving inventory
mix on a healthy and sustainable basis. At the same time, based
on joint market research, a number of schemes were developed
to provide retailers more comprehensive and thoughtful services.

The Group has maintained good partnerships with brand
suppliers and numerous retailers. Backed by their extensive and
tremendous support, the Group has achieved harmonious and
mutually beneficial development.

The Group has about 400 wholesale customers in over one
hundred cities across Mainland China. The Group distributes
and exclusively distributes world-known watch brands including
Balmain, Certina, CK, Hamilton, Mido and Tissot of SWATCH
Group, as well as Bulgari, TAG Heuer and Zenith of LVMH Group.
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lll. Social Responsibility and Human Resources

The Group adopts “respect, cooperation, innovation and
commitment” as its core values and the cornerstones for its
corporate management and social responsibility. The Group also
strives to improve the participation mechanism for stakeholders.
Through various channels including dialogues and actions in
concert, the Group seeks to understand their expectations and

appeals to improve mutual understanding and reach a consensus.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 8,130
employees in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. The Group
is always committed to developing and adding value to human
resources. The Group implements a standardized recruitment
system and allocates resources to various training programs
for the managerial staff, front-line service staff and maintenance
technicians. These training programs cover, among others, the
art of management, sales skills, brand knowledge and service
awareness, with an aim to enhance the knowledge, marketing
skills and service capability of our staff. The Group also works
with our brand suppliers on the provision of regular training to
front-line service staff and maintenance technicians in brand
knowledge and maintenance expertise.

The Group offers a competitive remuneration package and various
incentives to all employees, and regularly reviews the structure of
relevant mechanisms to cope with corporate development needs.
The Group granted options to the general management staff and
associates of the Company in recognition of their contributions to
the Group and as an incentive for their greater future commitment.
The Group also offers various welfares to the employees,
including pension plans, MPF plans, insurance schemes, housing
and meal allowances. Details of the remuneration package and
other benefits are set out in the financial statements.

Under a solid human resources reward system, the Group can
attract and retain a number of senior sales persons and senior
repair technicians. Also, certain staff members were awarded the
“Capital Labor Medal” and the “May 1st Labor Medal”.
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The Group actively implements the concept of a “paperless”
office, using an online OA system to improve its administrative
functions. Environmental protection is one of the top priorities
for the Group’s sustainable development. During the year,
subsidiaries of the Group’s industrial segment were in strict
compliance with national regulations. Reports on pollutants were
submitted to environmental authorities regularly as required. All
pollutant emissions including sewage and gas passed the annual
inspection and the monitoring results met the national standards.

Over the years, the Group as the largest imported watch retailer
group in the world has maintained sound business relationships
with many world-renowned watch brand suppliers, including
SWATCH Group, LVMH Group, RICHEMONT Group, ROLEX
Group and KERING Group. During the year, the Group was
engaged in the distribution of over 50 international brands from
the above five major brand suppliers and other independent
watchmakers. Subsidiaries of the Group’s industrial segment
carried out strict quality control processes on products in line with
national quality standards, which fully guaranteed the interests of
clients and consumers.

As a pacesetter in the timepiece industry, the Group extended
active presences in public welfare activities in addition to its
efforts in delivering business interests and brand value. The Group
has conscientiously made contributions to education, healthcare,
sports and other welfare undertakings through its donations to
Community Chest of Hong Kong, Po Leung Kuk of Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Red Cross and Huangpu District Government of
Shanghai.
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IV. Outlook

We have higher expectations for 2014. Despite the challenges
ahead for corporates amid uncertainties in the global economy,
we believe that opportunities will come along with challenges in a
new era. With the Chinese government’s commitment to stabilize
economic growth and its advocacy and practices focusing on
increasing the quality and effectiveness of economic growth, we
believe that an innovative and solid economy is ahead to provide
the Group new opportunities and a favorable backdrop for its
development in the long run.

In the coming year, the Group will adhere to the market-oriented,
customer-centric and service-driven approaches, seeking
transformation and progress amidst stability based on its prudent
and stable operations. Specifically, the Group will continue to
prioritize its resources in middle-end brand operations in order
to deepen the refined management, improve the operation and
expansion systems, and upgrade quality of outlets and image of
retail brands for the steady business growth. Continuous efforts
will be also made in improving allocation of human resources,
the information management platform, etc. In Hong Kong, the
Group will integrate its competitive resources to further improve
the multi-level distribution system and adjust the layout of retail
outlets, so as to reinforce the synergy among outlets to create
better results.

Moreover, under its new strategy for the new environment, the
Group will speed up the construction of its e-commerce platform
and seek 020 sales interaction subject to authorization of
brand suppliers; build up and improve the business platform for
packaging and display products related to watches; and further
expand the scope of customer services to build it into a new profit
generator while serving the Group’s retail business. The Group
will seek all-round progresses in a practical manner to ensure its
stability and sustainability in pursuit of greater social responsibility
and value additions for shareholders and the community.
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The Directors of the Company have pleasure in presenting this
annual report together with the audited accounts of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company

The Group is engaged in the retail and distribution of middle-
to-high-end consumer goods including internationally renowned
watch brands, related customer service and manufacturing of
packaging and display products.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company which
materially affect the results, assets and liabilities of the Group are
set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserve

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company was RMB2,426,595,000, which is set
out in Note 31 to the financial statements in this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Company recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.025 per share for the financial year ended 31 December
2013 in return for shareholders’ support, subject to approval by
shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on 16 May
2014. The proposed cash dividend will be distributed on or before
6 June 2014 to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 21 May 2014.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Financial Summary

The summary of the Group’s results and balance in the last five
financial years (for the year ended 31 December) are set out in
page 57 of this annual report.
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Purchase, Sale or Repurchase of Securities

During the year under review, the Company repurchased
26,160,000 listed shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited by way of acquisition from the market. The total
consideration paid was HKD69,152,000. Upon the completion of
the settlement of such repurchase, the Company has cancelled all
repurchased shares.

During the period under review, the Company repurchased
certain convertible bonds on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited by way of acquisition from the market. Such
bonds were listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited on 22 October 2010. The total consideration paid for the
repurchased bonds with principal amount of HKD2,405,000,000
was HKD2,480,983,000. The repurchased bonds have been
cancelled in accordance with the terms of bonds. As at 31
December 2013, the Company had bonds with principal amount
of HKD95,000,000 remained outstanding.

During the period under review, the Company capitalized
approximately HKD2,183,139.525 in the share premium account
and made a bonus issue of 436,627,905 bonus shares in
aggregate in the proportion of 1 bonus share for every 10 shares
held by qualified shareholders.

During the period under review, the Company issued USD settled
6.25% senior notes due in 2018 in the aggregate principal amount
of USD350 million which were listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 30 January 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,802,906,959 shares. The Company had
HKD95,000,000 convertible bonds outstanding, which were listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited on 22
October 2010.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities at the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Share Option Scheme
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A share option scheme was adopted by the Company to grant ZRA SRR EETE] > AR T2 L HEER PR
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their  # : {EAHZ AANEBVES B2 2B SR -

contributions to the Group.

Details of the options granted by the Company are as follows:

Options granted in 2011

BREARAROBEEREZFEWT

e - i

Number of
options lapsed
in accordance Percentage of
Closing price of with the Number of  the number of
the shares Number of Number o terms of the options  options in the
immediately Number of options options options or the outstanding total number
before the ~ options as at exercised cancelled  share option as at of issued
Exercise price  date of grant 1 January during during  scheme during 31 December shares of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) (HKD) 2013 the period the period the period 2013 the Company
BaRE
gk BRERT 20135
Rt A 20135 2 gRRETE 128318 BREHA
i3 RAYHE 15182 BnE HEBRE KuEnE HATRN HRARERA
REARZ RiLAH it (B%) (%) EREHA BhEHE €] L E] EREHE HER
Directors - - - - - - - - - -
EE
Other eligible 30 September 2011 30 September 2014 to 2.66 271 3,350,000 - - 2,100,000 1,485,000 0.031%
participants 29 September 2016 (Note1)
AMAERSERE  01159A308 201459A308F (it1)
2016597297
Total 3,350,000 - - 2,100,000 1,485,000 0.031%
it
Note 1: As the Company had issued bonus shares during the period &7 : AR RN B EEE EBITALAR - FEREARIER 2

under review, adjustments were made to the exercise price

s
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under the Share Option Scheme. Details please see the

announcement of the Company dated 23 May 2013.
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As of 31 December 2013, the total number of shares in issue was
4,802,906,959 shares and the total number of outstanding share
options was1,485,000 shares.

Directors

The names of directors during the year 2013 are as follows:

Zhang Yuping, Huang Yonghua, Lee Shu Chung Stan, Shi
Zhongyang, Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai William, Liu Xueling.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of
the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors for a term of three years. The Company
did not enter into service contracts that cannot be terminated
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation) within one year. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, no Director has entered into any service agreement with
any member of the Group.

Directors’ Material Interests In Contracts

Save as described in this annual report, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company or its subsidiaries, its controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries and any of its Directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during the Year under
review.

Remuneration of the Directors and the Five
Highest Paid Directors/Employees

Details of remuneration of the Directors made in accordance with
specific basis during the Year under review are set out in Note 7
to the financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the five highest paid individuals during
the Year under review are set out in Note 8 to the financial
statements.
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Details of remuneration of the senior management during the Year
under review are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

The remuneration policies of the Group are as follows:

- The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the
employees is determined according to their relevant
experience, responsibilities, workload and years of service in
the Group;

- The non-monetary benefits are determined by the Board and
are provided in the remuneration package of the Directors or
the employees;

- The Directors and the eligible employees shall be granted
with options of the Company as determined by the Board to
be part of their remuneration package.

Employee Retirement Benefit Scheme

Details of the Group’s employee retirement benefit scheme are
set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s biographies
is set out on pages 42 to 45 of this annual report.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or Any of Its
Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of each
of the Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant to the
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:

X WREFLRERANERIORR)
EQ'JFﬁ%it‘ﬁ"ﬂ§$tﬁ?é%?&%E’JT?"&
TRBAMANRNE MR s oA RN

FARE LT
SFRIRTE -

Approximate

Name of Directors Nature of Interest Number of shares Percentage
EEHE EmME ROHE KNEDL
Mr. Zhang Yuping Controlled Corporation and Personal (Note 1) 1,520,528,501(L) 31.66%
SRIF 7E A FrizEsl A a RAEA(HaE1)

Mr. Huang Yonghua Personal 32,256,800(L) 0.67%
EKERA A

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares.
Note 1: Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share capital
of Best Growth International Limited (“Best Growth”), which
in turn held 1,467,160,901 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2013. During the Year under review, Mr. Zhang
Yuping held 53,367,600 shares of the Company under his
name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping holds 1,520,528,501
shares of the Company in aggregate, representing 31.66% of
the issued share capital.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company

As far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2013, the
interests or short positions of the persons, other than Directors of
the Company, in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:

Name of Shareholder

[LIREKREBATRBRMDIZE 2R °
BfaEt R R EHEA EEEEAR AR ([EH])100%
MBHITRAEA MEBR-ZZE—=F+=A=
+— BB AR A1,467,160,9010% 15 : K F
%iﬁé@%ﬁiﬁﬁq%ﬂA%%%ﬁL’i“ﬂﬁ&ﬁ
53,367,6000% ° i » REFREARBTEAR
f%171,520,528,501/% - (HE TR AHI31.66% °

TEREHEALARRY - HERY RE
*énaZ&ﬁJl&l" =

RESEHAE R_T—=F+_-A=1+—8 RE2
At~ AR REEETRERIEREZ R PE G J

33615 RARBATHFE ZELMAREERZHE
RKREMAT(ERRARZEERINAT ¢

Fm%

@k

Number of shares  Approximate Percentage

RERHEE RIDEE HEDL
Best Growth (Note 1) 1,467,160,901(L) 30.55%
=18 (Arat1)

Mr. Zhang Yuping (Note 1) 1,520,528,501(L) 31.66%
SRH S A (HTaET)

The Swatch Group Hong Kong Limited (Note 2) 987,800,000(L) 20.57%

The Swatch Group Hong Kong Limited(f:£2)
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Name of Shareholder Number of shares  Approximate Percentage
RERHEA R EE HEIHE
The Swatch Group Limited (Note 2) 987,800,000(L) 20.57%
The Swatch Group Limited(/7:£2)
LVMH Watches & Jewelry Hong Kong Limited (Note 3) 20,354,400(L) 0.42%
LVMH Watches & Jewelry Hong Kong Limited(/7#£3)
TAG Heuer SA (Note 3) 20,354,400(L) 0.42%
TAG Heuer SA(H7:£3)
TAG Heuer International SA (Note 3) 20,354,400(L) 0.42%
TAG Heuer International SA(#1z+3)
LVMH Asia Pacific Limited (Note 3) 285,582,000(L) 5.95%
LVMH Asia Pacific Limited(#7#%3)
Sofidiv SAS (Note 3) 305,936,400(L) 6.37%
Sofidiv SAS(47:#3)
LVMH SA (Note 3) 305,936,400(L) 6.37%
LVMH SA(f17#3)
CW HDL Limited (Note 4) 220,960,699(L) 4.60%
CW HDL Limited(#73%4)
Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP (Note 4) 28,548,000(L) 0.59%
Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP(#f7:14)
Chengwei Evergreen Management, LLC (Note 4) 249,508,699(L) 519%
Chengwei Evergreen Management, LLC(f7:14)
EXL Holdings, LLC (Note 4) 249,508,699(L) 5.19%
EXL Holdings, LLC(ffi#4)
Li Eric Xun (Note 4) 249,508,699(L) 5.19%
Li Eric Xun(f7z#4)
Li Zhu Yi Jing (Note 4) 249,508,699(L) 5.19%

Li Zhu Yi Jing(#t5#4)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares. [LIRKXEBATRAEGEE ZFE
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

38

Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share capital
of Best Growth International Limited (“Best Growth”), which
in turn held 1,467,160,901 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2013. During the Year under review, Mr. Zhang
Yuping held 53,367,600 shares of the Company under his
name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping holds 1,520,528,501
shares of the Company in aggregate, representing 31.66% of

the issued share capital.

Among these 987,800,000 shares, 550,000,000 shares were
held under the capacity of security interest owner instead of
effective interest owner. These 987,800,000 shares were held
in the name of and registered in the capacity of The Swatch
Group Hong Kong Limited as a beneficial owner. The entire
issued share capital of The Swatch Group Hong Kong Limited
was beneficially owned by The Swatch Group Limited. The
Swatch Group Limited was deemed to be interested in all the
shares held by The Swatch Group Hong Kong Limited under
the SFO.

Among these 305,936,400 shares, 20,354,400 shares are
held in the name of and registered in the capacity of LVMH
Watches & Jewelry Hong Kong Limited and 285,582,000
shares are held in the name of and registered in the capacity
of LVMH Asia Pacific Limited. LVMH Watches & Jewelry
Hong Kong Limited’s entire interest is owned by TAG Heuer
SA, and TAG Heuer International SA beneficially owns 100%
interest in TAG Heuer SA. Sofidiv SAS beneficially owned
100% interest in each of TAG Heuer International SA and
LVMH Asia Pacific Limited. LVMH SA owns 100% interest in
Sofidiv SAS.

As disclosed by the relevant shareholder, 28,548,000 shares
out of the 249,508,699 shares are held in the name of and
registered in the capacity of Chengwei Evergreen Capital,
LP and the other 220,960,699 shares are held in the name
of and registered in the capacity of CW HDL Limited.
Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP owns 93.88% interest in
CW HDL Limited. Chengwei Evergreen Management LLC
owns 1% interest in Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP.; EXL
Holdings, LLC owns 31.7% interest in Chengwei Evergreen
Management, LLC; and Li Eric Xun (spouse of Li Zhu Yi Jing)
owns 50% interests in EXL Holdings, LLC.
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Arrangement to Purchase Shares of Debentures

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the 12 months ended 31
December 2013 was the Company, its holding company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enabled the
Directors (including their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age), to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or subsisting during the Year under review.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the Year under
review attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers
are as follows:
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The Swatch Group Limited and LVMH Group, through their
respective subsidiaries, constituted two of the five largest
suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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ERFHEE

Connected Transactions

During the Year under review, the Company had no transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Company for the Year under
review have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Since 9 July 2004, being the date of incorporation of the
Company, there have been no changes in our auditors.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 14
May 2014 to Friday, 16 May 2014 (both days inclusive) to confirm
the Register of Members who are eligible to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting. In order to establish entitlements to
attending and voting at the annual general meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 13 May 2014.

The Register of Members will be closed on Thursday, 22 May
2014 to Monday, 26 May 2014 (both days inclusive) to confirm
the Register of Members who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend. In order to establish entitlements to the proposed
final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 21
May 2014.
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Disclosure of Information on the Websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange

An annual report for the year ended 31 December 2013
containing all the information required by Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules will be dispatched to shareholders of the Company
and published on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange in due course.

Acknowledgement

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to express our
sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their continuing support
and to all our staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group during the Year under review.

General Information

As at the date of this report, the executive Directors are Mr.
Zhang Yuping (Chairman), Mr. Huang Yonghua and Mr. Lee Shu
Chung Stan, the non-executive Director is Mr. Shi Zhongyang,
and the independent non-executive Directors are Mr. Cai Jianmin,
Mr. Wong Kam Fai William and Mr. Liu Xueling.

By Order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014

Report of the Directors
EHEEHRSE

EARMEREEBBIMAGREER

HELTRAMBI6MREN—ER  BE-F—
=F+ A=+ -BLEFEZREREFTETARAR
R WARNBEERRTER AR BB BB
ufy o

NS

EEHNRERB BN E - ENRNS NI UK
RS AEEEEETROEEENARERNE 2SN
MERR -

—REIR

RABEAS  ARTHERENTEFRAT L
HTEFHAERERTHBLE  FNTEELME
Stk BUBTERERRSL  EREALRIE
Bk -

EEEZMD
FE
RIS

BE —E—NWF=ZA-1+HAH

SRR AT IR 4
B — SR

41



Directors’ and Senior Management Biographies

RO PLE R

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuping (alia, Cheung Yu Ping) (R¥i¥), aged 58, is
the chairman of the Board and executive Director of the
Company. He is the founder of the Group and is in charge of
the Group’s strategic development and overall management.
He has nearly 30 years of experience in the middle-to-high-end
consumables distribution industry for the PRC market.

Mr. Huang Yonghua (E7k %), aged 43, is an executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of the Group’s
business co-ordination and operational supervision. Mr. Huang
has nearly 20 years of experience in the watch distribution
industry in the PRC and in management.

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan (Z#f &), aged 54, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible for
overall coordination and management of the Group’s retail
business and the Group’s brand distribution business. He
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Arts from a university, and has
pursued further studies in respect of Business Administration.
He has over 25 years of experience in watch manufacturing and
distribution.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongyang (£ 19F5), aged 39, is a non-executive Director.
Mr. Shi graduated from Nanjing University in the PRC and
University of Goetting in Germany with a master’s degree in law.
Mr. Shi joined The Swatch Group Limited in 2000 and joined
the Group in 2006. He is currently a legal counsel of the legal
department of The Swatch Group Limited.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin (£22£[R), aged 70, is an independent non-executive
Director. He graduated from the industrial accounting faculty (L
¥ @5t XK) of Shanghai College of Finance and Economics (/&
B4 E2BT). Mr. Cai holds a certificate for professional accountants
(R EE R EFSE in the PRC. He had held senior financial
management positions for various companies including Shanghai
Hualian (Group) (£ 8 %= B (% E)). Mr. Cai joined the Group in
2005.
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Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William (Z#%#&), aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from University of
Edinburgh, Scotland with a bachelor’s degree and a doctorate
degree in electrical engineering. Mr. Wong is currently a professor
in the Department of Systems Engineering and Engineering
Management in the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
obtained the qualification as a Chartered Engineer (CEng) in 1991,
and is now a member of the Institute of Electrical Engineers and a
professional member of the Association of Computing Machinery.
Mr. Wong joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. Liu Xueling (2I2228), aged 56, is an independent non-executive
Director. He graduated from East China Normal University in
Shanghai with a doctorate degree in history. At present, he is a
senior lawyer in Shanghai Tongyan Law Firm (/8@ 2 M=),
He joined the Group in 2007.

Senior Management

(Hengdeli Group and Shanghai Xinyu as mentioned below
represent our major holding subsidiaries — Hengdeli Group Limited
and Shanghai Xinyu Watch & Clock Group, Ltd. respectively)

Mr. Song Jianwen ((R#EX), aged 61, is the vice president of
Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of
internal audit and control of the Group. Mr. Song graduated from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (FF & B & BUE A E2)
with @ master’s degree in economics. Mr. Song has more than 20
years of experience in finance and accounting.

Mr. Chen Sheng (FREE), aged 49, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group. He graduated from Fudan University in Shanghai with a
master’s degree in business administration. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in 2007 and is responsible for investment of the Group.

Mr. Zhuang Liming (§£3288), aged 60, is the vice chairman of
Shanghai Xinyu. Mr. Zhuang graduated from Beijing Institute of
Foreign Trade (At RHMNEEERT). Before joining the Group in 2000,
Mr. Zhuang had worked for PRC Light Industry Commodities
Import and Export Company (47 B #8 T 22 3 H O 4212 7).
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Directors’ and Senior Management Biographies
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Mr. Lee Wing On, Samuel (ZK%), aged 49, is the vice president
of Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2006 and is
responsible for the Group’s retail business in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
has over 20 years of experience in the watch retail industry and
management in Hong Kong.

Mr. Zhang Xingen (3R ¥T#R), aged 69, is the vice president of
Shanghai Xinyu. He joined the Group in 1999 and is responsible
for customer services activities. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Zhang was a director of Shanghai Yimin Commercial Company
Limited (/&= REERQA).

Ms. Tan Li (% B8), aged 49, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group and secretary to the Board. Ms. Tan graduated from
Nanjing Normal University (R HI#5XE%) with a master’s degree
in Arts. She joined the Group in 2001. Before joining the Group,
Ms. Tan taught at the branch colleges of Peking University in
China. Since Ms. Tan joined the Group, she has been engaging in
work related to the secretary to the Board of the Group.

Mr. James Cheng (&t ), aged 49, is the vice president of
Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2010 and is responsible
for high-end customer services work. Mr. Cheng obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Science. Before joining the Group, he was
the deputy president of Rado watches of SWATCH Group in
China, the general manager for watches and jewellery of LVMH
Group in China, and the chief executive of Fendi watches in Asia
Pacific.

Ms. Li Xiangrong (Z=[E14§), aged 41, is the chief financial officer of
Hengdeli Group. She joined the Group in 2010. Ms. Li graduated
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (/& Bf 4%
KE) and Shanghai International Studies University (L/&49NEE
Ft) majoring in international accounting. She holds a bachelor’s
degree in Economics and a master’s degree in Executive
Management Business Administration (B EE A8 T EIERE
=+) from China Europe International Business School (FF Bt EIR i
20t). Ms. Li is a member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA) and The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Before joining the Group, she was the financial
controller of Unilever China.
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Mr. Lin Gang (¥ #), aged 48, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group. He joined the Group in 2013 and is responsible for
human resources management and information management
of the Group. Mr. Lin graduated from Beijing Foreign Studies
University with a master’s degree, and obtained an MBA degree
from Fordham University in New York, the U.S. Before joining the
Group. Mr. Lin served as the President and Managing Director of
consulting business for Greater China region of Mercer, a human
resources management consulting firm. He also worked in Deloitte
Consulting and Motorola.

Ms. Catherine Lin (#f£425), aged 55, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group. She joined the Group in 2013 and is a consultant for
Mainland China retail business of the Group. Ms. Lin graduated
from National Chengchi University in Taiwan with a bachelor’s
degree in Arts. Before joining the Group, she was the vice
president for Taiwan and China region of CK Watch & Jewelry.
Ms. Lin has nearly 20 years of extensive international management
experience in distribution of middle-to-high-end watches and
other luxury goods.

Mr. Guan Qijun (B%5
business in Mainland China of Hengdeli Group. He joined the

&), aged 43, is the president for retailing

Group in 2000 and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
of watches in Mainland China. Mr. Guan graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology (¥ ER/& T % X&) with a bachelor’'s degree
in electronic precision machinery (& F#E=##), and has over 20

years of experience in watch industry.

Mr. Ng Man Wai, Peter (5230 {&), aged 43, is the company secretary
and financial controller of the Company. Mr. Ng graduated from
the University of Toronto with a bachelor’s degree in commerce.
He joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Ng is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA).
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Corporate Governance Report
ol SRR 4

Introduction

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practice to
ensure transparency of the Group’s management, such that the
interests of our shareholders, customers, employees as well as
the long term development of the Group can be safeguarded.
The Group has established the Board, an audit committee,
a remuneration committee and a nomination committee that
are up to the requirements as being diligent, accountable and
professional. KPMG has been appointed as the Group’s external
auditors.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Directors are
of the opinion that the Company complied with the Corporate
Governance Code except for a deviation from the provisions
A.2.1 during the period under review. Given the existing corporate
structure, the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer
have not been separated, and both are performed by Mr. Zhang
Yuping. Although the roles and duties of the chairman and chief
executive officer have been performed by the same individual,
all major decisions would only be made (where applicable) after
consultation with the Board. There are three independent non-
executive Directors in the Board. All of them possess adequate
independence and therefore the Board considers that the
Company has achieved balance of power and provided sufficient
assurance for scientific decision-making.

Composition of the Board

To maintain a high level of independence and objectivity in
decision making, and to exercise its power of supervising the
management of the Group in a comprehensive and equitable
manner, the Board comprises three executive Directors (Messrs.
Zhang Yuping (Chairman of the Group), Huang Yonghua and
Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan), one non-executive Director (Mr. Shi
Zhongyang) and three independent non-executive Directors
(Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling).
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To ensure the Board operates in an independent and accountable
manner, the three executive Directors have been assigned with
different responsibilities within our operation. Mr. Zhang Yuping,
the Chairman, is in charge of the Group’s overall management
and strategic development, while Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan is in
charge of the overall business operation of the Group, and Mr.
Huang Yonghua is responsible for coordination and supervision.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
professional expertise and extensive experience in the areas of
accounting, economics, law, computing control and management,
and business administration respectively. We believe the
independent non-executive Directors can adequately act for the
benefits of our shareholders. Their respective terms of office are:

Cai Jianmin: 26/9/2011-25/9/2014;
Wong Kam Fai, William: 26/9/2011-25/9/2014;
Liu Xueling: 1/6/2013-31/5/2016.

One non-executive Director has professional expertise
and extensive experience in the areas of law and business
administration; he can offer supervision to the daily operation, and
provide corresponding opinions and recommendations in a timely
manner. We believe the non-executive Director is beneficial to the
standardised operation of the Company and the safeguard of the
interests of our shareholders. His name and terms of office are:

Shi Zhongyang: 15/2/2012-14/2/2015.

Duties of the Board

The Board of the Company is responsible to the general
meetings and performs the following major duties: report duties
to the general meetings; execute the resolutions of the general
meetings; determine investment solutions and profit distribution
solutions of the Company; formulate solutions as to increase or
decrease of the registered capital of the Company, draft solutions
in respect of the split-up, consolidation, alteration and dismissal
of the Company, appoint and dismiss the general manager of the
Company and determine his remunerations.

Corporate Governance Report
(e Jogliki e

RERESSEFABYIMLEENE  Z2RTESES
FEETRNTIFHE  EFERRFTEAaREERRE
ERNERER FTHIALLAEEEBRBELNE
& MEKELERNE R R -

AR

—RBIIFRTEENRESS B GER
BHREERTHERNBAEEXNR N EZ LR -

EEFMHRATRROER - HEHD RIS -

R : 26/9/2011-25/9/2014 :
HERHE © 26/9/2011-25/9/2014 :
2IETE : 1/6/2013-31/5/2016 °

—HIFMTERNER N IHERS T HESEXANE
REERR  HARARAFELRIES - I MEFRD
HiAEE RN EE - ANRARNREERERRER
Rtz - HNEAERR

SAHE5 : 15/2/2012-14/2/2015 °

EEEHRE

ARBEEGHBRREAE  TEATEERE - AKX

BHMELIE  MITRRGHPRE  RERAMKRET
ERFBEDES R BIERRIE MR EMEARNTT
BOBEQARDY A BF  MESHER BEM
FRES N RIARIE R E H R ERIRSE -

AR P AT PR T

47



Corporate Governance Report

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during the
Year under review, the Board formulated the terms of reference
on the corporate governance duties and performed corporate
governance duties in accordance with the terms of reference. To
be specific, the Board mainly performed the following corporate
governance duties during the Year under review:

o To review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° To review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
directors and employees;

o To review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate and
sufficient information in a timely manner for their understanding of
the latest developments of the Group, which in turn supports the
discharge of their duties.

The management of the Company is responsible to the Board and
performs the following major duties: report duties to the Board;
execute the resolutions of the Board; and complete all the tasks
assigned by the Board.

Internal Control

In order to ensure the interests of our shareholders, apart from the
engagement of KPMG as the external auditor of the Group, the
Group also established departments dedicated to the supervision
of finance and business operation. Such departments conduct
audits and examination of all aspects and at all departments on a
regular and on an ad hoc basis, so as to enhance internal control
and ensure the sound development of the enterprise. The Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of our internal control system and
completed its annual review on this system. Further to reviews
made by independent review organisations of the internal control
system of the Group, the Group will continue to improve the
internal administration and control systems of the Company.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

48

hEECBENR  ESgRNBEFEARTEERR
f%lJaTT ﬁfaﬂﬁ&ﬁf%ﬁl CWIRRBESRE A ET T &
FERRE - ARRNE  EFENEBFERNTIZRET
TTE'JK%E/DH@&T :

WA BEERRREER

° EREENaRBEEABNEIRFBER
%?&JE’

. R MERCEEETEEREEATE L
IS

s RILEREZFNEBMNETER

o B ERENEEEATIDNERRE(EEE
AREINHKE

BRBSEERTEZER  UERET
R KMABRSEBITHRE -

ARREEEHEFEEAR  TEUATIZRE  ME
FERELIE QTEFTERE  THEFSTENS
TR

P ERE #2

RERBERN G - KREREFESHRSMEHARE

BSNERAZ BB S - BB FE SR B R B0 R S PP S B 7 B 5
BEER - ZFBITHE TN EH A EERESE

M~ BEPTETRE NES - UIRAEPEE - MR

ERFER EFSCEAASEAREZERARNEX
1 WERFEAHKERNTEZE RGOS - RIS
VEZHEHRERNREN R R ELRRE - ARE

SE-TTEARAN AR EIR AN EIEHIE -



Corporate Governance Report
(e Jogliki e

Attendance of the Directors at the Meetings EENEZHERR

In 2013, a total of five meetings were held by the Board. Further, R-Z—=f Al GEZBA E=e: S 887
an annual general meeting was held. The attendance of the —XBHEEAFAS SEFHEBEOT
Directors at the meetings was as follows:

Frequency of Frequency of
attendance at attendance at
the Board Rate of the general Rate of
meetings  Attendance Remarks meeting  Attendance Remarks
EZE8R REXE
Name e HERE HER (GE3 HERE HEE (B4
Zhang Yuping KT 5 100% 100%
Huang Yonghua HKEE 100% 100%
Cai Jianmin BEER 100% 100%
Wong Kam Fai, William =i%}8 100% 100%
Liu Xueling ko 100% 100%
Shi Zhongyang kRt 100% 100%
Lee Shu Chung, Stan  Z#i & 100% approval for 100%
appointment
at the general
meeting held
in May 2013
201355 AR
AERAEEE
Song Jianwen REX 3 100% approval for 1 100%
retirement at
the general
meeting held
in May 2013
2013E5 AR
ReftERE
Chen Sheng FREE 3 100% approval for 1 100%
retirement at
the general
meeting held
in May 2013
20135 AMRE
RE#ERE
Zheng Yu & 3 100% approval for 1 100%
retirement at
the general
meeting held
in May 2013
201355 AR
REHERE

N o o O O Ol
O UGGy

Members of the Board will be provided with appropriate and ZEFE&XESERISHEE MFTRER  UEERFT#
sufficient information in a timely manner for their understandings ASBEZ &HMER @ EMERFETHRE -
in the latest developments of the Group, which in turn supports

the discharge of their duties.
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Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introductory
session so as to ensure that he/she will gain appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his/her duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular
updates on the business development of the Group. The Directors
are continually updated on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements
to ensure compliance with and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices.

The Directors are committed to complying with provision A.6.5 of
the Corporate Governance Code on Directors’ training so as to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Year under review, the Directors attended
the relevant training in accordance with Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange and had provided the relevant records of training to the
Company. According to records, details of directors’ attendance
at the training sessions during the Year under review are as

PFEERER

BRFZEZETRERGN  URERKEREN L
MR IARBAZELEERATEHEZEAREZE
BREZBEREE - ARBEHERAEE 2 EZHE
R’ EETHEGAER LMRRIREMEREERE
ZEAER - WERTEMEFRICEERTR -

EEYNETREXERTRIRXALSZEFEI
NHERKREFAESSFELABRBENER - DBFE
N ARAFESDIRE M ETRAERET THE
B WERARBREABEEIGE - RIBLEE - A
TASEZNEEFERMMETNEIIER

follows:
Accounting/financial/
Updates on corporate governance, management and
laws and regulations other professional expertise
EER 25t 0% ER
SEBIER B REMEER A

Material Seminar/ Material Seminar/
reading training attending reading training attending
Name e ERIBE SEEE 5 ERIEE SEEE
Zhang Yuping SR E v v v/ -
Huang Yonghua FKE v/ v v -
Lee Shu Chung, Stan T & v v v -
Shi Zhongyang S {5 v v/ v/ -
Cai Jianmin BER v v v/ -
Wong Kam Fai, William =318 v v 4 -
Liu Xueling 2E2E v v v/ -
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Independence of the Board

The Board has received confirmation from all independent
Directors regarding their independence made in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
The Board considers that all current independent Directors have
met the requirements of the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange and remain
independent.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board of the Company had adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange as the Company’s own code for securities
transactions by its Directors. Following specific enquiry made by
the Company with all Directors, the Company has confirmed that
during the Year under review, all Directors of the Company had
complied with the standard as required by the code mentioned
above.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial reports of the Group.

The statement of the auditors of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
on page 58 of the annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The audit fee to be received by the auditors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 will be approximately
RMB4,190,000. During the Year under review, in addition to
auditing services, the Company’s auditor also provided the Group
with services such as taxation planning and due diligence. The
non-auditing service fees were RMB734,800 in total.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Messrs. Cai
Jianmin (Chairman), Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling,
with the primary duties of reviewing the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Company as well as material
extraordinary items, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, which included a review on the audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 interim report. The
Company has adopted and implemented the terms of reference
of the audit committee.

During the year, two meetings were held on 26 March 2013 and
29 August 2013 to review the annual and interim financial reports
of the Group respectively. All members of the committee namely,
Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling,
attended the meetings.

The audit opinions from the audit committee in respect of the
Group’s financial report for the year are summarized as follows:

The 20183 financial report of the Company is objective in all
material aspects, and gives a fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and the operating
results and cash flow in 2013. Despite the complex and volatile
economic environment, the Company has achieved favourable
growth in aspects such as turnover and gross profit of sales as
compared with the previous period, with administrative expenses
better controlled. The acquired business has also contributed to
mitigating operational risks, thus enabling the Company to achieve
remarkable performance. The audit committee has proposed to
the Company that proper attention shall be drawn to aspects
such as taxation optimization and the increase in distribution
costs.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the Year under review,
the remuneration committee comprises three Directors including
Messrs. Liu Xueling (Chairman) and Cai Jianmin, both of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Zhang Yuping,
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Group. The
primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and
other compensation payable to Directors and senior management.

One meeting was held during the year to review matters related
to the remuneration structure of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. All members, namely Messrs. Liu
Xueling, Cai Jianmin and Zhang Yuping, attended the meeting.

The Company has adopted and implemented the new terms of
reference for the remuneration committee. According to the terms
of reference for the remuneration committee, the remuneration
committee acts as a consultant regarding the remuneration
matters of the Directors and senior management of the Company,
while the Board retains the ultimate power to approve the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the Year under review,
the nomination committee comprises Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman),
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Group, and
independent non-executive Directors Messrs. Cai Jianmin and Liu
Xueling. The Company has adopted and implemented the new
terms of reference for the nomination committee. The nomination
committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and succession
planning for the Board.

One meeting was held during the year to review matters related to
the structure, size and composition of the Board of the Company,
retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors, as well as
formulation of board diversity policy and related measurable
objectives, and review procedures for achieving such objectives.
All members, namely Messrs. Zhang Yuping, Cai Jianmin and Liu
Xueling, attended the meeting.
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Summary of board diversity policy

To improve the performance quality of the Company, the Board
approved to adopt the board diversity policy on 29 August 2013.
The Board believes that board member diversity can be achieved
by considering various factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, expertise, knowledge, term of services and other
talents. All Board appointments are made with reference to the
Company’s business models and specific needs from time to
time, and candidates will be considered with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board if allowed by objective business
conditions. The nomination committee will be mainly responsible
for identifying suitable and competent candidates for board
members, and considering such candidates in light of objective
conditions. As a part of the review on the annual performance of
the Board, considerations made by the nomination committee will
balance the skills and experience as required by business targets
of the Company with diversity factors. To achieve board diversity,
the nomination committee will discuss and develop measurable
objectives from time to time, and propose the above to the Board
for adoption and implementation. Generally speaking, selection
of candidates by the nomination committee shall be based on a
range of diversity perspectives including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, expertise, knowledge and term of services. However,
the final decision will depend on the strengths of candidates and
their prospective contributions to the Board. The Board may
improve one or more diversity perspectives from time to time,
and implement the upgraded measurements. The nomination
committee will review the policy from time to time, including
conducting assessments on the effectiveness of the policy. The
nomination committee will also discuss any amendment that may
be necessary, and submit amendment proposals to the Board for
approval.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

54

EFEENESTILBRBE

ARRIRBEFARARNKRLER EFEGER_FT—=F
NAZTHBEBERMETERBZTIELBR - EFE
HEEFEREZTLAIEBERZTERNRER £
BETRMER - Fi - ERBEES - Bk - EF
ARG aE - MR RIBEBMREMTEE - EEEMA
ZEORBARBAZAFRRARITE ZHERE - X
EERAERUAXTBGRETOBEREFEKRESZT
femiEs - REZBERERZAERBES RBEEE
BEEERBEMNE  UREBHRHEEREENE - FR
BUEFEMENREFRARSN ) - BEEZES
HEBBERARAIEGBREROEE &R EZT
ERRFLFE - RERESTEKEZ L REERE
g TRAWEFRAGTEEEF  UMESFSRE - A
EEERANER - —RKH - REZEGEARE X
ZTEBREUENE - BREATRIMER - Fik - X
EEBEES Bk BEER W DRRRBIHETE
Hi o A » RICREREBOARABNRENAIRESS
TREER - EF AR TRSGE— A A L2tk A
B WIRHFEEE - RRZ B R TR AREK
BREUAERHORBIELFE - BRERBE TS EIHIE
ARBIEFLNER - BRAEFSRLERZRE  BEF
eEL -



Company Secretary

Mr. Ng Man Wai, Peter was appointed as the Company Secretary
in 2004. His biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management Biographies”. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Ng attended relevant
professional training for not less than 15 hours pursuant to new
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Rights of Shareholders

How the Shareholders convene Extraordinary General
Meeting and make recommendations at general
meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company, any one
or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The letter of demanding an Extraordinary General Meeting
mentioned above shall be sent to the principal office of the
Company stating the Board of the Company or the Company
Secretary as the addressee.

How to make enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send letters to the principal office of the
Company for any enquires stating the Board of the Company or
the Company Secretary as the addressee.
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Significant Changes on the Articles of Association

During the Year under review, there is no significant change to the
articles of association of the Company.

Investor Relations

The Company firmly believes the importance of effective
communication with the investment community and the
shareholders in attaining a high level of transparency in the Group.
Since its listing, the Group has maintained close communications
with the shareholders, mass media, analysts and fund managers
through various communication channels such as one-on-
one meetings, roadshows, seminars, press conferences, press
releases, telephone communications and emails. The Company
endeavors to provide accurate and timely information to the
investors, so as to enhance the understanding of our investors
about the status of the domestic luxury watch industry, as well as
the business development strategy and direction of the Group.

During the Year under review, the Group’s management held
regular and ad hoc meetings with different analysts and investors,
including the marketing campaigns on investor relations in
major financial centers such as Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai,
Singapore and Switzerland, and arranged nearly 100 investors
to join on-site visit to outlets in Shanghai, Hong Kong, Beijing,
Tianjin, Chengdu, Zhengzhou, Wuhan and Changsha. Besides,
the Group also held roadshows in various countries and regions,
including Hong Kong, Mainland China, Britain, Switzerland and
Singapore, so as to facilitate the investors from different countries
and regions to acquire a timely and in-depth understanding of the
Group.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a close
relationship with investors and boost understanding of
international investors of the Group so as to enhance investors’
confidence in the Group.
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Financial Summary

S 5 18t 2

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RESULTS ey —F—= —T——-F —T——F —=-TF ZTTNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Turnover SHEZE 13,375,443 12,120,448 11,375,280 8,215,643 5,899,422
Profit before taxation FADRA 673,355 1,230,982 1,198,139 815,663 513,755
Income tax Fris#t (204,483) (285,464) (279,863) (198,285) (127,662)
Profit for the year FEm A 468,872 945,518 918,276 617,378 386,093
Attributable to: e :
Equity shareholders PN/NECTISHRESZEDN
of the Company 400,421 855,153 814,919 553,989 364,809
Non-controlling FEIE AR i 2
interests 68,451 90,365 103,357 63,389 21,284
Profit for the year FEEREA 468,872 945,518 918,276 617,378 386,093
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
ASSETS AND 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
LIABILITIES EEHEE —E2—= —T——F —T——F T-ITF ZTTNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
Total assets BERRE 12,833,322 12,486,286 11,589,464 9,059,406 5,174,169
Total liabilities BE4RRE 6,649,156 6,572,444 6,258,797 4,413,725 2,050,092
Net assets BEFR 6,184,166 5,913,842 5,330,667 4,645,681 3,124,077
Total equity attributable AR B RMDEE A
to equity shareholders JEfh R R
of the Company 5,599,234 5,456,864 4,890,826 4,316,415 2,866,645
Non-controlling FEERR i
interests 584,932 456,978 439,841 329,266 257,432
Total equity AR 6,184,166 5,913,842 5,330,667 4,645,681 3,124,077
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Auditor’s Report
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hengdeli Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hengdeli
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 60 to 182, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility or the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2014

Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

»Vj? *E Al i%

for the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 =—F—=F+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN EE#251])

2013 2012
—E—-= —T——4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KtaF AREEF T ARETTT
Turnover SHER 3 13,375,443 12,120,448
Cost of sales SHE KA (9,731,808) (8,966,015)
Gross profit EF 3,643,635 3,154,433
Other revenue H At as 4 139,278 137,063
Other net (loss)/income Hih(EE) WAFE 4 (105,477) 80,215
Distribution costs 7 SHR AN (2,376,215) (1,551,963)
Administrative expenses THREA (326,654) (355,745)
Other operating (expenses)/income H &4 (B ), YA (5,583) 1,310
Profit from operations AR A 5(c) 968,984 1,465,313
Finance costs B RS AR AR 5(a) (291,074) (266,445)
Share of (losses)/profits FEMEEE 2 AR (E18) /S5 F
of associates 16 (7,805) 31,138
Share of profits of joint ventures JE(HE &R RlmA 17 3,250 976
Profit before taxation RRBE A a Al 5 673,355 1,230,982
Income tax FTiSH 6(a) (204,483) (285,464)
Profit for the year FERF 468,872 945,518
Attributable to: FEAL
Equity shareholders PN/ ) &)
of the Company BEA 400,421 855,153
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 68,451 90,365
Profit for the year FEEF 468,872 945,518
Earnings per share BRER 11
RMB/ AR RMB/ AR ¥
Basic HAR 0.0837T 01777t
RMB/ AR RMB/ AR ¥
Diluted e 0.0837T 0.1757C

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 31(o).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o 18 g B Al 42 i A\ 3

for the year ended 31 December 2013 B{Z = F—=%#+=H="+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA REZ21])

2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARETT AREFTT
Profit for the year FEEHN 468,872 945,518
Other comprehensive FEHM
income for the year 2EBA 10
ltems that may be reclassified BEf& AIREEFT D 1A
subsequently to profit or loss: EE&HCER
Exchange differences on translation #1881 #$R 5% FrEE 4
of financial statements ZEHZERE (31,181) 2,555
Total comprehensive income FEZH
for the year IR A #2258 437,691 948,073
Attributable to: AL
Equity shareholders PN )
of the Company FEA 369,240 857,708
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 2 68,451 90,365
Total comprehensive income FE2ME
for the year ON L 437,691 948,073

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these financial 56921828 ~ MBIt =015 RE — 2615 ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

% 0 W 5 IR Dt

at 31 December 2013 R=FE—=#F1+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN EE#251])

2013 2012
—E-=F —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HE ARETR ARETR AREBTT ARETR
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets EE&E 12
— Investment property —REME 242,704 255,342
- Other property, plant —HibthE - BE
and equipment P 1,452,763 996,586
1,695,467 1,251,928
Intangible assets BREE 13 109,793 111,599
Goodwill FEES 14 840,521 362,504
Interest in associates NN e 16 83,861 503,724
Interest in joint ventures REERA]Z 17 54,035 57,137
Other investments Hipig & 797 797
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 29(b)(i) 67,409 52,935
Other financial assets Hib B EE 18 - 335,350
2,851,883 2,675,974
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E 19 6,328,722 5,569,961
Trade and other receivables FEUTE 5 B Tk K2 EL fth FE U 18 20 1,366,795 1,369,112
Deposits with banks BITER 21 100,000 1,294
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHEZEY 22 2,185,922 2,869,945
9,981,439 9,810,312
Current liabilities PiEI=RET
Trade and other payables FERHE 5 BE Tk R H Ath B <t 018 23 2,358,545 2,163,049
Bank loans RITER 24 1,354,737 1,698,789
Current taxation KEEREAEFIE 29(a) 18,738 29,798
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 - 2,023,009
3,732,020 5,814,645
Net current assets MEEEFE 6,249,419 3,995,667
Total assets less BEERADER
current liabilities 9,101,302 6,671,641

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

o R T8 3R )

at 31 December 2013 R=—E—=%#+=-H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA B2 Z251])

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ez ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETRT

Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank loans RITER 24 460,814 561,540
Senior notes BEEE 26 2,159,231 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 76,104 =
Provisions Bt 30 94,344 145,944
Deferred tax liabilities ELENIEEE 29(b)(ii) 126,643 50,315
2,917,136 757,799

NET ASSETS BEEFE 6,184,166 5,913,842
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARHE
Share capital [ 31(c) 22,935 21,285
Reserves E4 5,576,299 5,435,579
Total equity attributable AT RGEEA

to equity shareholders FEfhRER

of the Company Fab] 5,599,234 5,456,864
Non-controlling interests FERER 584,932 456,978
TOTAL EQUITY P ARE 6,184,166 5,913,842

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZZT—WHF =8 -+ HAESESHERFETIE
25 March 2014.

Zhang Yuping Huang Yonghua SRET EKE
Executive Director Executive Director HITEE HiTEE

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these financial 9% 1828 v Wi B It Z B & hE—Z15 o
statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

B 5 5K Dt 2

at 31 December 2013 R=FE—=#F1+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN EE#251])

2013 2012
—E-=F —ZET——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HE ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries N IENEIP 2 15 4,458,074 4,459,150
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables e E 5 BR 5k e EL A R IUERIR 20 6,716 108,162
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRESEEY 22 338,786 17,205
345,502 125,367
Current liabilities piE =R
Trade and other payables ERNE S8R R E b fE R RIE 23 93,129 97,350
Bank loans RITER 24 78,620 171,484
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 - 2,023,009
171,749 2,291,843
Net current assets/(liabilities)  REEE (BE)FE 173,753 (2,166,476)
Total assets less HEERRBERE
current liabilities 4,631,827 2,292,674
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 24 350,075 422,123
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 76,104 =
Senior notes BEEE 26 2,159,231 =
2,585,410 422,123
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,046,417 1,870,551
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRfHE 31(a)
Share capital A% 22,935 21,285
Reserves ] 2,023,482 1,849,266
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,046,417 1,870,551

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

25 March 2014,

Zhang Yuping
Executive Director

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
3 WE A 5 B 3R

for the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —F—=F+=A=1—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA EREZ231])

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARMEE AL
Capital PRC Non-
Share Share redemption ~ Capital Exchange  statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
RAg hE

Bx  BibEE ORRE  EARE  ERRR OIERR  RERY it FEREE  RGRE
Nofe RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOD RMBIOOD RMBIOO0 RMBOOD  RMB0OO RMBOOO
Mt ARETR ARRTT ARMTR ARRTL ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2012 W-E--%
-B-RekH 21,309 2,709,508 34 71420 (168538 286,568 1,970,526 4,890,826 439,841  5330,667
Changes in equity for 20122~ —E-—EER%H:
Profit for the year R = = = = = - 895,163 856,153 90,365 945,518
Other comprehensive income At 2ERA - - - - 2,55 - - 2,55 - 2,555
Total comprehensive income FEMAER - - - - 2,555 - 855153 857,708 90365 948,073
Dividends approved in respect  HEBEEERE
of the previous year 31(b) - - - - - - (281,487)  (281,487) - (281,487)
Dividends to holders of AR ER
non-controling interests HAEAZIRE = = = = - - - - 0153 (91,534
Transfer between reserves e RER - - - = - 100612 (100612 - - -
Lapse of share options BRELN 28 - - - (40,082 - - 40082 - - -
Equity settled share-based WEREE B
transactions AETNTS 28 - - - 842 - - - 842 - 842
Purchase of own shares BEAAARG
- par valug -Hf (24) - - - - - - (24) - (24)
~ premium paid -BffEE = = = - - - (10,1000 (10,100) - (10,100
~ transfer between reserves -RE Y - - 24 - - = (24) = = =
Capital contributions from SRR E
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 4,600 4,600
Acquisition of a subsidiary YE-EHEAT = - - - - - - - 18fr 16627
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-AMEAT = = - - - - - - (1822 (1822
Acquisition of additional equity ~ MERKEBARZ
interest in subsidlaries BIE - - - (901) - - - ©o1) (1,099 (2,000
Balance at 31 December 2012 W=B-—%
and 1 January 2013 TZA=1-8k
“E-CE
-B-Bz&s 21,285 2,709,508 58 31,279 (165,983) 387,180 2473537 5456804 456,978 5,913,842

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these financial £69ZF 1828 v WiTB it 87z —5H ©

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
7 et 5 B 3% ()

for the year ended 31 December 2013 BZ —F—=F+=A=1—HIFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA EREZ251])

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARaERGEEARE
Capital PRC Non-
Share Share redemption ~ Capital Exchange  statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
fusH HE
B ROBE  ERE  EARE  ERRE  OIERE  RERH B FERER  BRER
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
fi# ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR
Changes in equity for 2013:  “E-=%EHEH:
Proft for the year EERT - - - - - - 400421 400421 68451 468,872
Other comprehensive income Et2ERA - - - - (28507) - - (28507) (2674 (31,181)
Total comprehensive income LENNEE - - - - (28507) - 40042 STM914 65777 437,691
Dividends approved in respect  HEBEEERS
of the previous year 31(b) - - - - - - (174651)  (174,651) - (174,651)
Dividends to holders of IGE IS
non-controling interests BEAZRE - - - - - - - - (63337)  (63,3%7)
Transfer between reserves fife 7 e - - - - - 21,799 (27,799) - - -
Equity setfled share-based WEREE R
fransactions LSTEY 2 - - - 324 - - (567) (243) - (243)
Issuance of bonus shares ahE 1,755 (1,755) - - - - - - - -
Purchase of own shares EERAARS
- par value e (105) - - - - - - (105) - (105)
- premium paid -Bf1%fE - - - - - - (5547 (55472 - (55472
- transfer between reserves ~feE FER - - 105 - - - (108) - - -
Repurchase and redemption of B REETHRES
convertible bonds - - - (58,116) - - 58,116 - - -
Acauisition of subsidiaries WEHBAT - - - - - - - - 134152 134,152
Capital contributions from FERERTA
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - 28,000 28,000
Acquisition of additional equity — WEEHHEBAR)
interest in subsidiaries LEONRE - - - 927 - - - 97 (36638  (35711)
Balance at 31 December 2013 W=F-=%
tZR=t-H
k3 22,935 2,707,753 163 (25,586) (194,490) 414979 2,673480 5,599,234 584,932 6,184,166

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these financial Z569Z 1828 2 MBItk FH HHRK —2B (5 -

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

oo Bl i B AR

for the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —F—=F+=A=1—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA EREZ231])

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HisF ARETT AR®BTR ARBTT ARET:R

Operating activities KRS
Cash generated from operations ‘& EFT{SH % 22(b) 648,346 621,928
Income tax paid BEFEH (237,681) (375,984)
Net cash generated from REFHMERETFE

operating activities 410,665 245,944
Investing activities REES
Payment for the purchase of BAETEEENR

fixed assets (120,076) (433,751)
Proceeds from disposal of HEETEEEMSGHE

fixed assets 5,725 3,086
Payment for the purchase of BARFEENTK

intangible assets (6,321) (22,416)
Proceeds from disposal of HEM B A BFE IR

subsidiaries - 38,018
Proceeds from disposal of HE—HBE AR EHRE

an associate 38 15,724 600
Payment for the acquisition of U B8 FE I 28 2 1T X

non-controlling interests (35,711) (2,000)
Payment for the purchase of WESIE ETHIRE 2 5K

unlisted investments (31,448) (184,541)
Decrease in deposits with banks  $R1TEZR D 1,294 25,899
Increase in deposits with banks R T1Z 2L AN (100,000) (1,294)
Payment for purchase of bank EEIRTEMEMRTRK

wealth management products 4 (2,110,405) (2,720,000)
Proceeds from settlement of bank FAZ|ERRS 45 & SR1TIRE &

wealth management products FTiS 508

upon maturity 4 2,110,405 2,720,000
Interest received B UH S 65,213 64,544
Payments for acquisitions of WHEMTB AR 2 3 Bk

subsidiaries, net of FEHEE

cash acquired 33 & 34 (302,826) (39,736)
Dividend received from EUIE EMIRERE

unlisted investments 37,542 -
Net cash used in REZHMERESFE

investing activities (470,884) (651,591)

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these financial $69% 1828 Z MiztE L EH HmE —=h1H ©

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

% 0 B 4B Ui AR (80

for the year ended 31 December 2013 BZ —F—=F+=A=1—HIFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA FR#271])

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat ARETT AR®Tn ARBTT ARBTR

Financing activities METE
Capital contributions from R T E

non-controlling interests 28,000 4,600
Proceeds from new bank loans IR ITE RS IE 3,348,961 3,165,124
Repayment of bank loans BRBITER (3,659,574) (3,284,119)
Proceeds from senior notes, BEERMSHIA

net of transaction costs HIBRRZ Z AN 26 2,158,949 -
Payments for interest on BEEEN B

senior notes 26 (67,685) -
Payment for repurchase and ARSI E NN

redemption of convertible

bonds 25 (1,981,065) (48,844)
Payment for interest on AR ES T AR

convertible bonds 25 (46,632) (50,672)
Other borrowing costs paid BN EMEERA (81,891) (164,026)
Payment for purchase of BEADARMBHR

own shares 31 (55,577) (10,124)
Dividends paid to equity BERARRRROEFEEAZRE

shareholders of the Company 31 (174,651) (281,487)
Dividends paid to holders of DI ERIE A A ZIRE

non-controlling interests (63,337) (98,870)
Net cash used in METHMERE TR

financing activities (594,502) (768,418)
Net decrease in cash and ReRBeESENRHL FE

cash equivalents (654,721) (1,074,065)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HzRERELZEY

at 1 January 22(a) 2,869,945 3,943,810
Effect of foreign exchange INEEREEHE

rate changes (29,302) 200
Cash and cash equivalents Rt-A=+—-HzEE

at 31 December RBEEEEY 22(a) 2,185,922 2,869,945

The notes on pages 69 to 182 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSSs),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Exchange”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SA 5 2% B wk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income

° HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

o HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

° HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
o HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

° Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period with
the exception of the amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment of
assets — Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets,
which modify the disclosure requirements for impaired non-
financial assets. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, but as permitted by the
amendments, the Group has adopted the amendments early.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The above developments resulted in changes in accounting policy
but none of these changes in policy have a material impact on the
current or comparative periods.

Impacts of the adoption of other new or amended HKFRSs are
discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements-
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit
or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of
other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in these financial
statements has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group
has chosen to use the new titles “statement of profit or loss” and
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” as
introduced by the amendments in these financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation —
Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model
to determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and the ability to use its power to affect the amount of
those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has
control over an investee. The adoption does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in joint ventures,
divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures.
Entities are required to determine the type of an arrangement by
considering the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other
facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations
under the arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified
as joint operations under HKFRS 11 are recognised on a line-
by-line basis to the extent of the joint operator’s interest in the
joint operation. All other joint arrangements are classified as joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 and are required to be accounted for
using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. Proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed as
an accounting policy choice.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 11, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to its interests in
joint arrangements and re-evaluated its involvement in its joint
arrangements. The Group has reclassified the investment from
jointly controlled entity to joint venture. The investment continues
to be accounted for using the equity method and therefore this
reclassification does not have any material impact on the financial
position and the financial result of the Group.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured
entities. The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those previously required by the respective
standards. To the extent that the requirements are applicable to
the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 16
and 17.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable
to the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes
12, 28 and 31. The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any
material impact on the fair value measurements of the Group’s
assets and liabilities.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to five
standards with consequential amendments to other standards
and interpretations. Among them, HKAS 1 has been amended to
clarify that an opening statement of financial position is required
only when a retrospective application of an accounting policy,
a retrospective restatement or a reclassification has a material
effect on the information presented in the opening statement of
financial position. The amendments also remove the requirement
to present related notes to the opening statement of financial
position when such statement is presented.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Presentation and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that
covers similar financial instruments and transactions, irrespective
of whether the financial instruments are set off in accordance with
HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on
these financial statements because the Group has not offset
financial instruments, nor has it entered into a master netting
arrangement or similar agreement which is subject to the
disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(0), (p) or
the liability.

(9) depending on the nature of

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 5% #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
1(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(0).

(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating

policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. The investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see notes 1(f) and (I)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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S 5 ¥ o Bt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (-5 & +5855) - B5ELUN EEEAESLT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates and joint venture are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 5% #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1(l)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest earned on
these investments as these are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out in notes 1(v)(iii) and (iv).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 1(l)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial
Dividend
income from equity securities and interest income from debt

position at cost less impairment losses (see notel(l)).

securities calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out
in notes 1(v)(iii) and 1(v)(iv), respectively. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt
securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note
1(l)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified
to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(k)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 1(v)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(k)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 1(k).

()  Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1())).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(x)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5855 » 5N BB (EE )
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Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained profits and is
not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
less their estimated
if any, using the straight line method over their

items of property, plant and equipment,
residual value,
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

= Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful life, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements 1-5 years
- Motor vehicles 5-10 years
- Office equipment and other fixed assets 3-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SA 5 2% B wk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and
an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable (see note 1(x)). Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 1(l)).
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other development expenditure is

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(l)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Agency rights and patents 5-10 years
Trademarks with finite useful life 5-10 years
Software licences 5-10 years
Favorable lease term acquired in a business combination 28 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Intangible assets (other than gooadwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

The fair value of patents and trademarks acquired in a business
combination is based on the discounted estimated royalty
payments that have been avoided as a result of the patent or
trademark being owned.

The fair value of favorable lease term acquired in a business
combination is determined based on the present value of the
estimated lease payments using quoted market prices for similar
leases and the present value of the leases payments of the
acquired business.

(k) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SA 5 2% B wk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ([ 5B #5855) » BEEAN B (EE L)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write
off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(i). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(l). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 1(h)).

() Impairment of assets

()  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SA 5 2% B wk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

()
()

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined

and recognised as follows:

86

For investments in associates and joint ventures accounted
for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(g)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with note 1(l)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1()(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SA 5 2% B wk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)

()  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

= investment property;

- other property, plant and equipment(other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in
the Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SA 5 2% B wk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

= Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(l)(i) and 1(I)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business combination is
determined based on their estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of sale, and a
reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to complete
and sell the inventories.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
1(l), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

(o) Convertible notes and derivative financial instruments
()  Convertible notes that contain an equity component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for
as compound financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured as the present value of the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to
the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the
capital reserve is released directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o) Convertible notes and derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

(i) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
At the end of each reporting period, the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(o) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

()  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ([ 5B #5855) » BEEAN B (EE L)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

()  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the binomial lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(t) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ([ 5B #5855) » BEEAN B (EE L)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t)  Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t)  Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
()  Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 1(u)(ii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or were
not present obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with note 1(u)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 5% #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

()  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are handed over to individual
customers at retail outlets or delivered at the wholesale or
corporate customers’ premises which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v)  Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(v)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the
date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign entity, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale,

are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing

costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a

qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset

is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and

activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended

use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs

is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities

necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.

(i

(ii)

(i

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a Group of
which the other entity is a member).

S 5 ¥ o Bt

 BEUAREIEEN)

1- ?EH-I-Eiﬁ(Z

x) EEKA

B  ERILEEFEEEREES JARAERE
RENHENEERRKBBNEERE - HEMERZ
BEKA 2 — 87 - HEERANIREENHEER

BRAEEREERAN BN ZEERANDIRNEEZRAX

EL BERAEENEREEERARLRERERH
ERBEZERTIFETHRIGEANL - MABESEMR

BERAEMEMAGNHEMT L BEHARR LR
HERE - RIE R L HEERAERL -

V) FBEr

(@ M—BALHFE TGS  AZALT(HZALR
FERAEFRK B ) BEAEE A E

() Tk HFEFIAREE

(i) HAEEEERTE : 3k

(i) BAKBHIARESRAREIEEEABSHKE -

) MHEBTIER  —HEREEAEERSRE

EREAKERF-—SENKE(AE—REA
CMERRRFERMEARMEERE)

Elliﬂﬁ

i —FHEBBS—HE R%E’] EREIRELERNFI(E
EES S 2A Rk o TW BATE HPS
RERRZEEKE) -

;5%

AR A R

ety 101



Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 5% #5855

1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

1 0 2 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

P BEUAREIEEN)

1. EEFHBR®E

) [BHET (&)

() fHHIETEER
(&)

(i) MEEBREAER—BFE=ZFHNEERT -

vy —HEEBAF=-AETENALEATINE—EEA

TIAARGEEXAREFEER S m AR
RNEEFIHE -

S
il
] ?E’\E

(vi) ZERBHE (@B A TIEHIZERES -

(i) B@OHEMATHZEER
(XBZEENRAR])TE E.@)\EE’]EXE °

BARIRRERBIERPAIAZEAALRBRETRS
RIELEE  HXZBEAFENOREKE -

@ D EbERE

S BRIBREMEROSHNEE € - HIRE
ﬁEM§ﬁ%$EIR%%&m@“%&ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
THIRHTAEESSEEBASNIBERMETE

AYBHEMS - BRHERLESHBIEHRE2H K
L FN HBEA ROV BRI REE R RRFIEE -
HERFIEE - FRBRSER] - 5 HE SR HARES
FrER AT =\ M ESE IR A T E AR o B 5132 3E 88
BEANKEDBHAAREE LAKBHE - RIATERES
.

mE}



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

2. Accounting judgement and estimates

Notes 13, 14, 16, 20, 28, 33, 34 and 36 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to intangible
assets impairment, goodwill impairment, impairment of equity
interests in associates, trade and other receivables impairment,
fair value of the embedded financial derivatives, fair value of share
options granted, fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
relating to purchase price allocation calculation for business
combinations, and fair value of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and investment property are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
values. The management reviews the estimated useful lives and
the residual values of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful lives and the
residual values are based on the historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods will be adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and distribution costs. These estimates are based
on the current market conditions and the historical experience of
distributing and selling products of a similar nature. Management
reassesses the estimations at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ Ak Wit

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

2. Accounting judgement and estimates (Continued)

(c) Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The management
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of these
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

3. Turnover and segment reporting

(@) Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are retail and wholesale of
watches and jewellery.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to customers,
net of value added tax and is after deduction of any sales
discounts and returns.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenues.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (/% 55 #5855

3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography (mainly in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Taiwan).

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the following
five reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

o Retail segments (includes three segments for watches retail
in Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong and one segment
for jewellery, watches and duty free commodities retail in
Hong Kong): given the importance of the retail division to the
Group, the Group’s retail business is segregated further into
four reportable segments on a geographical and products
and services basis, as the divisional managers for each of
these regions report directly to the senior executive team. All
segments primarily derive their retail revenue through their
own retail network.

° Wholesale segment: this segment distributes numerous
world renowned brand watches in Mainland China and Hong
Kong.

()  Segment results and assets

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the following basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments. However, other than
reporting inter-segment sales, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including sharing of assets, is not measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ Ak Wit

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5575 #5855

3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(1)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “gross profit”.

Segment results and assets (Continued)

Segment assets represent inventories only, without eliminating the
unrealised inter-segment profits.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as

P BEUAREIEEN)

3. HEHERSTHE

(b) _\/3 %fff(ﬁm
() DEREBEREEE)
ARERD IR RT N A EF] -

]

DEEEERETE - WAMBRARER 2 DRERN -

HA - AERAKRERSETREEABRENERD

provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for e RO ERIDIMEHRNEE 2 HD BEREHIMT o
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the period is set out below.
Retal
£
Mainland China Hong Kong Taiwan Harvest Max Wholesale Allothers Total
el i e g i fast fat
013 212 013 012 013 12 2013 12 2013 12 013 2012 013 012
Z%-zf Bk CR-zf “BCE CR-Tf 3ok CR-cE “FckF CR-cE CFofF CE-SE CRCF BT CE-
RMBOO0 ~ RMBOOO  RMB'OO0 ~ RMBOOD  RMB'00 ~ RMBOO0  RMB'O0  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0 ~ RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBIOOD ~ RMBIOOO
MEETTL ARETm ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARMTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Revente fiom PR
extemal customers gl 5508929 5627803 3151948 3130 206454 24612 1021302 - 118244 094747 278566 230206 13375443 12,12048
Inter-segment revenue AEkE - - - - - - - - 2631246 307573 - 115 2631246 3,076,801
Reportable segment 2ot
IeVene s 5508929 BTG 3151048 3M3M0 26454 24612 1021302 - 57440 6000483 278566 240411 16006609 15,197,339
Reporable segmentproft ~ EHAEF 1ardt 105137 683102 7h3042 63649 69187 73584 - 36667 33131 86,952 88986 3643635 3154433
Reporable seqmentassels  SRATAE SIS0 2968170 1507122 13115 2094% 2310 120298 1291340 1016385 66766 63681 639889 5693201
Harvest Max Holdings Limited (“Harvest Max”) carries out ZaiZEREBRAF([EEDARBEBNEHRE « EHEER

jewellery, watches and duty free commodities retail business in

Hong Kong.

Results and assets of the segment below the quantitative
thresholds are mainly attributable to a watch repairing and
maintenance business, a packaging and decoration business,
a watch case manufacturing business, a hotel business, and a
property management business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 ¥ o Bt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 #5855) + BEBUAN M (EELT)
3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3. HEBEERDHERE)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) HELZ# (%)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues and profit (i) 2#85 Zbilizs R 1B ¥ iR
or loss
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue s ARET T AREET T
Total revenues for R EpBU
reportable segments 15,728,123 14,956,928
Revenue for other segments EAth oy e 278,566 240,411
Elimination of inter-segment revenue & 545 2h 5 Uz (2,631,246) (3,076,891)
Consolidated turnover FaiHERE 13,375,443 12,120,448
2013 2012
—E—= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
Profit il ARETT ARETTT
Total profit for reportable segments 2 5 3045 7 3,556,683 3,065,447
Profit for other segments Hfth 9 265% 7] 86,952 88,986
3,643,635 3,154,433
Other revenue Hih s 139,278 137,063
Other net (loss)/income E b (i) WA FE 5 (105,477) 80,215
Distribution costs PARIzIDWN (2,376,215) (1,551,963)
Administrative expenses 1THEHR (326,654) (355,745)
Other operating (expenses)/income H i () WA (5,583) 1,310
Finance costs B TSR AN (291,074) (266,445)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates JE(LEEL AT (EE), % H) (7,805) 31,138
Share of profits of joint ventures FE(EE Z AT RF 3,250 976
Consolidated profit before taxation LA BRTLRDE A 673,355 1,230,982
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ Ak Wit

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues and profit
or loss (Continued)

3. HEBHESHBER®)

(b) DEEEZH(E)

(i) B EW R IR iy E R ()

2013 2012

—E2-= —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

Assets BE ARBET T AREETIT
Total assets for reportable EWMHHBEE(FE)

segments (inventories) 6,330,121 5,629,520

Assets for reportable ERHOBEE(FE

segments (inventories) 66,768 63,681
Elimination of unrealised 88 A B 38 5 2B e F)

inter-segment profit (68,167) (123,240)

6,328,722 5,569,961

Trade and other receivables FEULE 5 BR T R L th e Uk 7008 1,366,795 1,369,112

Deposits with banks RITHER 100,000 1,294

Cash and cash equivalents HeRHSZEY 2,185,922 2,869,945

Non-current assets EMBENEE 2,851,883 2,675,974

Consolidated total assets e BEE 12,833,322 12,486,286

(i) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets, goodwill, interest
in associates, interests in joint ventures and other investments
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case
of intangible assets and goodwill, and the location of operations,
in the case of interest in associates, interests in joint ventures and
other investments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 ¥ o Bt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3. HEHEERSHER®
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEZ#H (&)
(i) Geographic information (Continued) (i) R ER(E)

The Group’s business is mainly managed in three principal ZAEBFEE=(AFBLEMWE @ BIPEAM - FEL
economic environments, Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. BEHEITETS -

2013 2012

—E-= —E——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue from external customers REEEF R ARET T AREFTT
Mainland China Fh ] (A 3t 8,948,022 8,721,505
Hong Kong and Macau BB KR 4,220,967 3,181,545
Taiwan & 206,454 214,612
Others Hih - 2,786
Total st 13,375,443 12,120,448
2013 2012

—E—= —E—_—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

Specified non-current assets BEFRBEE ARBETT ARET T
Mainland China [ A 3t 1,855,985 1,470,991
Hong Kong BB 697,759 567,796
Taiwan =) 230,066 248,561
Others Efb 664 341
Total wst 2,784,474 2,287,689
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ Ak Wit

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

4. Other revenue and net (loss)/income 4. Hipd R (EE) WNBEHE
2013 2012
=F-—= —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Other revenue HAet s ARBTT ARBTT
Interest income B2 A 64,992 65,130

Dividend income from FELEFREZREWA

unlisted investments 34,977 37,542
Government grants AT B 15,753 13,578
Rental income HBWA 9,300 10,420
Others Hih 14,256 10,393
139,278 137,063
The Group purchased certain bank wealth management products AEER —ZE—=FRRTEEE TENER(2EH

from banks, all of which were principal-protected, with a total
principal amount of RMB2,110,405,000 during 2013 (2012:
RMB2,720,000,000). By the end of 2013, all of the principal and
interest relating to these products had been received and the
Group had recognised a total interest income of RMB35,626,000

on these products (2012: RMB32,680,000).

BRAER) A& BFEAARY2,110,405,0007(=
T—_—4F: AR#2720,000,0007T)c HE-_T—=
FE  flZSEM2E2HA2BRASHEKE -
SERERF UM A BT A RK35,626,0000(=ZF—=
F : AR#¥32,680,0007T) °

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Other net (loss)/income Hi(F8) WA FE ARETT ARET T
Impairment loss of interest in an associate —EH& A & 2 xR EE B
(note 16) (HizE16) (87,893) (74,058)
Gain on disposal of an associate (note 33) & —FIEE& A B2 Wiz (f1:33) 4,487 515
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz Kz - 122,247
Gain on deemed disposal of BIELEEMITE 7 Wt
other investment - 17,463
Net foreign exchange gain HNIE BRI ES R R 25,540 16,063
Net loss on disposal of property, HENE  BELEEFER
plant and equipment (4,124) (3,237)
Changes in fair value of embedded RAXERITETAERAAREEZS
financial derivatives - 1,222
Net loss on repurchase and redemption  B& [0 [ & [0 Al iR (& 5 2 R B8 (M1 3£25)
of convertible bonds (note 25) (43,487) -
(105,477) 80,215
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5. Profit before taxation

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 ¥ o Bt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) Finance costs

5. BRBLADEF

BRBBDE FIEMER GEA)ATHEB RS

(a) BIERAK

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Interest on bank loans wholly ERAFAZHEENRITERFE
repayable within five years 82,434 160,919
Interest on other loans HERHF B - 4,290
Interest on convertible AR ES R F B (HFE25)
bonds (note 25) 69,185 92,900
Interest on senior notes (note 26) BREZENR B (H7726) 130,759 =
Bank charges IR1TEH 8,696 8,336
Finance costs BIi5E FH 291,074 266,445
(b) Staff costs (b) BITALAK
2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Contributions to defined contribution  F 24t FUE AT E|H 5K
retirement plans 92,992 79,584
Equity-settled share-based payment  LA#E2S 45 & 0 DARRAD BfE S ~f
expenses (note 28) 2R 5 (M1at28) (243) 842
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMFZ 640,267 591,965
733,016 672,391
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ Ak Wit

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B #5855) + BEEUN RIE(EE )

5. Profit before taxation (Continued) 5.

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

FEFRE T ()

BRI ATRMAEMG, GEA)ATIHB &G (E):

(Continued):
(c) Other items (c)
2013 2012
—E-=F —FT——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFTT
Amortisation of intangible assets BiHET AR 10,402 5,634
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEETNE 127,471 107,105
Impairment losses/(reversal) BIEETE(BE)
— trade and other receivables — B E 5 IR 5K R E A FE UK IR 5,583 (1,310)
— interest in associates (note 16) — R E R Rz e (fE16) 87,893 74,058
93,476 72,748
Net foreign exchange gain YN H AU 2855 25,540 16,063
Operating lease charges in respect ML EHEE R
of properties
— minimum lease payments —EHERKE 299,550 237,957
— contingent rents — oA E 496,092 503,988
795,642 741,945
Auditors’ remuneration % EREN N & 4,190 4,070
Rental income from REZREMZEHS A
investment property 7,042 7,399
Cost of inventories FERKA 9,731,808 8,966,015
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6. Income tax in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 ¥ o Bt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

6.

(@)

RERBERZMEHR

BB XAZHER

2013 2012
—E—= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Current tax ZNHAR 18
Provision for Hong Kong profits KEERBFSHERE
tax for the year 63,038 76,084
Provision for Mainland China R [Z R B R HE AT 1S B A
income tax for the year 152,471 180,353
Provision for Taiwan and REEEENBPIFTEHEE
Macau income tax for the year 882 2,491
Under-provision in respect of BEFEBRETR
prior years 1,933 2,155
Sub-total NEF 218,324 261,083
Deferred tax IEAER 18
Origination and reversal of TR R EA RO (fE29)
temporary differences (note 29) (13,841) 24,381
Sub-total N (13,841) 24,381
Total st 204,483 285,464

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the

Company is exempted from income tax in the Cayman Islands.

In addition, subsidiaries located in jurisdictions other than Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Macau, are not subject to any

income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2013 is calculated at
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the

year.

PRISHL © EIN
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B 5 ¥ Ak Wit

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

6. Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (Continued)

The applicable income tax rate of the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiaries is 25% in 2013 (2012: 25%).

The provision for Taiwan income tax for 2013 is calculated at
17% (2012: 17%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year

end.

The provision for Macau income tax is calculated based on

6. GEBEERZEHR®)

(@) HFREBRmANIHEAR (&)

M-T—=4 » REBE TR B D T E MBS
REEW(ZT——4F : 25%) °
—E-=FHER

17%(ZF——F :

BREBENERGTERFRERN 2
17%)a+:%; °

BREZEHEBREUABE TS =F+_A=+—H1t

progressive rates up to 12% and the assessable profits for the FE ZERF GAIEREEI2% (T ——F : 12%)Z
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 12%). RETERAH -
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) I B 1ZEBH KA E 2 @55 7
profit at applicable tax rates: HAE -
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Profit before taxation B 54 A& A 673,355 1,230,982
Notional tax on profit before taxation, KRFRIEA) 2 ZF=FIE -
calculated at the rates applicable to &AM aLEER
profits in the jurisdictions concerned &A@ A Rt & 201,200 290,723
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEASHRKA Z BIEE (11,669) (27,922)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses “~A] %45 & 2 5 18 o7 28 4,163 7,119
Under-provision in respect of BEFERENT
prior years 1,933 2,155
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 2k 32 2 T 18 918 2 i 18 57 25 8,856 13,389
Actual tax expense ERHEMS 204,483 285,464

1 14 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 ¥ o Bt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

7. Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

7. EEME

REEERFGIE161EARECEEHWT

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

Directors’ and other benefit
Fee benefits plans Total
E = 21 ERER
EE-¥ikn REMER AR #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET AREF ARBTT
(note 27)
(HfiF27)
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE-E—=F+-A=t+—HIEE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhang Yuping REITRE - 5,929 13 5,942
Mr. Song Jianwen REXKE
(resigned on 15 May 2013) (RZ2—=FRA+HAFMT) - 1,120 13 1,133
Mr. Huang Yonghua BEKELAE - 3,255 - 3,255
Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan TRALAE
(appointed on 15 May 2013) (R=Z—ZFRA+HAEZME) - 1,631 12 1,643
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Sheng fRE L L
(resigned on 15 May 2013) (R=ZE—=FRA+HHEE) 1,052 - 12 1,064
Ms. Zheng Yu HHu+
(resigned on 15 May 2013) (R=Z—=FRA+HHEE) 29 - - 29
Mr. Shi Zhongyang SSRGS A& 79 - - 79
Independent Non-executive BYFBITES
Directors
Mr. Cai Jianmin ERRAE 39 - - 39
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William EIRELE 79 - - 79
Mr. Liu Xueling 22\ 39 - - 39
Total M=t 1,317 11,935 50 13,302

AR A PR ]
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

7. Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 7. EEME®)
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement
Directors’ and other benefit
Fee benefits plans Total
e EEh RINEF
EEYEn R E A EH FrEIER aEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARETTT
(note 27)
(fiz£o7)
Year ended 31 December 2012 BZ_Z——HS+-A=t—-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Yuping SR AE - 3,960 11 3,971
Mr. Song Jianwen REN LA - 1,190 33 1,223
Mr. Huang Yonghua mAKELA - 1,774 - 1,774
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. Chen Sheng FREEE A 1,111 - 11 1,122
Ms. Zheng Yu 15 gean 81 - - 81
Mr. Shi Zhongyang LHBGEE 81 = - 81
Independent Non-executive BUEHITES
Directors
Mr. Cai Jianmin EEREE 41 - - 41
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William =iREL A 81 - - 81
Mr. Liu Xueling FETLE 41 - - 41
Total 4=t 1,436 6,924 55 8,415
Save as disclosed above, no directors’ remuneration has been B EXFREEIN BE-_ZT—="FEF T ——F+—
paid or is payable by the Group during the years ended 31 B=+—HI-FEE « ZN& B &8 F 0 O ok fE 2 S

December 2013 and 2012. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the two years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were
no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8 below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

1 1 6 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 #5855 -

8. Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2012:

one) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2012:

four) individuals are as follows:

S 5 ¥ o Bt

BEUNREEEN)

8. mE#mAL

TEAERFALES ME(ZT——F: —R)RE
FOHHMRMETRE  HBt=R(ZF——F: @0

FIANLTZHBEE T

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

Salaries and other emoluments e REMHE 6,903 7,718
Contributions to retirement RONEFET SR

benefit plans 43 56

Bonuses 1EAL 58,259 68,882

Share-based payments LARS 9 S &9 5/ E (194) 503

65,011 77,159

The emoluments of the three (2012: four) individuals, other than
directors, with the highest emoluments are within the following

BEReMEr=%(ZF——F : M)A (EEH

SN 2 e F TS E

bands:
2013 2012
—Eg—= —ET——F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
HKD BT A AL
Nil = 1,000,000 £ - 1,000,000 - =
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 1
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 3,000,001 - 3,500,000 - 2
3,500,001 — 4,000,000 3,000,001 - 4,000,000 1 -
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 4,000,001 - 4,500,000 1 -
74,500,001 — 75,000,000 74,500,001 - 75,000,000 1 -

86,000,001 - 86,500,000

86,000,001 — 86,500,000

R P R R A R 1 1 7
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

9. Profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of RMB213,374,000 (2012:
RMB120,384,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for

9. ARARBEEAEBGLZH

AR OHEEARBESEZINBREEREAREK
213,374,0007c (= Z— — 4 : AR¥120,384,0007T)

ERARBMBEHRRPIIR

it SRR B F R M B

the year:
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T AREFTT
Amount of consolidated loss AR R Bk TR IE IR (D58 AFE(L
attributable to equity shareholders IR RS
dealt with in the Company’s
financial statements (213,374) (120,384)
Dividends from subsidiaries BT ERFEERANEG ZMBATRE
attributable to the profits of the RERE RIR
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year 678,725 121,613
Company’s profit for the year KR BFRE A (HTaE31 (@)
(note 31(a)) 465,351 1,229

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of
the Company are set out in note 31(b).

1 1 8 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 #5855) + BEBUAN M (EELT)

10. Other comprehensive income

Tax effect relating to other comprehensive income:

Before-tax
amount

10. EttrEmEUWAN

BEREMEEBANRBEE

2013 2012
—E-=F “E--F
Net-of-tax ~ Before-tax Net-of-tax
Tax amount amount Tax amount
EMNKRHIE BHBRTIE
BE 28 BHAEHR WA gl

BRBLAI 28
RMB’000

RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

ARBTRE ARMTR AR%®TRT ARKTT ARBTT ARETRT

Exchange differences on MEGIN B A A
translation of financial B REREE
statements of overseas HIEE X Z 58
subsidiaries (31,181)

- (31,181) 2,555 = 2,555

11. Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB
400,421,000 (2012: RMB855,153,000) and the weighted average
of 4,805,423,906 ordinary shares (2012: 4,834,547,960 ordinary
shares after adjusting for the bonus issue in May 2013 (see note
31(c)(iv)) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

()  Weighted average number of ordinary shares

1. SRER

(a) EFREAXREZF
BREABFTRBEARRRNDIFE AREEIARE
400,421,0007T( =& — =4 : A K #855,153,0007T)
RF R E 1T 5 M AR Ik T 19 1R #04,805,423,906 k% &
BR(ZZE——F: R =FHAARREAKE
4,834,547,960/% & A% ( R HI5E31(c)(v) 5T & + sTE &0
T

() BB INEFERE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R —H—HZBEZE17E@E
Effect of shares repurchased

(note 31(c)(i)) BADRE R < &2 (f17231(c)())
Effect of bonus issue (note 317(c)(i) IRERAL AR 2 522 (13331 (c)()

4,395,043,600 4,398,239,054

(29,124,054) (3,195,454)
439,504,360 439,504,360

Weighted average number of R+=—A=+—H
ordinary shares at 31 December TR AT I 1 AR B

4,805,423,906 4,834,547,960

?ﬁﬂﬂ“ﬂxﬁl&é\
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

11. Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (diluted)
of RMB400,421,000 (2012: RMB946,831,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 4,805,423,906
shares (2012: 5,400,198,673 shares after adjustment for the
effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares and after adjusting

for the bonus issue in May 2013), calculated as follows:

(i)  Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

1. BBREN &)

(b) EZREEER T
ERBBERMNDIBEARBRDIFEE ARG F
(88 ) A R#400,421,0000( —ZE— —F: AR
#946,831,0007T ) K& m) #4 < & i AR 004 ¥ 19 R #
4,805,423, 006 (=T ——F : LABFAEHFEE
EER T EERR TR ABRRERARE
5,400,198,673/%)zT & + sTELT :

()  ARFRDFFEAEN LT (EE)

(diluted)
2013 2012
—E—= —B——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EF T ARETT
Profit attributable to equity i #FE A& (EAR)
shareholders (basic) 400,421 855,153
Effect of effective interest on the AR (E 5 & EAK D
liability component of ZEBRNE &
convertible bonds - 92,900
Effect of gains recognised on the AR B 5074 T A AR 26D
derivative component of ZERERN R E
convertible bonds - (1,222)
Profit attributable to equity PRtr 758 A e A (H58)
shareholders (diluted) 400,421 946,831

1 2 0 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

11. Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

1. BREN @)

(b) EREEEZF (%)
(i) ZBERRINFETFIERE ()

2013 2012
—E—= T4
(Restated)

(g E5)

Weighted average number of L3 AR N 1 A 2k
ordinary shares
Effect of conversion of HaralRiEs s o2

convertible bonds

4,805,423,906 4,834,547,960

- 565,650,713

Weighted average number of ordinary R+=HA=+—HZ @K

N T35 e B8 (358 )

shares (diluted) at 31 December

4,805,423,906 5,400,198,673

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 have been
retrospectively adjusted for the effect of the bonus issue in May

2013 (see note 31(c)(i)).

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 has not included
the potential effects of the deemed issue of shares under the
Company’s share option scheme for nil consideration into ordinary
shares as it has anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share

amount during the years.

BE_T—_HR_FT-=F+"_A=+t—HLFEZ
EHTEARNMEFARBEARN T —=FH AKX
ALz FBIEH BB E(RHEES1(0)) °

BE_Z—=FR_ZT——F+-_A=+—BILFED
ﬂJ&ﬁ&éE’f'JE’JEJr%jﬂH@%H’\K"ﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ%?riﬂ—lt?ﬁ
FEERTRNEEERSEBENEETE  ILHARAE
HREFEBRELABNAARESTE -

x| T*JJxﬁ M%’A nJ
R 121
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

12. Fixed assets 12. BIE&E
The Group KE
Office
equipment
landand  Leasehold Motor ~ and other ~ Construction Investment Total
buildings  improvements vehicles  fixed assets  inprogress  Sub-Total property  fixed assets
HOZRMER
THREEY HEEE hE  HftETEE FEIR At RENE ETEELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEETn  ARBTn  ARMTx  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARMTn  ARETx
Cost: FAfE
At 1 January 2012 RZE-ZF-f-H 456,622 283,520 23,006 87,713 21,632 872,49 268,184 1,140,677
Exchange adjustments B 415 188 - 849 - 1,452 6,746 8198
Addtions i = 101,370 3,008 34,501 294,212 433,751 - 433,751
Addtions through acquistton FRNENBLFEE
of subsidiaries - 1,810 564 397 - 2,171 - 2,171
Transfer from construction in progress HEETREA - 12,542 - - (12542) - - -
Transfer from investment property EnREnE 2738 - - - - 2738 (273 -
Disposals il - 128,160) (1947) 7.228) - (67,33 - (87,3%)
At 31 December 2012 and RZE-—F+-A=t-H
1 January 2013 R=5-=%-f-H 459,775 371,210 25,201 116,232 303,302 1,275,870 212,192 1,548,062
Exchange adjustments B3 (2,139) (1,168) (170 (2,164) - (5,6%) (8,093) (13,729)
Addtions EE 3,563 39,734 1,721 20,482 54,576 120,076 - 120,076
Addtions through acquistton BRUENELR
of subsidiaries EE 440,390 14719 1,530 16,168 - 472,867 - 472,867
Transfer from construction in progress hERTREN 33,547 23,921 - 2977 (60,445) - - -
Disposals i - (33,488) (2,336) (9,904) - (45,728) - (45,728)
At 31 December 2013 K-3-=Ft-f=1-A M2 MS0E 260 19T 2T 1ITAS0 264099 208159

1 2 2 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

12. BlE&EE®)

The Group (Continued) KEEF (4)
Office
equipment
landand  Leasehold Motor and other  Construction Investment Total
buildings  improvements vehicles  fixed assets  inprogress  Sub-Total property  fixed assets
HAZRER
HREEN  RERE hE  HfpEREE  fEIR N RENE EREEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARWTR ARMTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHE
At 1 January 2012 R-Z-—%-f-A (63,908) (108,49%) (8,671) (25,871) - (206,942) (12,583 (219,525)
Exchange adjustments 8 @) (1) - (307) - (436) 80 (516)
Charge for the year FErE (10939) (67,797) (4641) (18974) - (102,348 (@757 (107,10
Transfer from investment property RS (570) - - - - (570) 570 -
Written back on disposals HERT - 24,043 986 5,783 - 31,012 - 31,012
At 31 December 2012 and RZE-—F+-A=t-A
1 January 2013 k=%-=%-R-H (75,419 (152,170) (12,326) (39,369) - (279,284) (16,850) (296,134)
Exchange adjustments Eris 213 206 160 908 - 1,487 157 1,644
Charge for the year EENE (12,068) (76,528) (5,482 (21,791) - (122,769) @79 (1er4n)
Transfer from investment property EERANE - - - - - - - -
Written back on disposals HERR - 28,389 1,640 5,850 - 35,879 - 35,879
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=%t-A=1-H (88,174) (200,103 (16,008) (60,402) - (364,687) (21,395) (386,082)
Net book value: REAE:
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F1+-A=1-H 846,968 214,945 10,028 83,389 297438 1,452,763 242,704 1,695,467
At 31 December 2012 RE-—E+-A=t-A 384,356 219,100 12,965 76,863 303,302 996,586 256,342 1251928

AR A PR ]
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ([ 5B #5855) » BEEAN B (EE L)

12. Fixed assets (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

0

(it

)

(iv)

Land owned by the Group is located in Taiwan, which has
an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.
The carrying amount of the land located in Taiwan as at 31
December 2013 is RMB7,146,000 (2012: RMB7,816,000).

The buildings owned by the Group are located in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.

As at 31 December 2013, land and buildings in Mainland
China, Taiwan and Hong Kong with carrying amounts of
RMB242,030,000, RMB10,897,000 and nil respectively
(2012: RMB27,044,000 in Mainland China, RMB11,455,000
in Taiwan and RMB38,363,000 in Hong Kong) were pledged
to banks as security for certain loan facilities (see note 24).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group was in the process
of obtaining a property ownership certificate for one
building in Taiyuan with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB12,038,000 (2012: RMB12,375,000).

The investment properties are located in Shenzhen, Wuhan
and Urumgi in Mainland China and Taipei in Taiwan and
are rented out under the terms of operating leases. The fair
value of the investment property as at 31 December 2013,
as determined by reference to recent market transactions
of comparable properties, amounted to RMB372,000,000
(2012: RMB349,000,000). The fair value of the investment
properties has not been evaluated by an independent
external valuer.

As at 31 December 2013, investment property in Taiwan
with a carrying amount of RMB181,664,000 (2012:
RMB191,005,000) was pledged to banks as security for
certain loan facilities (see note 24).

1 24 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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12. EIEEE#)

AL ()

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

AEEHAZIHUREE BEERERSF
B At ERE R -_E—=F+-_F=+—
B R EE 2 T EREE R A KE7,146,0007T
—T——%F: AR#¥7,816,0007T) °

AREEHA 2 B2EYUNTEARN  BERAE -

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8  uRFBEAH
a2 REBREES B A AKE242,030,0007T
AR#10,897,0007t R A RO (ZZT — =4 -
A B R A A R #27,044,0007T « REEEA
R #11,455,0007T RN & & A K #38,363,000
)2 T RIEFEERETER 2 EBRMERT
RIT(2FKIEE24) -

R-TE—Z=ZF+-A=+—8 AEEERHF
BR—EBNRARMEMBESRZBE &YW
ZEREELN A ARE12,088,0000( =T — =4 :
AR#12,375,0007T) °

ZERBEYEMNPEAL 2R RERESR
RERAEZEI  URBEEEHASHRRILHAE -
MR-ZT—=F+_A=+—H ZBEVER
LEALEMELNETSERIMETCHAAE
B AR ®372,000,000t( Z T ——F : ARM
349,000,0007T) ° & FIREMF K AR EILARLKL
BN ER S E o

R-TE—Z=ZF+-A=1+—8 REEZEED
XEEEARK181,664,000C(—F——4F : A
K #191,005,0007T) B R T R1TIEE TER(Z
EE24) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

13. BEL&EE

The Group KE
Trademarks ~ Trademarks
with indefinite with finite ~ Agency rights Software Favorable
useful lives  useful lives  and patents licences lease term Total
EEERR  BREER REER Bt
FHoBR  EHBR EfiE iHE LV st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARETR ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
Cost: B
At 1 January 2012 RNE-—%-f-H 15,920 8,744 1,199 4,015 - 29,878
Exchange adjustments EREE (3,758 - - 23 - (3,735)
Additions during the year EREE - - - 22,416 - 22,416
Addtions through acaquisition of a subsidiary FRNE-NBLALE = = = 247 74988 75,235
At 31 December 2012 and R=ZE-—#+-A=t-Rk
1 January 2013 “2-Z%-h-H 12,162 8,744 1,199 26,701 74,988 123,794
Exchange adjustments R AR (369) - - (44) - (13
Adaitions during the year FRE - - - 8,999 - 8,999
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=1-H 11,793 8,744 1,199 35,656 74,988 132,380
Accumulated amortisation: 2ot
At 1 January 2012 RZ5-—%-A-H - (4,564) (960) (1,039 - (6,559)
Exchange adjustments [ A% - - - @) - @)
Charge for the year FREEH - (1,187) (120) (1,829) (2,554) (5,634)
At 31 December 2012 and REE-F+-A=t-Bk
1 January 2013 “5-Z%-f-H - (5,691) (1,080) (2,870) (2,554) (12,195)
Exchange adjustments B AR - - - 10 - 10
Charge for the year FRER - (619) (119) (6,262) (3,402) (10,402)
At 31 December2018__ __ __ _____ __ ROBZHHCA=f-A - 6310 _ __ (1199 __ ©122) (9% _ _ _(22887)
Net book value: FEFE:
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=1-H 11,793 2,434 - 26,534 69,032 109,793
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-A=+-H 12,162 3,063 119 23,831 72,434 111599
AR A R A F 125
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S & 15855) - B5BLUN BEIESELT)

13. Intangible assets (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

The amortisation charges for trademarks with finite useful
lives, Edox agency rights and patents and software licences
are included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The amortisation charge for the favorable lease term is included in
“Distribution costs” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The basis of impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
trademarks with indefinite useful lives is as follows:

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is determined
based on value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rate and
growth rates. The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the two-year financial budgets and extrapolates cash flows
for the following eight years based on estimated annual growth
rates in sales of 10% to 15% (2012: 10% to 15%), a growth rate
in gross profit ratio of 0% (2012: 0%), and a discount rate of 10%
(2012: 10%). The growth rates are determined by management
based on the performance of the relevant cash-generating units
and their estimated future developments in the market.

1 2 6 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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BEEERFHEHR FERERLENE RS
FHEZEHBRF AR BRERITTRERIT »

BEHENZEHERF AREBERIDHERAIT -

B S A B BIE R M 2 R A AR
AT

ReESBM 2 REESENREREBETEET - £
AEEFEZEERRAHEYREREREGH MK
Fo AEBIRIBEI0%E15%Z EHFEHEHER(Z
T——F  10%E15%) * 0% Z BRI KB ER(=ZF —
ZF0%)RI0% 2B E(ZE—ZF  10%) RERIR
MEFBEE 2R REANREEEERNFEZRESR
ZERREDREEERBEABRCELAEMN I RAR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

14. Goodwill 14. HE
The Group KEEF
RMB’000
AREFIT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—HF—H 296,921
Additions = 65,583
At 31 December 2012 MNR-ZE——F+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2013 ;r=—ZF—=%—H—H 362,504
Additions (note 33 & 34) BE(H1:£33 & 34) 478,017
At 31 December 2018 J_ﬁé_;_;:_z_iiﬁi_:_)ﬁ _E_q_L_*EI _______________________ 840,521
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEREEE ¢
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012, R-TE——F—F—H Z—ZT——F
1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 +—A=+—H -—F2—=F—A—HBK
_______________________________________ 2 =%t-A=t-B ____ . ______=
Carrying amount: IREE
At 31 December 2013 R-ZEBE—=F+-_HA=+—H 840,521
At 31 December 2012 W_ZE——F+=-_A=+—H 362,504

AR A PR ]
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

14. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to places of operations and reportable
segments as follows:

14. B8 #)
EEBECZHEELENTZ HIEEH

BENETARBERE TS EHWE N2 RO FPAIHEE
ZBSELEM

2013 2012

—Eg2-= =T _F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Retail — Mainland China ZE—FEA 204,584 167,002
Retail — Hong Kong TE-FB 171,163 171,163
Retail — Taiwan TE-—4§& 22,654 22,654
Retail — Harvest Max TE-E% 303,633 =
All others Fra E A 48,487 1,685
840,521 362,504

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are the discount
rate and revenue/gross profit growth rate. The Group prepares
cash flow forecasts derived from the two-year financial budgets
and extrapolates cash flows for the following five years based
on estimated annual growth rates in sales ranging from -2.3% to
20% (2012: 1% to 15%), growth rates in gross profit ratio ranging
from -1% to 3% (2012: -1% to 10%), and a discount rate of 15%
(2012: 15%). The growth rates are determined by management
based on the performance of the relevant cash-generating units
and their estimated future development.

1 2 8 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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15. Interest in subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 ¥ o Bt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

15. WM B2 B 2 H# =

The Company KA E]

2013 2012
—2—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETTT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LR - HRKANE 499,612 499,612
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR NG R 3,958,462 3,959,538
4,458,074 4,459,150

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest [EWTEBARITVIESEER - 42 NEETEEIH -

bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

TREFINEAEERE
BRARZHE B

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise @& o

stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

BENBBEEERNTEZM
IEREEB  FIRROHENEAEE

FIEREDL
Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
R rEEz  BRAE AREAR ERITR
NRER E ik ERER 2] ) BEREAFE TEXK
Elegant Jewellery Hong Kong 100% 100% = 5,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
Holding Limited HKD1 each and jewellery
CERESEERAA B 5,000,000RBRAEI BT RN FREFEZE
A7 ENEEERAR Mainland China 100% - 100% 500,000,000 shares of  Retail and wholesale
(“Shenzhen Hengdeli") HKD1 each of watches
(TRI=HEH]) HERH 500,000,000 BREEIET2RG FREERRE
LENFEEERARAA Mainland China 95% - 95% 1,000,000,000 shares of  Retail and wholesale
(“Shanghai Xinyu") RMB1 each of watches
(I Ls#T]) Bl it 1,000,000000(kB/REE FHTER#HE
AREAT 2R {D

B A
4‘ 4‘4—*‘/4“% 129
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5575 #5855

15. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

P BEUAREIEEN)

15. RMB 2B ZEm (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

FIEaDt
Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
R rEBz  @HARE BKHELR BETR
ARER BEHEY BiRER HE HE HRERFE IEXH
HNIFXEEHFFERERAR Manland China 60% - 60% 50,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
A7l (“Suzhou Xinyu") RMB1 each
(T&RMAF]) B 50,000,000 BREE F&KEE
ARBATLZ R
WEESETERAR (‘Henan  Mainland China 70% - 70% 30,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
Fuhao") RMB1 each
(MEExl) IR, 30,000,000 BREE FHTE
ARBITZBiln
BN TFERERAR Mainland China 51% = 51% 5,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Wenzhou Xinyu") RMB1 each
(DRMFF]) HEI R 5,000,000RBKEE FHZE
ARBITLZ B iR
REMTETENBRAA Mainland China 60% - 60% 50,000,000 shares of ~ Retail of watches
(“Wuhan Xinyu") RMB1 each
(TEENFD hEI 50,000,000 REREE FHTE
AREATZR’D
EMNTHEREHOEERART  Manland China 100% = 100% 131,000,000 shares of  Decoration and packaging
(“Guangzhou Yadi") HKD1 each
(TEMAE]) HEl A 131,000,000 BREE FHRBE
iy )
ZH=HERERLA Mainland China 70% - 70% 20,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Anhui Sanxin”) RMB1 each
(TZB=%1) B A, 20,000,000 BREE FHREE
ARBALZ KD
AmZEFETEREREL  Manland China 55% - 55% 156,800,000 shares of  Retail and wholesale of
AT ("Beiling Hengdeli”) RMB1 each watches
(MERFHEM) HERH 156,800,000 BHREE FHERTERMHE
ARBATZ Bin

1 3 O Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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15. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 ¥ o Bt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

Proportion of ownership interest

15. RMB AR 2= &)

FrERRD
Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
R AEEz  BARE BAREAR BRTR
GRS S BiRER o] o] BRERFE TEXH
MFFEMEECRINERLR  Mainland China 100% - 100% 350,000,000 shares of  Investment holding
(“Xinyu Hengdell HKD1 each
investment (Shenzhen)”)
(IFTFENRERIN])  PERL 350,000,000k FREE HAER
1B KR
SEBKERFARAR (‘Jing  Taiwan 80% - 80% 155,820,000 shares of  Retail of watches
Guang Tang”) NTD1 each
(TaRtE]) aE 165,820,000 &k EE FHEE
mai Tz RG
MBS AMIREERAR Mainland China 65% - 65% 7,000,000 shares of  Investment holding
(“Xinjiang Hengdeli RMB1 each
Investment”)
(s EIRE]) hE A 7,000,000 BREE REZEK
AREAT 2 fp
BR T EEARDA Mainland China 100% - 100% 126,000,000 shares of ~ Wholesale
(“Ningbo Shangheng”) HKD1 each
(IZREZ]) Rl st 126,000,000k 5k EE #E
BT R
KBREEEERNERA Mainland China 100% - 100% 20,000,000 shares of ~ Manufacturing and retail
(“Zhuhai Nivada”) RMB1 each of watches
(HEREE]) B A 20,000,000 BIREE FREERTE
ARBITLZ BB
Alpha Key Investments Limited ~ BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of  Investment holding
(“Alpha Key") USD1 each
RRREERAA(RR]) SERAES RERAEIET RE  REBR
Hengdeli Giant Dragon Limited ~ BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of  Investment holding
(“Hengdeli Giant Dragon”) USD1 each
RERTES REREEIETZ KRG REBR

FEHERARAH]
(rFEHER))

NT*JQ%JMM& nJ
R 131
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15. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

15. RMB 2B ZEm (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

FIEaDt
Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
R rEEZ HALNE HHELR EBTR
ARER BEHEY BiRER HE HE BREAFE IEXEK
Xinyu Hengdeli BVI 100% 100% = 1 share of  Investment holding
Investments Limited USD1 each
(“Hengdeli Investments”)
MFFRIREBRAT EBRAEHS REREEIETZ KRG REBR
(T#HEH&RE])
Harvest Max Holdings Limited BV 70% = 70% 14,000 shares of  Retail of watch, jewellery,
(*Harvest Max”) USD1 each and duty free
commodities
LHEERERAA(18%]) EBRUES 14000k ERAEIZT R  Fi& KER
SHEMTE
HEFRIRNAERAR Mainland China 89% - 89% 22,515,930 shares of  Retail of watch
(“Nanchang Hengdeli”) REI R, RMB1 each  and jewellery
GEEEED 22515930 BRAE FHRERHKETE
ARBITZBin
# All the subsidiaries incorporated in Mainland China are domestic ~ * BRARINZER - EEFF - BMNIEE T EMRE

enterprises, except for Shenzhen Hengdeli, Shanghai Xinyu,

Guangzhou Yadi, Xinyu Hengdeli investment (Shenzhen) and Ningbo

Shangheng which are foreign invested enterprises.

The directors are of the view that the Group has no individually
material non-controlling interest for the year ended 31 December

2013.

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with bank are held in
China and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions

on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal

dividends.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited

1 3 2 Annual Report 2013
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

16. Interest in associates 16. REtE A ZHEXE

The Group KEEF

2013 2012
—E-= —T—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARET T
Interest in associates REEE R R 2 s 245,812 577,782
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (161,951) (74,058)
83,861 503,724

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group:

TREHTIHARBEANAEBREALE 2B ER
AIZEAS

Proportion of ownership interest

FERAEDL
Form of Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
business incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid Principal
Name of associate structure and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  activity
AEEz  @AARE AHKBAR BHTK
BENRARE FBRBRA HfREE L Bl =] 2] HRERFE TEEK
Ming Fung Jewellery Incorporated Cayman 15.44% - 15.44% 4,366,027,293  Sale and
Group Limited [slands shares of distribution
HKDO.01 each of jewellery
and watches
MEREEEBRAR  HEfHAE FMEHS 16.44% - 15.44%  4,366,027,203f% HRERFHHE
BREE  KHH
0.01B T R

On 22 April 2013, the Group acquired 30% of the equity
of Harvest Max, an associate in which the Group held 40%
equity interest before this acquisition. Upon completion of this
acquisition, Harvest Max became a subsidiary of the Group (see
note 33).

T—=FMAZ+=H ' AEBEYIE L 2 30%
, %ﬁ?%ﬁ’\ml@lﬁlgﬁﬁlJ$E EREFHFELI0%IE 2

ENR e RERREWER - ERKANEEZHE
A)(2 R HIFES3) o

HA

\

D) %‘?‘% Bk %
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

16. Interest in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of associates adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

16. RBEERRAZEE#)

BERRZHMBEMEE SHBRREMNERZARR
FEMBRRAREEZ HREENT

below:
Ming Fung B2
2013
—5-=
RMB’000
ARBT T
Gross amounts of the associates BteE N\ 7] 2 #A58
Current assets MENVE E 1,511,835
Non-current assets ERBEE 354,862
Current liabilities mEEE (218,001)
Non-current liabilities EmEBERE (48,675)
Equity g 1,600,021
Revenue Wz 624,867
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(E18), &5 (720,875)*
Other comprehensive income HiammgA 18,868
Total comprehensive income ZHEABEE (702,007)
Dividend received from associates R E NG SN -

The financial information above of Ming Fung is extracted from its
annual report for the year ended 30 September 2013.

‘* The loss includes an impairment loss of HKD906,702,000
(RMB725,361,000) for exploration and evaluation assets, intangible
assets and goodwill recognised in Ming Fung’s financial information
for the year ended 30 September 2013.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 #5855) + BEBUAN M (EELT)
16. Interest in associates (Continued) 16. REtENElZ R ®)
2013
—_F—=
RMB’000
AREETT
Reconciled to the Group’s interests
in the associates REBREE AR 2 ERE R
Group’s effective interest AEEZ BERREFLS 15.44%
Group’s share of net assets of the associates REEEGBE AR 2 EEFE 247,043
Adjustment for the effects of significant RNAA=+THBE+=ZA=+—H1t
transactions or events that occurred BEIZERARZGHENHZ
between 30 September and 31 December TERTERE (1,231)
Impairment RIE (161,951)
Carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements RGBSk N 2 BREE 83,861
Market value of the investment HETE 86,861

The date of the end of the reporting period of Ming Fung’s
financial statements is 30 September and Ming Fung does not

prepare and publically announce its quarterly interim financial

information.

gﬁ%z&L\'fﬁ =]

LUBENREPRERBSEA/ANA=THE K&
FEMGER

17. Interest in joint ventures REERAIZER
The Group £ 5
2013 2012
—Egq-= —_ZT—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T AREF T
Share of net assets DhEERE 54,035 57,137

R P R R A R
TR SRR 1 3 5
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17. Interest in joint ventures (Continued) 17. REENEIZHER(E)

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures, which are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated FRABR)ZEZSFIBWMOT ¢

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

AEBNEE AR (ZFRRRAEDEANGRS MR

AR
Form of Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
business incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid Principal
Name of joint ventures structure and business interest Company  subsidiaries up capital  activity
EE111954 rEEZ HAAT] HfE AR BRITR
RENRER EBRERN  E£XnH Bl 58 8 HRERFE TEEK
PEETHERRE Incorporated  Mainland 50% = 50% Registered ~ Sale and
AR 2E (“Shanghai China capital distribution
Ruihengai”) RMB30,000,000 of watches
([ EEmsEl) FalipsE] R i AMER  FREER
ARE 9
30,000,0007T
I RFTFTER Incorporated ~ Mainland 50% - 50% Registered  Property
BREFAH China capital  management
(“Beijing Hengrui”) RMB40,000,000 and leasing
([ERFm]) AR A AMER BREBR
AR HE
40,000,0007T
The above joint ventures are both unlisted corporate entities EMlGERAREAIELTLEER  EMBRETA

A -

whose quoted market price is not available.

1 3 6 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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17.

Interest in joint ventures (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures, adjusted

for any differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to
the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed below:

17. R&

BERNR 2P BERE -
fe=

ENTIZHERE)

SR BREMERZRARR
MEHRAREE SREENT -

2013
—F-=
Shanghai Beijing
Ruihengqi Hengrui Total
bEmTH tR=8H It
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Gross amounts #EE
Current assets MBEE 89,796 30,677 120,473
Non-current assets EMBNEE 6,370 68,621 74,991
Current liabilities mENBE (75,148) (12,106) (87,254)
Non-current liabilities FERB AL (140) - (140)
Equity i 20,878 87,192 108,070
Included in the above assets FFALMEERERE
and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEY 19,208 30,663 49,871
Revenue Wrzs 44,774 4,500 49,274
Profit after tax Tt 18 5% A 5,000 1,500 6,500
Total comprehensive income EHEIABZRE 5,000 1,500 6,500
Dividend received B U hE S - 6,352 6,352
Included in above profits: A LS R 2,559 1,129 3,688
Depreciation and amortization HTE NN 70 99 169
Interest income FEU A 1,939 1,295 3,234
Income tax expense Fr5&i X
Reconciled to the Group’s KREBREE AT Z
interest in joint ventures FEERE AR
Gross amounts of net assets BEFEEE 20,878 87,192 108,070
Group’s effective interest REE 2 BEFE 50% 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets and AREBELEEFENK
carrying amount in the WNGRENE R e LA
consolidated financial statements REE 10,439 43,596 54,035
R P R R A R 1 3 7

SE SRR
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17. Interest in joint ventures (Continued)

17. REERNRZEZRE)

2012
—E——fF
Shanghai Beijing
Ruihengqi Hengrui Total
EgmTH R F st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Gross amounts BzE
Current assets MBNEE 61,088 27,780 88,868
Non-current assets FERBEE 8,711 71,061 79,772
Current liabilities wEAE 53,920 446 54,366
Equity s 15,879 98,395 114,274
Included in the above assets FTALMEERBE
and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFESEEY 8,661 25,975 34,636
Revenue Uz 34,803 10,507 45,310
Profit after tax Fii&m Al 4,614 6,566 11,180
Total comprehensive income EEIMALRT 4,614 6,566 11,180
Dividend received B E = = =
Included in above profits: FTAEMURF -
Depreciation and amortization bik-)5% ¥ 2,358 1,129 3,487
Interest expense BRI 475 - 475
Interest income B A 89 94 183
Income tax expense FriS iz 1,531 3,361 4,892
Reconciled to the Group’s REBREELNTZ
interest in joint ventures FERE AR
Gross amounts of net assets BEFEERE 15,879 98,395 114,274
Group's effective interest REEZERTE 50% 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets and ~ ZN& E (5 B &) FE &
carrying amount in the RERE &R A
consolidated financial statements ZEREE 7,940 49,197 57,137

1 3 8 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

18. Other financial assets

Other financial assets as at 31 December 2012 represent the
prepayment in respect of the acquisition of a watch retail business
in mainland China. As disclosed in note 34, this acquisition has
been completed on 11 December 2013.

19. Inventories

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:

Hit & E
WoF— =+ A=+— B2 HMAHEE AN —
SR E o 2 FETE £ B8 - Bk iEas
S REKMEEER-E—=F+=A+—A
S, o
19. &
(6) REDHBMAES FEEE

The Group AEE
2013 2012
—_E—= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Raw materials R 31,922 26,409
Work in progress ERS 30,673 23,188
Finished goods UK 6,266,127 5,520,364
6,328,722 5,569,961

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

(b) RIS ARZ 7 EEEESIT

recognised as an expense and included in profit or R
loss is as follows:
The Group KEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEERERE 9,706,885 8,979,005
Increase/(reversal) of inventory provision FEREL I (EE) 24,923 (12,990)
9,731,808 8,966,015

AR A PR ]
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

20. Trade and other receivables

20. U E 5 BR A R H i B FKIR

The Group =3
2013 2012
—E—= =og—=%=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT AREET T
Trade receivables W E SRR3R 901,227 993,796
Amount due from associates 2,021 18,604
Amount due from a joint venture - 287

Less: allowance for doubtful B REREE

debts (note 20(b)) (5,821) (818)
897,427 1,011,869
Prepayments and deposits BN FOE MRS 206,943 146,198
Other receivables Hfth fE W TR 231,309 208,296
Amount due from associates 20,583 526
Amount due from joint ventures 10,533 2,223
1,366,795 1,369,112

The Company N
2013 2012
—Eg2-= = _4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETTT
Other receivables H b fE W FRIB 6,716 1,657
Receivables due from subsidiaries L NGBS - 106,505
6,716 108,162

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered within one year.

1 40 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

20. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(a) Ageing analysis
An ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) is as follows:

20. B E 5 iR R H it BRI ()

(@) BRES DT
EUNE SERR Z BRE A AT (B MR REREE) T ¢

The Group AREE
2013 2012
—E—= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Current R HE 844,218 855,753
Less than 1 month past due BELR—@EA 2,371 84,961
1 to 3 months past due mEl—Z= =18 29,890 47,301

More than 3 months but less than BmEBE=E AR

12 months past due PR+—{EB 19,672 20,315
More than 12 months past due mEEEE+ @A 1,276 3,539
Amounts past due 70 BA SR I8 53,209 156,116
897,427 1,011,869

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 60 days from the date of
billing. Further details regarding the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 36(a).

FEWE ZHRF AMAE B BEFT30E60H 2 H - AEE
SEBUR 2 #E— SRS R 5E36(a) ©
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20. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly (see note 1(l)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is as

20. ENB SERA R HEtEWFIEZ)

(b) EWKEZELRE

LW E Z RN CBERER  ARESNBERER -
BRIEARSEEARE A R U EZ KA AT LR E - ARE
HURERE S BRNERE RN MEE(2F ()
M) e

FARREENES (REERNRARBERH)LOT

follows:

The Group KEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
At 1 January n—AH—H 818 5,628
Impairment loss recognised EERRERE 5,322 373
Reversal of impairment loss upon receipts 2 Uk [ 43 @] =~ R (B e 18 - (137)
Uncollectible amounts written off B € (819) (5,046)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 5,821 818
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20. FEWXE 5 ERF R H fth IEYN T IH (2)

20. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

(c) ILHEIE A EWE R

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither HiEERITELERWIR A THEZEWRE SERZE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as AT :
follows:
The Group KEH
2013 2012
==F—= T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T ARET T
Neither past due nor impaired AR BTN R R (E 844,218 855,753
Less than 1 month past due B HR D — 18 A 2,371 84,961
1 to 3 months past due B —Z=={EAH 29,890 47,301
More than 3 months but less than 12 BB =E AE
months past due DPR+—@A 19,467 20,099
More than 12 months past due wWERE T A 1,241 706
52,969 153,067
897,187 1,008,820
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relating to a & R # EA S RE 2 FE UGk 18 J5 Bd i G #58 295088 2 —

wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relating to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

REFAH -

EaRERREZEBRFAEE-—HEREEERFR
SLBZBIYIEFPAR - RIBEELR  BXEEEER

WEEAEE  AZFEHRDPE ST 2B E - FF

EREL BN Z R FAERE IR E R -

R P R R A R
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21. Deposits with banks

21. |ITEX

The Group KEEE
2013 2012
—E—= =og—=%=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Deposits with original maturities over JREIEA B B8 = {E A

three months ZTER 100,000 -
Pledged bank deposits BEEPRITFR - 1,294
100,000 1,294

Pledged bank deposits of the Group mainly represent deposits
pledged at banks to secure letters of guarantee granted to
the Group. The pledged bank deposits are released upon the
termination of the related instruments.

22. Cash and cash equivalents

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

AEBEZEBERRTEFREIZRSRERETAKE 2
REMEMTFRIT 2R - SEEWBRTERREBLIA

AR EIRFARER o

22. RERBEEED

@) HeRESEEWERE

The Group
REE
2013 2012
—E-—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT

The Company

PIN/NE |
2013 2012
—E-—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Cash and cash equivalents in the BIf&aknZk &
statement of financial position RERERZRE

and cash flow statement KIS EEY 2,185,922 2,869,945

338,786 17,205
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

22. RERBREEEBYME)

22. Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

PRI 7 R BT 152 % B #THR -

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b)
generated from operations:

2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARETT AREFIT
Profit before taxation BR %% AT 673,355 1,230,982
Adjustments for: FHEIEE ¢
Depreciation weE 5(c) 127,471 107,105
Amortisation of intangible assets T B EE 5(c) 10,402 5,634
Finance costs MsER 5(a) 282,378 258,109
Dividend income from unlisted REFELETRE
investments HIR% B 4 (34,977) (37,542)
Interest income A2 A 4 (64,992) (65,130)
Loss on repurchase of FEE AR ES
convertible bonds 2 &8 43,487 -
Changes in fair value of MARERITETE
embedded financial derivatives NAEEE 4 - (1,222)
Share of profits of joint ventures FEIEE %A T A 17 (3,250) (976)
Share of profits less losses FE(GESE & N B AR B R
of associates 16 7,805 (31,138)
Impairment of interest AR 1L N A
in an associate W RE 4 87,893 74,058
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE « BE LK
plant and equipment HF 1B 4 4,124 3,237
Equity-settled share-based DARESSETE - IR EME
payment expenses ﬁﬁszﬁgz 5(b) (243) 842
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR K S 4 - (122,247)
Gain on deemed disposal of BRIEHEH AR E M
other investment 4 - (17,463)
Gain on disposal of an associate & — R E QR 2 Was 4 (4,487) (515)
Operating profit before changes in EEESEEAIN
working capital SRR 1,128,966 1,403,734
Increase in inventories FEEM (604,094) (1,005,766)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and I E SRR M E b fE Uk
other receivables IR (3E ) 115,662 (196,664)
Increase in trade and BB 2RI R EAM
other payables FE T FRIBE N 7,812 420,624
Cash generated from KRETBFERE
operating activities 648,346 621,928

1 N
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23. Trade and other payables 23. BB SR K H thES KIE
The Group KEEE
2013 2012
—E-=f —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Trade payables JERHE SRR 1,923,219 1,782,100
Amounts due to associates e B A | 2 I8 5,095 15,451
1,928,314 1,797,551
Other payables and accrued expenses H A FIE R ERTEH 387,731 310,261
Advance receipts from customers B TEM IR 42,500 52,730
Amounts due to a joint venture EN—MEEE R aZ5E - 2,507
2,358,545 2,163,049
The Company ARA]
2013 2012
—E-=F — T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Other payables and accrued expenses HibfERRIB N ERTE A 1,332 8,364
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHIEB 2 72 508 91,797 88,986
93,129 97,350
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23. Trade and other payables (Continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
payables and amount due to associates, based on invoice date,

23. BHESEAREMEMRE®

RBEYR - REZEHHENES

Bl Z I SREE DT AT

SR /N

is as follows:

The Group KEEF
2013 2012
—_E2—= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T ARBEFIT
Within 1 month —@EARA 1,072,438 1,152,110
Over 1 month but less than 3 months BR—EMAELR=EA 814,882 614,655
Over 3 months but less than 12 months HA=EAELKRT @A 26,328 28,742
Over 1 year HBiE—F 14,666 2,044
1,928,314 1,797,551

24. Bank loans

At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

24. SRITER

R-ZB—=F+"A=+—H BEERTERNOT :

The Group K £ [F]
2013 2012
—E2—= —E=——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBT T
Within 1 year or on demand —FAFIREK 1,854,737 1,598,789
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERRENR 8,857 295,366
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERAFTA 376,644 172,039
After 5 years hE® 75,313 94,135
460,814 561,540
1,815,551 2,160,329
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24. Bank loans (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank loan facilities are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants imposing certain specific performance
requirements on the Group and a minimum shareholding
requirement on the Group’s major shareholder. If the Group
were to breach the covenant, bank loans drawn down under

24. SRITE(#)

KREE (&)
AEEFIHHRTERRERETEERERE H—?E
FHEERNEY  RFEAEEFERTE 2 HEFER
EK o MAKEBEERRITEREZY  BEHAEFEENER
I 42%8 A R #1,065,415,00000( =T —=F : AR
719,992 OOOTI:)ﬂ—er;z/JEi% N EEHABS S B ST

such facilities with a total amount of RMB1,065,415,000 (2012: i@Z’JE’JI —E—=F+=ZA=+—H ' A£EBEE
RMB719,992,000) would become payable on demand. The Group Si 72,%’9 °
regularly monitors its compliance with such covenants and at 31
December 2013, the Group had complied with the covenants.
The Company P/ N/NI=] |
2013 2012
—E2-= —=E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Within 1 year or on demand —FARIREK 78,620 171,484
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMERN - 283,780
After 2 years but within 5 years MFEZRERAFEA 350,075 138,343
350,075 422,123
428,695 593,607
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24. Bank loans (Continued) 24. SRITE (&)
At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were secured as follows: N-E—=F+_"_F=+—H8 " LT EZNERFE
AR
The Group KEEF
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Bank loans within one year or on demand —FANIZEREENRITER
— Secured —HBHEA 23,856 25,575
— Unsecured — 1,330,881 1,573,214
____________________ 1,354,737 1,598,789
Bank loans after one year —FREBNRITER
— Secured —BHEA 110,740 138,618
— Unsecured — 350,074 422,922
_____________________ 460,814 561,540
1,815,551 2,160,329
The Company AKova]
All of the Company’s bank loans were unsecured as at 31 R-ZE—=FR-FT——"F+-_A=+—H  ARAZE
December 2013 and 2012. ERIRTTE I A EE -

At 31 December 2013, the secured bank loans are all drawn R-ZE—=F+—"A=+—H ' aETEEEAGZAR
down under certain bank facilities secured by mortgages over  #434,591,0007T(—F——%F : AR¥267,867,0007T)
certain land and buildings and investment properties of the Group B i RIEFIRIBER R A TRITEEIE THBEF
with an aggregate carrying value of RMB434,591,000 (2012: RITEKE 2 &R °

RMB267,867,000).
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25. Convertible bonds

On 20 October 2010, the Company issued the HKD Settled 2.5%
Convertible Bonds due 2015 (the “2015 Convertible Bonds”)
in the aggregate principal amount of HKD2,500,000,000. The
2015 Convertible Bonds are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

The principal terms of the 2015 Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(@) Optional conversion

Each bond could have, at the option of the Bondholders, been
convertible (unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled) on or after 30 November 2010 up to the close of
business on the day falling ten days prior to 20 October 2015
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company with a par value
of HKDO0.005 each at an initial conversion price of HKD4.9524
per share. The Conversion Price is subject to adjustments in the
manner set out in the 2015 Convertible Bonds agreement as a
result of dilutive events.

(b) Mandatory conversion

At any time after 20 October 2013, the Company may at its sole
discretion, elect to convert the bonds in whole but not in part
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company provided that
the closing prices of the Company’s shares for 30 consecutive
trading days immediately prior to the date upon which such
mandatory conversion notice is given was at least 130% of the
early redemption amount (an amount representing the principal
amount of the 2015 Convertible Bonds plus a gross yield of 3.5%
per annum for the Bondholders, calculated on a semi-annual
basis up to the relevant redemption date) of a bond divided by
the conversion ratio.

(c) Redemption

- Redemption at maturity
Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and
cancelled, the bonds will be redeemed on 20 October 2015

at 105.413% of their principal amount together with accrued
and unpaid interest thereon.

1 5 0 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

25. AR ES

RZZE—TF+AZ+H ARRBEITUBTEENR=
T-RFHBz25% A MRES( ZE—RF 8RR
&% 1) » A& 4% 52,500,000,0008 7L — T —HF
ARRESREFTINEE SR SABR AR £ o

“E-RFUMRESFNEZEFTET

(a) AEFEEL

BEFRHEANEER _T—ZTF+-A=1THzxUNEKE
“E-AFTA-THEATRZEXERREER - UEK
4.95247 L IG R ERESFER AR AR EREE
0.00578 7T 2 B BB (FRIEZ AIE IR - i
FWEREH)  ERERE T -HFARKRESD
BAELHEER 2 EHTIARE -

(b) &It EEH
R-FB—=F+HA-TRZEEMARRE  KAFAEE
TTREERES 2R (MMM EFERBARARZER
ERRERD - GRERRNEERTMEBRBMBERNREL
BE=HEXSEARRABRNDZEHEELREFRER
BB SRR AL 2 130% (IREERI B R_-T—
FFEAMBREFNESFEATFFRE 23.5% A
EENBELRRcFFREENE)

(c) K&

—  ZE§fE[E
BRIEZRIB IR - B UEE Rt - B5E
R-ZEBE—RAFE+A-ZTHEUNHEAE S RER
A F B 2 105.413% &[] o
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25. Convertible bonds (Continued)

(c) Redemption (Continued)

Redemption at the option of the Company

If at any time at least 90% of the aggregate principal amount
of the bonds has already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled, then the Company shall have the
option to redeem all but not some only of the outstanding
2015 Convertible Bonds at their early redemption amount as

at such date together with interest accrued to such date.

The Early Redemption Amount, for each HKD1,000,000
principal amount of the bonds is set out in the table below,
assuming that the date fixed for redemption is the semi-
annual date:

Semi-annual Date

S 5 ¥ o Bt

 BEUAREIEEN)

25. Al EE #)

(c)

55@(/45)

AL A FEE o]

W ERKRE B AT RBEDOBE K E
B BEESEERENE ARRARERRELNE
EB(MIERR D ) ARMER 2 —F —AF A MARES
RZBAREZRFBEBOSBUALREEZBILEZ

FEET R EFTE ©

%82 £1,000,000/8 T2 e F BRI S FEEHN T
x o BRECZEEBHRR+¥EFER

Early Redemption
Amount (HKD)

REEE S
wER (&)
20 April 2011 —E——FlA=+H 1,005,000.00
20 October 2011 —E——F+HZTH 1,010,087.50
20 April 2012 —E——#A=+H 1,015,264.03
20 October 2012 —E——F+A=+H 1,020,531.15
20 April 2013 —T—=FmA=-+A~H 1,025,890.45
20 October 2013 —T—=%+H=+H 1,031,343.53
20 April 2014 —FENA=+H 1,036,892.04
20 October 2014 —ME+HAZ+A 1,042,537.65
20 April 2015 —AFMEA=+H 1,048,282.06

Redemption at option of the Bondholders

The Company can, at the option of any of the Bondholders,
redeem all or some of the Bondholders’ bonds on 20
October 20183 at its early redemption amount as at such
date together with interest accrued to such date.

The Company can also, at the option of any of the
Bondholders, redeem all or some of the bonds at its early
redemption amount as at such date together with interest
accrued to such date when there is a change of control of
the Company, or when the ordinary shares of the Company
cease to be listed or admitted to trading on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

ESfFHAEFEE D]
ARRABERFEEMRMEFTAARESE
=Ft+A-+tHED E%fa??ﬂv*ﬁ/\é’\]iuﬁﬁkﬁﬂn
AIBEES F*%DA%%EIH}EEE%‘?@@%E&EE
% B Z AR BFE

ii

ZAW/N 77TA$EH‘EEH1$%‘<%ﬁ}\E’JLT$ BEAR
AlZEHEAMED  HEARREBRA LR
EEBMARZAERA Timi%t/ﬁi%fé o
2REHBNDES TET%LASZEI/H\%EH“@%% )53
BEEZB L2 ENEFE

AR A R
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25. Convertible bonds (Continued)

(c) Redemption (Continued)

As the functional currency of the Company is the HKD, the
conversion of the 2015 Convertible Bonds will be settled by
exchange of a fixed amount of cash in HKD with a fixed number
of the Company’s equity instruments. In accordance with the
requirements of HKAS 39, Financial Instruments — Recognition
and Measurement, the 2015 Convertible Bonds contract needs to
be separated into a liability component consisting of the straight
debt element and redemption elements of the bonds, and an
equity component representing the options of the Bondholders
to convert the bonds into equity. The proceeds received from the
issue of the Convertible Bonds have been split as follows:

(i) Liability component was initially measured at the fair value
of the contractually determined stream of cash flows
discounted at the prevailing market interest rate applicable
to instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but
without the conversion features.

The liability component was subsequently measured at
amortised cost using an effective interest rate of 4.6%.

(i) Equity component represents the conversion options,
which is determined by deducting the fair value of the
liability component from the proceeds of issue of the 2015
Convertible Bonds as a whole.

1 5 2 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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25. Al EE )

(c) FE[E](4#)

HARARRE 2 WEEE AT  —E—AFBRRKRES
ERE e RIETHE 2 AR RER T AL RBIT 28
EHeEXMN - BEEEGTERNES e T A —
BREKAEZHE  — - IhFEBRRESFERAD A
B0 (BESNEEEBIG0 &ER S HEK) k&
O (REFFRBEARBESBER SRR ERERE
HE) - BITAHMRERFMBWREI DT :

() BEBCNFREABERERARENAAERT
B DREEBAEELRERBERRER
fERFRIAER - B NERBR N SR T AFTE A
RERTTTIZ A RALR

BESNERABRF RS 6%ILEHEKANGE -

(i) PERRpfRESiRiEERE . IRBIT T —R1FA
BEEFNESEMEFIETHREERONRA
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25. Convertible bonds (Continued) 25. AIERRES (#)
(c) Redemption (Continued) (c) ME[D](#)
The movement of the liability component and the equity & - —hE R BRESEN B EBD LIRREZ D
component of the 2015 Convertible Bonds for the year is set out @%ﬁ%ﬁﬁljﬁlﬂ? :
below:
Liability Equity
component component Total
=NEEL) & #EEB 10 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT ARKETTT
As at 1 January 2012 R-—E——F—H—H 1,982,161 60,412 2,042,573
Interest charged during the year FRFHRFR A 91,264 - 91,264
Interest paid during the year FARAEFE (50,672) = (50,672)
Foreign currency translation difference  4ME H =% 256 - 256
As at 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+_H
and 1 January 2013 =f+—BER=_ZT—=
#—H—H 2,023,009 60,412 2,083,421
Interest charged during the year FNEHEF A 69,185 - 69,185
Interest paid during the year FRENFE (46,632) = (46,632)
Derecognised due to repurchase FREAERANF B
by the Company during the year MR EFERR (247,211) (7,443) (254,654)
Derecognised due to redemption FRAZAR R E R M
by the Company during the year RIETER (1,690,367) (50,673) (1,741,040)
Foreign currency translation difference  JNE H iz %8 (31,880) = (31,880)
As at 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+=_H
== 76,104 2,296 78,400
In January, February, May and June 2013, the Company R_-_Z—=%—H  —_ A - AAEKNA KA A

purchased, by way of market acquisition, 2015 Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HKD308,000,000 (the “Repurchased
Bonds”), for a total consideration of HKD318,256,000 (RMB
equivalent: 254,127,000). The Repurchased Bonds have been
cancelled in accordance with the terms of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds.

%5 EE 5 R BB 8 7K € 58 A308,000,000% T 2

—hAFABRBREFIBREZES]  BRE
/318,256,000 jT( 8 & B A R #254,127,000
)  BEZESERE T - REABRKRESKR

AT B A PR A w
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25. Convertible bonds (Continued)

(c) Redemption (Continued)

On 18 October 2013, the Company redeemed 2015 Convertible
Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HKD2,097,000,000 (the
“Redemption Bonds”), for a total sum of HKD2,162,727,000 (RMB
equivalent: 1,726,938,000).

Following the cancellation of the Repurchased Bonds and
Redemption Bonds, the aggregate principal amount of the 2015
Convertible Bonds remaining outstanding as at 31 December
2018 is HKD95,000,000.

No conversion of the 2015 Convertible Bonds has occurred up to
31 December 20183.

26. Senior notes

In January 2013, the Company issued 6.25% senior notes due
in 2018 in the aggregate principal amount of United States
Dollars(“*USD”) 350,000,000 (“the Notes”), which are listed on the
Exchange. The Notes are interest-bearing at 6.25% per annum
and payable semi-annually in arrears. The Notes will mature on
29 January 2018, unless redeemed earlier in accordance with the
terms of the Notes. The net proceeds, after deducting the direct
issuance costs, amounted to approximately USD343,969,622 (RMB
equivalent: 2,1568,949,000).

Pursuant to the terms of the Notes, the Notes are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to limitations on indebtedness
and certain transactions of the Group. The Company regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. The Group has
complied with the imposed senior notes covenants for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

The Company may redeem part or all of the Notes or, upon the
occurrence of certain events, the Company should make an
offer to purchase all outstanding portions of the Notes at a price
specified in the terms of the Notes.

1 54 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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25. Al EE )

(c) FE[D](#)

R-ZZE—=F+A+N\H AQRABELOARLER
2,097,000,000/ T 7 —E — A FE A #H k&5 ([ B @
Z1EH ) EE A2,162,727,00078 T (HHER AR
1,726,938,0007T) °

RITHEBR 2 ESMBEON 2 ERE  RZE—=F1+=
A=1+—HREATEz —E—AFaBREFANS A5
/395,000,000 7T, °

BEEZ—=F+"A=+—RH YEBHKR_T-—AF
AR AR 55

26. BERRE

RZEBE—=ZF— A ARAIBTASBEAE
850,000,000 ([ E LR =T — N\FH/H 26.25/F
BEZR(ER])  ZEZBRBRIFMET - ZBZF
BA6.25[2 - ABFF I - RIFRBEZRGZIRATE
B FRIEEBR=_F—N\F—A=Z+LBEH - »N
BREBEZITAR - FTSRIBF R A R343,969,622%
TL(HEER A R#2,158,949,0007T ) °

REREGF - BRAGABEBRBINZOEAE
BETRZERR  TAEE - ARBIEHNERELET
HZERHNWER -BE_ZE—=F+_A=+—HIL*F
B AEEEBTEREARBENRY -

AARAEEENHEEMRE - KNG T EMHEER
ARREERBEZERGHIANERIBEMBHARE
BERBEBEHEL -
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26. Senior notes (Continued) 26. BEER®)
The movement of the Notes is set out below: =R 7 EHEYINT
RMB’000
ARBT T
Upon the completion of the issuance of the Notes: REEITEIE TR IE
Proceeds received for the issuance of the Notes PEITEEWEZ FT5 8 2,197,668
Transaction costs on issuance of the Notes BIIRIBZ R KA (38,719)
Interest charged during the year FREFHRF S 130,759
Interest paid during the year FABRFE (67,685)
Foreign exchange loss SN 58 2,166
Foreign currency translation difference YN 5 R = B (64,958)
As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+"_H=+—H 2,159,231
27. Employee retirement benefits 27. EERIKEF
As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group (KIEFEILTHIIRE  AEBREESEZELEHT
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans A& REREITEIENERBEZTERENEE - NEBEE

organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans at rates ranging from 14% to 22% of the eligible
employees’ salaries for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
from 11% to 22%).

Pursuant to the labour regulations of Taiwan and Macau,
the Group joined defined contribution retirement plans for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans at the applicable rates ranged from 1% to 6%
based on the eligible employees’ salaries (2012: from 1% to 6.5%).

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD25,000 (2012:
HKD25,000). Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

REBE_Z-—=F+_A=T"HLFER/ER=E
HUIEEAN 2 BEZFH M 214%222% (ZF——F:
11%ZE22% ) FRKEHBIHEFK -

AEBERERENRFING TEMIREE ST ERMH

FRIRETE - %EE$EI5EDA/—\§T ?‘féﬁt%ﬁﬂZﬁ
BEHEMAER  WIENF1%E6% (ZT——F : 1%E
6.5% ) Z 8 A M R pLR AFT B -

AEENMREEERHMER Eiqui‘”'?kW RIBIEER

BEIENIZIEZ EE R AFIMEATESFTE (BT
2l]) - %@E@%Jr%mEiaﬁﬂa%/\ﬂ%zm%ﬁfﬁ*ﬂﬁk
T2l - BESESE  EEREEESEARERY
BB A Z5%ELHEE - 1 LA25,0008 L(=ZF—=
F 1 25,0008 7)) BEFABBEBAZ LR - &I KA
BrEREB TR °

AR e A PR A T
LR SARAE 1 5 5
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27. Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of its
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits other
than the contributions described above.

28. Equity settled share-based transactions

As at 31 December 20183, the Company has a share option
scheme which was adopted on 30 September 2011 pursuant to
the resolutions of the shareholders of the Company to grant share
options to certain senior employees of the Group to subscribe for
shares of the Company at certain exercise prices. The options
vest if certain performance targets are achieved during certain
periods.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grant are as

27. BEERKER &)

B Dt RN - AEREBAREREE ZRARREAMER
BRANFAELBERE -

28. UHEHGE @ ROERZITR

RIZB—=F+"A=+—0  ARABREETIIR
BARABBERZABEMN _T——FAA=THK
e Bk - ARBRAEEETSRAEERLBRE
TL/{%:FTTE'EF? RBAR - MZFRERE T HHE
ZRETRRAF - BAERER AR -

(@) KRR RARIFLIT

follows:

Contractual
Number of Vesting life of
instruments  conditions options
ITEHE BEGHYE BREZSNEH

Options granted to employees:

BT EE 2Bk

- on 30 September 2011 —R=ZE——4F 4,150,000 The purchase rights may 5 years

NA=+H

1 5 6 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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28. Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
of share options are as follows:

28. UHHEE RO ERIMXH @)

(b) FBAIESE RINEFLITRELT -

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
INEEFHITEE BREHE MEFITEE RN e B
HKD ’000 HKD ’000
B IT BT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BiERTE 2.66 3,685 3.19 42,849
Cancelled during the year RE N - - 2.66 (880)
Lapsed during the year RERIRR 2.66 (2,310) 3.25 (38,284)
Outstanding at 31 December A+—-—H=+—H
AT 2.66 1,375 2.66 3,685

Exercisable at 31 December W+—-—HA=+—H
Al{T{E

The numbers of the share options shown above, as well as their
exercise prices have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the
bonus issue of shares mentioned in note 31(c) as if the bonus
issue of shares occurred on 30 September 2011.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had an exercise
price of HKD2.66 (2012: HKD2.93) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 3 years (2012: 4 years).

FRBRERBARETEED THE - AR E
1)tk AAL R < & - HINRRALRE R —F——
FAA=+TRHELE-

R-B—=F+_A=t+—"BRRTEZBREZTE
BR2.668BTL(ZT—_4F : 29387T) - MR TEHF
HZ EFABRIF(ZFE——F 1 45F) -

AR PR R4
Sy zien 157
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B #5855) + BEEUN RIE(EE )

29. Income tax in the consolidated statement of 29. &Z &8 EHRRA K ZHREFRH
financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HEHBEMR IR ARIHIALE -
financial position represents:
The Group KEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —FT——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Provision for income tax for the year FEER B 216,391 258,928
Income tax paid B FTSH (197,653) (229,130)
18,738 29,798

Balances of profits tax provision relating to prior years are both nil R-ZT—=FFK _ZF——F+_F=+—H ' BLiBESF
at 31 December 2013 and 2012. B2 NERBEERRE -

1 5 8 Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #5855 + BN BB 1EE )

29. Income tax in the consolidated statement of

financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(i)  Deferred tax assets recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the two years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as

29. ZEMBRARZIEH &)

(b) ERFELEHEBEEEREE

() ERZELHEEE

REZE—E—=FR-_FT——F+-_A=+—8HIWEA

FEANERE

BB REBEIIAT

AR R AR Z IR IR B B 2 K

follows:
The Group AEE
Impairment of
trade and other Inventory Tax losses Unrealised Accrued
receivables provision not utilised profit expenses Total
ERE S
RAREM AFA
W IERE FERE WS REBER BIRER wct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—H—H 2,069 16,007 3,690 51,185 5,100 78,051
Credited/(charged) to #3823 A/ (1K)
profit or loss (1,725) (4,240) 2,402 (20,375) (1,178) (25,116)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——F+_H
and 1 January 2013 =+-BRk=ZT—=F
—A—H 344 11,767 6,092 30,810 3,922 52,935
Credited/(charged) to BT A/(F1K)
profit or loss 1,287 5,456 15,030 (13,769) 6,470 14,474
At 31 December 2013 RZZT—=4%
+-A=+—H 1,631 17,223 21,122 17,041 10,392 67,409

R IR A R T 1 5 9
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29. Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (Continued)
(i) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

290. MEMBRARZMEH @)

(b) EHRELEHAEEREEE)
(i) ERRELEHRARE

HE_F-=FR_F-_F+t_A=T—RALWAEF
B RRAMBIRRR 2 BRI AS 2 A5

during the two years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as  {p REHHH T :
follows:
The Group REE
Fair value
Expected profit adjustments
distribution by in relation to
the Group’s PRC business
subsidiaries combinations Others Total
FEHAEE
HEME LA MEKSH
DK A] DAEAE Htth #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARKET T ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2012 R—Z——%—HF—H 29,802 980 3,887 34,669
Arising from acquisition of WiE—EHNBARRELE
a subsidiary - 16,380 - 16,380
Charged/(credited) to RiBEIR(GTA)
profit or loss - (708) (26) (734)
At 31 December 2012 and NZZE——%+_H1
1 January 2013 =t+—BRZE—=%F
—H—H 29,802 16,652 3,861 50,315
Arising from acquisition of Wi — M B A RREL
a subsidiary - 75,695 - 75,695
Charged/(credited) to RIBERR/(GTA)
profit or loss - (727) 1,360 633
At 31 December 2013 NR-_E—=F+_F1
=+—H 29,802 91,620 5,221 126,643
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5855 » 5N BB (EE )
29. BREMBFMRRAKZABH @)

29. Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(t), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB288,202,000 (2012:
RMB262,251,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. These tax losses will expire
during the period from 2014 to 2018.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the Tax Law of the PRC, 10% withholding tax is
levied on foreign investors (5% for foreign investors who are
registered in Hong Kong provided they meet certain criteria)
in respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign
investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January 2008. As
at 31 December 2013, deferred tax liabilities of RMB29,802,000
(81 December 2012: RMB29,802,000) have been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
the retained profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries. Deferred tax
liabilities of RMB96,950,000 (2012: RMB76,116,000) have not
been recognised, as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable
that certain of the profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
for the year from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2013 will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(©) RIERZBELEHIAELE

BB E1OME S EE - ARBARGEREER R
B BB R A] B T REERAS B S0 A0 7R 7k B SR B i ) DA K R 3% 5
B ANEERMEFHBEEAK%288,202,0007T(=
T——4F . ARWE262,251,0007) EZERIERIBEE o
ZERKEBRER T NFE_T— \FLK -

(@) KR ZELEHAEE

BEPEBE - INEAREEERINIRELEN =TT
\F— A — BB BREUZ a F) i 2 A 2 IR B2 kiR i
10% S TENF - REBEMZIINEREZWHFEET
A R R RE% MBI - N = T—Z¢+ A=
+—A8  AEBERASEFREHE AR D IRKRE &EF
%Iﬁ@iﬁﬁ%/\&ﬁzzg,soz,ooo%mzﬁﬁwﬁ:é1:%%(_;—
ZH+ZA=1+—H: AR%29,802,0007T) © BRZA
NEERIZERB AR ZREBR - M EBEETAA
BRI AR A EBFREMEBARIR =TT NF—A
—ElK—%—E$+:HE+—Hﬁﬂﬁaﬂﬁaﬁﬂxz%%ﬁﬂ
TR - B0 B RIE E T 18 & & A K #596,950,000
TT(ZE—=F : AR¥76,116,0007T) °

AT B A PR A w
-z =irn 101
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5875 + BEEAN R 1EES )

30. Provisions 30. #&
Provision for guaranteed profits B w2
The Group KEE
RMB’000

AREETIT
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 145,944
Settlement of provisions EE R (48,648)
Exchange adjustment BEE 5, X (2,952)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 94,344

In respect of acquisition of the Ming Fung equity interest in 2012, S -_ZT— - FWREALKEM S @ MEBHZIEHZ
the Group has committed to make a further payment to Ming OMASF| B IZ R REER - AN BFGE MR LIEH #—
Fung, if the profit target for OMAS as set forth in the relevant — ZF{53K o

agreement is not achieved.

The remaining contingent payments will be due after one year and TR KR —FRIPXA - TEAERERE
were recorded based on management’s best estimation on the HEBREZSar B IRESEK RS BIHEL F5E
probabilities of whether these profit targets will be achieved or not B HIEMBRTRHEAR -

and the respective payment amounts according to the respective

contractual agreements.
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends

(a) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

31. B~ RBERKE

(a) HEDAHKEZ

SR B A AR D 2 R A R
FABBSDE  ARRNENRER 2B ERER
BARHERIINT -

The Company KN a]
Capital
Share Share redemption Capital ~ Exchange  Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

Bx  ROEE RABDGE AARGE  ERRE  REER st
Note  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'0O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000

M ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2012 R-Z-—%-f-H

28 21,309 2,709,508 34 100,774 (362,296)  (312,835) 2,156,494

Total comprehensive FEXARAGR
income for the year -

Dividends approved in respect  HtEBAEERE

_ _ . 3,507 1,229 4,826

of the previous year 31(b) - - - - - (281,487)  (281,487)
Lapse of share options BRRERM 28 - - - (40,082) - 40,082 -
Equity settled share-based INEREE - RIDER

transactions SUEY) 28 - - - 842 = - 842
Purchase of own shares BEADARS
- par value paid -BfiEE (24) - - - - - (24)
— premium paid -1 RE - - - - - (10,100) (10,100)
— transfer between reserves -fFEzRER - - 24 - = (24) =
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=F—--£+=f

and 1 January 2013 =+-AR-E-=£

-B—-H 21,285 2,709,508 58 61,534 (358,699) (563,135) 1,870,551

Changes in equity for 2013: RIB-=FEREE:
Total comprehensive FEZHEBAES

income for the year - - - - (59,014) 465,351 406,337
Dividends approved in respect  HtEBAEERS

of the previous year 31(b) - - - - - (174,651)  (174,651)
Issuance of bonus shares BT 1,755 (1,755) - - - - -
Equity settled share-based IEREE « RDER

transactions TR S 28 - - - 324 - (567) (243)
Repurchase of convertible bonds BRI Ak E% - - - (58,116) - 58,116 -
Purchase of own shares BEADARS
- par value paid -BREE (105) - - - - - (105)
~ premium paid -BfT&E - - - - - (55,472) (55,472
— fransfer between reserves —REHER - - 105 - - (105) -
Balance at 31 December 2013 A=ZE—-=f+=F

S+-poee 20035 2,707,753 163 3742 (M17713)  (270,463) 2,046,417

R P R R A R
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 3. BEX - FEERBRE#)

(b) Dividends (b) HRE

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company ()  KNFEEENARNFRBHFEABIRE
attributable to the year

2013 2012
—=E—-= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Final dividend proposed after the end of WA AR EB R R AR B F R T AR
the reporting date of RMB0.025 ARE0.02570(ZF——F :
per ordinary share BREBIRARK0.047T)
(2012: RMBO0.04 per ordinary share) 119,978 174,651

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period  FR&EARZEIR AR W MR EEARERBRAE °
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) K4 [Z BT #EE R S5 15 B9 48 11 B1 I 4F /& e 1 2K 2
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and TR 171 H A BIHR 2
paid during the year

2013 2012
—E—= —T——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Final dividend in respect of the previous REFFIER T NBTMEREE
financial year, approved and paid REARR B AR ARKE0.047T
during the year of RMBO0.04 per share —F——F : R AR0.0647T)
(2012: RMB0.064 per share) 174,651 081,487
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 31. EX - EERKRE#E)

(c) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

) BRE
() EEREEFTRA
2013
—_E-=
Number of Amount
shares HKD
BHEE ESEEETT

2012
—E——4F
Number of Amount
shares HKD
hgrarid= BT

Authorised: SERE
Ordinary shares of I EE0.005/8 7T
HKDO0.005 each 2 &R

10,000,000,000 50,000,000

10,000,000,000 50,000,000

2013
—E-=F
Number of Amount
shares HKD
R EE SEET

2012
—E——4F
Number of Amount
shares HKD
hgrarid= SEABTT

Issued and fully paid: BEITRHE

At 1 January n—H—H
Share repurchase EACIE S0

Issuance of bonus shares ZE1T4LA%

4,392,439,054 21,962,195
(26,160,000) (130,800)
436,627,905 2,183,139

4,398,239,054 21,991,195
(5,800,000) (29,000)

At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8H 4,802,906,959 24,014,534 4,392,439,054 21,962,195
equivalent equivalent

e Erin=)

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T ARETT

22,935 21,285

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

%LH&%E/\E%H&ZHXT\F*SEZHQE C BRA Bk
MARARFRBRRAG LIR—F - AT BRERLRA
ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ@i’ﬂ%ﬁlﬁwﬁéﬁﬁ s

AR A PR ]
HERARES 165
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(i) Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 December 2013, a total of 26,160,000
shares were purchased on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of HKD69,152,000 (RMB equivalent: 55,577,000)
which includes related transaction costs of HKD248,000 (RMB
equivalent: 199,000).

(i)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the
end of the reporting period

31. BEX - REERBRE®)

(c) HEAK(#%&)

(i)  BBEALFRG
HE-_FT—=f+-_A=+—BLFE"
26,160,000l M ERBE R ZAMER A ARED - B
i 48 R {8 A69,152,000/8 7T (& A R #55,577,000
7T) - B R S A ZK248,000 T A& AR
199,0007T) °

=y e

AN

(i) PR E R AR BIE AR TR REIRIEZ F B

Exercise 2013 2012

Exercise period price Number Number

—E—= —B—_F

1TEHEA TEE #A B

30 September 2014 to —E-WFEALA=THZE HKD2.66 1,375,000 3,685,000
29 September 2016 —E-RFAAZ+IE 2.66/8 7T

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. Further details of these options are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

(iv) Issuance of bonus shares

In May 2013, the annual general meeting of all the shareholders
of the Company approved the issuance of bonus shares, on
the basis of 1 bonus share, credited as fully paid, for every 10
existing issued ordinary shares. On 30 May 2013, 436,627,905
shares were issued pursuant to the bonus issue.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

- The excess of the consideration paid by the Company over
the aggregate of the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired under the Group’s reorganisation
in 2005.
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(iv) ZEITALAR

R-E—=FFHA  ARRE2ERERBREERAS L
HoE A 10/ 3R B B 31T E @A ik 1 IR A BRPIMERUR
KRR BIZE1TAIRR: - R=ZE—=F A A=1+H ' RIE
AT I 3E 1T B 3517436,627,905AK A& 17 -

Q) FEEMEERER
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BAOBERRABOHZENEASHENEATE
HE o
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i) Capital reserve (Continued)

= The portion of the grant date fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 1(s)(ii).

- The amount allocated to the unexercised equity component
of convertible bonds issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in note 1(0).

- The difference between the consideration paid by the Group
to non-controlling interest holders and the carrying amount
of the respective non-controlling interests.

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of the
entities within the Group whose functional currency is other
than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(w).

(iv) PRC statutory reserve

Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves were
made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations
and the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC and were approved by the respective
boards of directors.

PRC statutory reserves include general reserve, enterprise
expansion fund, and statutory surplus reserve.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group, which are wholly foreign owned
enterprises in the PRC, are required to transfer 10% of their profit
after taxation, as determined under PRC Accounting Regulations,
to the general reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of their registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to shareholders. Moreover,
they are required to transfer a certain percentage of their profit
after taxation, as determined under PRC GAAP, to the enterprise
expansion fund.

S 5 ¥ o Bt

 BEUAREIEEN)

31. EX -~ RERBKE#)

(d) FEMERER (&)

(i)  BEAXEEE)

—  RBIEE () () BLA R (D AR MR 2 SR EUR
BRANEBEEER 2 BRI HETEE HRITE
RENGHE 2 i HH BER A R E =D o

—  EWEI AT RRESRMN S HRRER AR
AT Z AR R E S 2 RTTREERAK D E D
[t o

- AKEEMEEBRERTAACRERBRHIEE
Pt < REE 58 °

(iii) P (E

[EH BB EREREENEEEAARBUIINEE 2
NEBEERE P HRREECFIAINEE R Z58 - ZiFE
TR BRM T (W) T 2 5T BUR R IR o

(iv) FEDXERFE

R AR R B B AR RN SRR DA R AR A2 B AP B R A
AT AR ERAR - ASRERNEHEETEDR
TR BREEHBRARE=ZSE -

TEVEERERE—RFERE  EXBRESNEERMS

==
N

RIBREPBIERIOER - AREA T BN E AR (8
TENIEBEECR) ARREFRRTPESAHEET
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) PRC statutory reserve (Continued)

The general reserve fund can only be used to make good
previous years’ losses upon approval by the relevant authority.
The enterprise expansion fund can only be used to increase
the entity’s capital or to expand its production operations upon
approval by the relevant authority.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce previous years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up capital,
provided that the balance of the reserve after such conversion is
not less than 25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries.

(v)  Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company may be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2013 was RMB2,426,595,000 (2012:
RMB2,146,373,000).

(e) Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of business.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The net gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013 is 30% (2012:
22%). The net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net debts
with total equity, where net debts comprise total interest-bearing
borrowings, convertible bonds and senior notes minus cash and
cash equivalents.
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(0) wEFEIEER B8 (E)

(iv) HELETE (&)
—REFBRESRAAESIERIEE RILERBERMA
BEFEEE CEXBRESRVERSIERIEER
HHERBRERNEB EASIMRES CEERT

EEAEB A RERRBTEFEEB(INE) @ KAl&
BAEBHRA  EZERE  EHRTELRHEB AR F
&R Z25% o

() ARG RFEE

BRERSEEARNE  ARAAERRM RERRMK
RZDREMEE AR R R R EREEZ TN ks
EHBRNANBEEBHEEINAEBHB AR -

R-EBE—=F+-"A=+—8 "D REHEESE
B AR ¥D2 426,595,000t —F — —F: AR
2,146,373,0007T) °

) EBAXEHE
AREBNHRDRFREE - BEANHSHNEL - X
SR RBARRER
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

The Group is subject to covenants based on the Group’s financial
ratios relating to capital requirements and interest coverage
imposed by the lenders of the interest-bearing borrowings and
the covenants relating to limitations on indebtedness and certain
transactions stipulated in the terms of senior notes. The Group
complied with the imposed loan and senior notes covenants for
the year ended 31 December 2013. Except for the above, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

32. Commitments

(@) Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as 31 December 2013 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

S 5 ¥ o Bt

BEUNREEEN)

31. &%~ RBERERR®)
(e) fﬁz&%ﬁé(@)

EElqugfiEE’JEE _LEI’JﬁfO ﬁﬁ%&i‘%ﬁﬁ%ﬁl’]ﬁ%ﬁ&
BERBGRIARENE TRBARR -BE_FT—=
F+-A=t—HLHFE - ZK%IEL#%E%ETJX&@
FERBERY » B LA ESN - RRBSHEERMEA
A B MR A ANE) B ANAR TE FTARER

32. KiE

(a) BAEIE
RZE—=F+_A=+T—HRHEARBTALERT R
FRNFTHREE 2 EAREERINNT

2013 2012
—F—= —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETFIT

Authorised but not contracted for ERERKRETLH 66,625 84,043

(b) Operating lease commitments

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

(b) AEZTHEASE
TRAIHELAE Y BN AR RERSBEHINNT

2013 2012

—E—=F T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T AREEF T

Within 1 year —F R 255,232 175,975
After 1 year but within 5 years BR—FELRAT 231,250 202,860
After 5 years BiRAF 24,978 32,556
511,460 411,391

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and
the leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 9 years, with
an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
In addition to the minimum rental payments disclosed above,
the Group has a commitment to pay rent based on a proportion
of turnover for certain leased properties. Contingent rentals are
not included in the above commitments as it is not possible to
estimate the amounts which may be payable.

AEBRETHRZABA  ZEMEZVFHEHR
—RR-ENF EBHBEAARRKAEESEEN
#) o B EXFTIER 2 RIEE S M RERS - REEARE
ERLPIXNETHENE ZHEE - AR REEGHEN
A28 ANZEES LR A LdARE -
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33. Acquisition of equity interests in Harvest Max

The Group acquired 10% equity interest and 30% equity interest
in Harvest Max in September 2011 and April 2012, respectively.
Consideration of RMB38,913,000, RMB184,816,000 and
RMB36,641,000 were paid in 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively.

As disclosed in note 16, on 22 April 2013, the Group
acquired an additional 30% equity interest in Harvest Max
with a cash consideration of HKD238,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB190,178,000). Upon completion of the acquisition, the
Group holds in aggregate 70% of the equity interest in Harvest
Max and Harvest Max became a subsidiary of the Group. Harvest
Max is principally engaged in retail of jewellery, watches and duty
free commodities in Hong Kong.

In the eight months ended 31 December 2013, this acquired
business contributed revenue of RMB1,021,302,000 and profit
of RMB40,500,000 to the Group. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2013, management estimates that consolidated
revenue would have been RMB13,863,621,000 and consolidated
profit for the year would have been RMB482,395,000. In
determining these amounts, Management have assumed that the
fair value adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on the
acquisition date would have been the same if the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2013.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

33. WXRES imHIRTHE

KREBHDRINR - ZE——FALAR-_ZT——FMANEZ
@10% K 30% M WED RN —T——F « —T——
FR-ZT—=FHZHFREARE38,913,0007C - AR
184,816,0007T & A R #36,641,0007T °

BB TE16ET IR - AEENR T —=FMNA=-1+—H
5 UEE L5 30% A% - 38 € R {8 /5238,000,00078 7t (8
EMAREA190,178,0007T) - RUKEETEKZ - ARFE
HFEHLRT0%MKE - LRk AREEHBATR - Ein
FTEREBNREHRE  FHEEEHERTE -

REBEE-_ZT—=F+"F=+—HIL\EA » ZWEX
B ANEE T E N A RE1,021,302,0007T K% FI A
R #40,500,0007C ° M ER=—_FT—=F— A — B %
£ BEREMTFESARERFELRERFDBIAA
R #13,863,621,0007T & A R #482,395,0007C ° R E
EZEE8ER  EEERINKERETNEEAR
EAREMEBR _E—=6—F—BE&THARESR
R

BESIRE V- IS v

RMB’000

ARETIT

Cash and cash equivalents ReMRESEEY 39,108
Inventories T8 160,199
Fixed assets B E & E 16,636
Interest in an associate N RNEI oL 27,505
Taxation I8 (5,873)
Trade and other payables FERTE SR I E b S BR 3K (61,999)
Trade and other receivables FE U B 5 B % B Ath UK AR 3K 90,589
Net identifiable assets and liabilities Al BB ER A EF5E 266,160
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (79,848)
Goodwill EEs 303,633
Total consideration transferred HER B 489,945
— Fair value of existing interest in Harvest Max —BRREERNARE 299,767

— Cash consideration transferred —HEERSRE 190,178

Interest in an associate held by Harvest Max is subsequently
disposed at a cash consideration of HKD40,000,000 (RMB
31,448,000), among which HKD20,000,000 (RMB15,724,000)
was received in 2013.
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34. Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 1 July 2013, the Group acquired the business of watchcase
manufacturing of a local third party for a cash consideration of
HKD39,855,000 (equivalent to RMB31,747,000) (Acquisition
1). In the six months ended 31 December 2013, this acquired
business contributed revenue of RMB35,415,000 and profit of
RMB4,182,000 to the Group’s result.

On 31 December 2013, the Group acquired the business of
counters and stores decoration of a local third party for a cash
consideration of RMB18,000,000 (Acquisition 2).

On 11 December 2013, the Group acquired the retail business
of a local third party, which is principally engaged in retail of
watches, gold and jewellery in mainland China, for a cash
consideration of RMB469,476,000 (Acquisition 3).

If the above acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2013,
management estimates that consolidated revenue would
have been RMB13,671,422,000 and consolidated profit for
the year would have been RMB472,690,000.
these amounts, management have assumed that the fair

In determining

value adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on the
acquisition date would have been the same if the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2013.

S 5 ¥ o Bt

 BEUAREIEEN)

34. BB~ F

RZE—=FtH—H RAEERBE—REMHFE=F2
FARBIEET - ML N (EH39,855,0008 (FHER A
E#31,747,0007T) (F—BYHE) - BEZE T —=F1
ZA=+—AHLEANER  REEWEESAAEEEE
B Bf e A R 35,415,0007T & i F1) A R #4,182,000
=

R-E-—=F+_"A=+—H AEEKE— L
FZTZBEERESRERY  RERE/ARE
18,000,0007T (58 —TE I fE) °

R-ZE—=F+"A+—B AEERE-—REHE=
HREBEEY  ZAEME=STTIEZNPTEAMEEF

i meMUREZE
T(E=1BWE) -

HEREAARY469,476,000

i EMREBR —ZE—=F—F—H#17  EBEHIF
Eira kA ARE13,671,422,0007T R EELRA 4 F
B AR®EAT2,690,0007T - NEEZ S8R - BEE
BRa% - EALI&E%EIHﬁzﬁﬂzaﬁmﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁiﬁ%ﬂ%%:
T —=F—F—H#ETHAREREER -
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34. Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

Effect of acquisition:

34. WEEM B~ &) (&)

WhEZE

Fair value

adjustments of

Acquisition 1 Acquisition 2  Acquisition 3  Acquisition 3
FoEWEZ

Recognised
value on
acquisition

F-EWE  FCEUE FDEWE QAESR WRREIEE

Cash and cash equivalents

Inventories

Fixed assets

Short-term loan

Deferred tax liabilities

Taxation

Amount due to previous
shareholders

Trade and other payables

Trade and other receivables

Net identifiable assets and liabilities
Non-controlling interests
Goodwill - Acquisition 1
Goodwill - Acquisition 2
Goodwill - Acquisition 3

Consideration transferred/to be
transferred in cash

Cash acquired

Net cash outflow

RERALEED
(2

ETEE
RHER
EEHREAR
HA
FETRIIR < 508

FEFTE SEH K
E AR
YR SRR
At ERHIR

HAEERAEFE
SRR
HE-F-BKE
HE-FBKE
BE-F-HKE

B/ FEBz
RER(E
EMERSE

RERHFE

4,954 - 51,999 -
9,553 - 41,479 -
9,022 5,270 139,160 302,779

(349) - (1,000 -
- - - (75,695)
(1,025) - (1,399) -
- - (60,019) -

(21,429) (5,270) (14,071) -
41475 - 11,000 -
4,908 - 167,149 227,084
(1,963) - (26,429) (25,910)

56,953
51,032

456,231
(1,349)

(75,695)
(2,424)

(60,019)
(40,763)
15,175
399,141
(54,302)
28,802

18,000
127,582

519,223
(56,953)

462,270
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34. Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The cash consideration includes an advance payment of
RMB338,160,000 which was made in prior years and an amount
of RMB9,000,000 which is estimated will be made in 2014.

Pre-acquisition carrying amounts were determined based on
applicable HKFRSs immediately before the acquisition. The
values of assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities recognised on
acquisition are their fair values. Except for the fixed assets, the
fair value of the other assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
approximate to their pre-acquisition carrying amounts. The
fair value of Acquisition 3 is determined provisionally based on
information available up to date of this report. The directors are in
the process of finalising the valuation of the net identifiable assets
acquired. If new information obtained within one year from the
acquisition date about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date identifies adjustments to the above amounts, or
any additional provisions that existed at the acquisition date, then
the acquisition accounting will be revised.

35. Material related party transactions

(@) Key management personnel compensation and
post-employment benefit plans

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed
in note 8, is as follows:

34. IEEMIB N El ()

ReREBENEFARMNKARE338,160,0007T & &
t AR#9,000,0007T# M =T — I F/ES o

YRR ARE(E DRI RRKBAER 2 B EMBRELE
AERE - RBRERNEE - AENRKRBBEED
HRRE - REEEEI HWEE - AERIARAEE
ZARERBEKBAEREERS - F=ZREBZAA
ERREEEAREEAMZIAIGSENETE - EFLHER
BEERBARAIEEREHE - WX R HER
—¢P\]HX SERERNKBERHEFEZEERBRZH
g @YW LASHELHAR  IBERUBEHEFEL
EESNER - B BB S RFS S ER]

35. EXFAER
(@) FTEEEAESRNER BB EETFGE

AEETZEEABFMERNTARBAESZEZER
(WERME?) RE TR % MEB(WERMHES)
LI

2013 2012

—E—= T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 26,731 21,721
Post-employment benefits BB 1248 T 209 185
26,940 21,906

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

REMEREN B TRAIR(2FKESD)) °
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35. Material related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Recurring transactions

35. EXFAERX S &)

(b) HEUERS

The Group KEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Lease expenses to a joint venture YRFEENRIZHEER 4,500 10,507
Sales of goods to associates HEERTHZE AT 19,935 18,679

Commission income obtained from B = A A UWERA £ WA

an associate 416 3,400
Purchase of goods from an associate mE & QR REE R 21,008 51,261
Payments made on behalf of a joint venture X4 %4 {3k 4,227 674

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above transactions with related parties were conducted in the
ordinary course of business, on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the agreements governing such transactions.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the directors’
remuneration constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however they are
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

36. Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from movements in its own
equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.
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36. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 to 60 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 1 month
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group had no significant
concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk
is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the statements of financial position.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 20.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from banks to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
and the Company can be required to pay:

S 5 ¥ o Bt

 BEUAREIEEN)

36. MBEREER 2 RE#)

(@) 1EERRE
AEBNEERREEIRE BKE S8R H s UK
Ao BEEDHIEEERR - URBHMAARNER
[EBRETTERER -

HEWE SRR REMERKIBENS @ HERESER
FESEMNEEZRPYAETBYEERE &0
HERPRER 2 BELERE A ZEREEN - Wit
REEZHBENREREFEEMEZLBEIRE - &
WE SR ERE BB 80E60H AEIH - BFE
H—EAREEFRBZEHFARNER FEMAE—THEE
Al - BBEMEREBEZNIE - ASE—RTEREF
YR 1 &

RBEHR - AKEABEXEHEERR - AR
BEERBRAVHIRARTSASREENREE

ERAEEHREESRARE MR BTAMELZE
Bk 2 — BB BEH MM FE20 o

b) FEBELEE
mBETRBREAREELNABRTHBETNER -
AEENEREEPEREARDESFRLERETHE
B - RERE GRS R L ARTEISH AR
EERE  RURNRESHNRBESHTFL -

TRAFAKERARR ZFTESRBBENRE R
ZHRTAROHR  TAEGHARUBRRSRE(BRES
HRRETE 2 MBEMK o WIRF BN XRGFE - RIARE
HIRZ M EBEN) RAKRERARBAINNRER

AR e A PR A T
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36. Financial risk management and fair values 36. A EAKBEERALE S
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) b) TEEZEEE)
The Group KEEF
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but Over5  contractual Carrying
31 December 2013 demand  over1year over 2 years years cash flow amount
—FHUR MEUR RFEUR REREN
“E-ZH+ZfA=t-H FERER BREE-F  EBREWF BREF Bene REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRL  ARBTR  ARBTR  AR®TR  AR®BTR  AR®TR
Trade and other payables ENESRRR
excluding advance receipts HiEAFE(TRE
from customers BE#3) 2,316,045 - - - 2,316,045 2,316,045
Secured interest-bearing loans BB ER 24,744 9,032 27,096 85,512 146,384 134,596
Unsecured interest-bearing loans &£zt B E 1,348,304 - 359,309 - 1,707,613 1,680,955
Convertible bonds R ES 1,900 82,014 - - 83,914 76,104
Senior notes BAER 133,370 133,370 2,467,339 - 2734079 2,159,231
3,824,363 224,416 2,853,744 85,512 6,988,035 6,366,931
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but QOver 5 contractual Carrying
31 December 2012 demand over 1year  over 2 years years cash flow amount
—F0A WENRE  EFNARE REREH
“E#+-A=t-H FREX BE—F BB BETF Reng REE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETE ARETE ARETT ARETR ARET:x
Trade and other payables ERESERK
excluding advance receipts H it N TIE
from customers (TRREPRN) 2,110,319 - - - 210319 2110319
Secured interest-bearing loans BEAFEER 29,569 13,438 36,363 101,381 180,751 164,193
Unsecured interest-bearing loans ~ E4& B E R 1,629,850 299,813 140,244 - 2,069,907 1,996,136
Provisions Bl - 48,648 97,296 - 145,944 145,944
Convertible bonds R ES 2,091,142 - - - 2,091,142 2,023,009
5,860,380 361,899 273,903 101,381 6,598,063 6,439,601

Hengdeli Holdings Limited
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36. Financial risk management and fair values MR REERAREE)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) TEEZEE(E)
The Company Kona]
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but Over5  contractual Carrying
31 December 2013 demand  over1year over2 years years cash flow amount
UK WFUARE  RFURE REREH
ZE-ZH+ZA=t-H HRER BB BBWE BELE ReRE RAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT ARETR AR®ETn ARETx
Trade and other payables ERESEZIR
excluding advance receipts it eS8
from customers (TEEEFRN) 93,129 - - - 93,129 93,129
Unsecured interest-bearing loans &zt B &5 80,276 - 359,309 - 439,585 428,695
Convertible bonds AR E S 1,900 82,014 - - 83,914 76,104
Senior notes BrZR 133,370 133,370 2,467,339 - 2,734,079 2,159,231
308,675 215,384 2,826,648 - 3,350,707 2,757,159
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but Over 5 contractual Carrying
31 December 2012 demand over 1 year  over 2 years years cash flow amount
—F0R WENRE  BERRE REEEH
“2-—E+t-fA=1-H FIREK BA—F B F BAnE HBeng R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%Tr ARBT ARSTr ARBTT ARETn
Trade and other payables ERESEHR
excluding advance receipts HiERFR
from customers (TEREEPHH) 97,350 = = - 97,350 97,350
Unsecured interest-bearing loans &Izt BE 200,495 298,991 140,244 - 639,730 593,607
Convertible bonds AR ES 2,091,142 - - - 2,091,142 2,023,009
2,388,987 298,991 140,244 - 2,828,222 2,713,966
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36. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
loans, convertible bonds and senior notes.

Borrowings issued at variable rates, and borrowings, convertible
bonds and senior notes issued at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The interest rates and maturity information of the
interest-bearing bank loans, convertible bonds and senior notes
are disclosed in note 24, 25 and 26 respectively.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk to ensure
there are no undue exposures to significant interest rate
movements and rates are relatively fixed. The Group does not
account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, and the Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments was:

36. MFEMREERANREE)

(c) FIEEfz
AEEZFEREREBRGAEER
S -

ABERESR R E

fEFRIR R B REZH o LAEE R REFEH 2 551 - AR
BEEREAZBRSAKREDHIAZREREN AR K
AAENERER - 5 ERITER - AIRREFRELER
B2 MR LEIEER D RIRK 24 - 25 R26HFE

AREE 2 R SR E N R R g AR B A A E KR
R RAPHEEN R 2R - AR E W B A TR
BERGEEAAEINRZBEENEEREE - TEUTE
TR TAMSREBHEE -

AEENBERZFFEEMTANEERMT :

2013 2012
— == T F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
EBAE  ARETR BEHE  ARETR
Fixed rate instruments BEEFMERTE
Unsecured interest-bearing loans &85+ 8 &3 0.92%~6% 887,910 1.26%~8% 1,041,409
Convertible bonds AR ES 4.6% 76,104 4.6% 2,023,009
Senior notes BEERE 6.77% 2,159,231 — =
3,123,245 3,064,418
Variable rate instruments AERETE
Secured interest-bearing loans BEHTEER 1.97%~7.20% 134,596 1.97%~6.77% 164,193
Unsecured interest-bearing loans #E3iK 5t 8 5 2.06%~7.22% 793,045 2.06%~6.89% 954,727
927,641 1,118,920
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36. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily RMB
and HKD.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving RMB must take place through the
People’s Bank of China or other institutions authorised to buy and
sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the foreign
exchange transactions are the PBOC rates.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

36. MHEREERARE®)

(0) E¥ERE

AR EEZINE R M B R RR I IEARR R 2 5&
MIREEEETHHE BERER - EAMRERNE
REMBARBRAT

ARBETEEBLBRIEINEG - IETRARENINER
%Z\/,\,iéﬁPl/\EﬁE T EAMERER TINEKEE
° LINER BFIRAZER BT BEARRITERE -

() FBAEZEEER
TRANAEENREHIRRENEREES
OMNNEB A ENEEREEXRE AR -

relate.
As at 31 December 2013
(expressed in RMB)
RZE—=F+=ZHF=+—H
(UARBZ75)
RMB’000 HKD’000
ARET T BT T
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 49,453 32,821
Trade and other payables JE A~ B 55 BR 7k N EL A FE A ZRIR (441) (1,631,809)
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 3k % H fih FE U ZR 1B 102,150 135,377
Overall net exposure ERRBFR 151,162 (1,463,611)
As at 31 December 2012
(expressed in RMB)
RZZE——F+-_fA=+—8H
(AAREZ7)
RMB’000 HKD’000
ARETIT BT
Cash and cash equivalents B RIBREZEY 85 73,570
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR 30 % ELAth e~ 5038 (455) (1,703,063)
Trade and other receivables FEULE 55 AR 51 Ko ELAth e YL 5k I8 56,996 99,534
Overall net exposure RS 56,626 (1,529,959)
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36. Financial risk management and fair values

P BEUAREIEEN)

HHEREERARE®)

(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (0 EXEEE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i)  BURESIT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TERARABRRERR - NEBARAERE AE
in the Group’s net profit for the year that would arise if ZEB(REMEEMERAZHRETE)E
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant 2 BRER 2 AE R 2 F R FEE 2 B
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed g BREMMBREEBERARIB &R MZE
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained HERTIAERARBERAZEEBE AN &I
constant. The sensitivity analysis includes balances between meE
group companies where the balances are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the lender
or the borrower.
2013 2012
—=E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETT
HKD BT
- 5% strengthening of RMB — AREFHES% 63,477 60,520
- 5% weakening of RMB — AREERZE5% (63,477) (60,520)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rate had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
The stated changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rate over
the period until the end of next annual reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.
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36. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from changes in
the Company’s own share price to the extent that the Company’s
own equity instruments underlie the fair values of financial
derivatives of the Group. As at the end of the reporting period
the Group is exposed to this risk through the redemption rights
attached to the convertible bonds issued by the Company as
disclosed in note 25.

(f)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

(9) Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
based on relevant market information and information about the
financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair value for each class of financial instruments:

()  Cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, trade
and other receivables, and trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate fair value because of the
short maturities of these instruments.

(i) Interest-bearing bank loans

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair
value based on the borrowing rate currently available for
bank loans with similar terms and maturity.

S 5 ¥ o Bt
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(6) RAEXE LR

AEBEAR 2 RAERRERRE SRR R RESRRIR
BAKESBITETAZ ARENFBEZARBI DT
H o RIREIAR - ANREFTRIE 2 B IK B fi 257 #
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RZEB—=FR_F——F+-_A=+—8 ' AKAEK
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37. Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Best
Growth International Limited, which is incorporated in British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

38. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the annual accounting period
ended 31 December 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

37. EERRREERT

EERRN_T—=F+A=+—R0 AREEZEE
B RA) R REES AR R B X B & M AL F =
BRARAR - ZEBYEFRREARAL2H M
WK o

38. HE-_F—=F+_A=+—HLE
TEEEMRMGERENHIERT ~ FEE
A RREMARERE

BEAMBHRRTIEZRY  BESMASC RMEA
(B ~ FTEEA R RE - IFER] - FEELRER
BE_T=F+_A=T"HUEFERRER K
RABEHRERPHEA - NI RAEAKERR &
7] FTIRERI N RRE o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RETTHREERIERENR

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
BERGEREIRREETAR)  2HEELMTFHE E K

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting
ARG ERNEISRBEIAR)  ITELAZEERE FEI AL

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BBV REERIFESS £HTA

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment entities

BB BHMEERFE105 - BEVBERESERF125 BB GAERFE275R (BRI X) -
Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets
BB G ERIEI6T(BFTA) - A& E [ O] % R

Annual improvements to HKFRS 2010-2012 cycle

HAEBM B HEAER2010-201 258 H 2 F Z 2k

Annual improvements to HKFRS 2011-2013 cycle

YR B ISIRE 2RI2011-2013B H 2 FE U

1 January 2014

—T-mFE—A—H
1 January 2014
—ZE—mFE—HA—H
To be determined
FFE

1 January 2014

—ZT—mHFE—H—H
1 January 2014
—T—mHF—-H—H
1 July 2014
—ET-mFE+H—H
1 July 2014
—E—-mFE+H—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the — ZK£= & [F 72 51 (4 T8 HA | s (& 5T K% 3488 = BI| 4 &5 )X & A HA

impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to  RYAIaLEA B Z o

e

B LAt E S - BB AREER R

be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that T R AT R A EE Y AR RE R E

the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on s,
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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